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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EEFR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Ho Yin Sang

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing

Mr. Chen Maosheng

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Mr. Cheung Ming Man

Dr. Chong Kin Ki (appointed on 1 July 2016)

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu (appointed on 1 October 2016)
Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert (retired on 23 May 2016)
Mr. Tse Kam Hung (resigned on 1 July 2016)

Mr. Tang King Shing (resigned on 1 November 2016)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Ka Leong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

China Construction Bank Corporation

Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Bank of Toyko-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
BE-—ZT—R§ HE-T—O1F
t=A=+-H +=—A=+—~H
LtEE IEFE
HK$’ millionE E#& 7t HK$’ million & & 75 7T
Revenue R 35,830.3 32,788.2
EBITDA* RHBRFNE - T\ 78
R SR B R 7,251.6 5,279.5
Profit before tax* R A5 R~ 4,872.3 2,598.9
Net profit attributable to owners of the 7~ B)#H5 A FE(L AR
Company
— Underlying net profit* - EARGEF 3,283.5 1,740.5
— Reported net profit — AREAEA) 5,026.8 1,650.3
Basic earnings per share BEREXEF
— Based on underlying net profit* - LEARGFIFTE HK$3.193% T HK$1.697/8 7T
— Based on reported net profit - LR FIGTE HK$4.8897% 7T HK$1.60978 7T
Full-year dividend per share BRE2FRE HK 130.0 centsi# 1l HK 50.0 centsi&1ll
— Interim dividend per share - BT RS HK 30.0 centsi Ll HK 20.0 cents/# Ll
— Proposed final dividend per share - BEERAREBARE HK 70.0 cents3&1l HK 30.0 centsi& Il
— Proposed special final dividend per share - = F R BIR EAAL S HK 30.0 centsi&1l -
Net asset value per share BREEFE HK$36.27% T HK$34.478 7T
Net gearing BEELLER 24% 38%
* Excluding: * TBiE
1) Gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$17.2 million, net (1) KEMELAFTEZ S 2 R E

of deferred tax and portion shared by non-controlling shareholders (FY2015:
HK$249.6 million).

@) Share-based payments of HK$20.9 million, net of portion shared by non-
controlling shareholders (FY2015: HK$62.8 million).

©)] Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale investments of HK$27.8
million, net of portion shared by non-controlling shareholders (FY2015:
HK$310.6 million).

4) Gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$1,573.7 million, net of portion
shared by non-controlling shareholders (FY2015: HK$33.6 million).

5) Income from relocation compensation of HK$201.1 million, net of portion
shared by non-controlling shareholders (FY2015: Nil).
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Kingboard
Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted to report an
outstanding performance by the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (“FY2016”). During the year,
a shortage of upstream materials led to an undersupply situation in the
laminates market. With a competitive advantage built on a vertically integrated
production platform, the Group’s laminates division was able to significantly
lift productions and sales, thereby achieving a major breakthrough in its
performance. As the restructuring of the printed circuit board (“PCB”) division
began to deliver positive results, production efficiency was substantially
enhanced while orders continued to grow. Earnings contribution from this
division has grown steadily. With the rally in international oil price, chemical
prices have shown significant increases, driving the chemicals division to yield
a strong rebound. The property division also reported robust results, with
marked growth in the number of units pre-sold. Relying on an improvement
in the average selling price, the property division’s profit margin improved
overall.

Turnover Breakdown by Products & ¥ %89 47

FEH O

AANERRESFS  MARSLBRLIM - 2
EETREERARREMBEAR(TEE DR
BE-Z—RF+ZA=1+—RIFHRFER
BEBNES - £ BRERLEYHTS
HEEA - S ERERT IS 2HFETER 2R
N REEBRERAPIBEEARE 2EER
g ABRREERBERE  XBMER
ER - ENRIARBEAR B PI R0 BAE BRI R
B AEMEKEREI - FTESE AL
BNERRIIER - BEBERRELA - Jt
TERBRHYBRETE  HEHCTAPIRRA
BRI - FHERPIMEUSES - BEEM
2E KB LT ABZERNFHERER - 7
EERE—TEK o

FY2016
B AEMBRFE

FY2015
—E-AFPHFE

29% 80%
[ Laminate B PCB Chemical [ Properties [ Others
EiRmER ENf AR BEAR fETEmR ES HAft
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

BUSI N ESS REVI EW (continued)

Group revenue rose by 9% to HK$35,830.3 million in 2016, registering an
underlying net profit (excluding non-recurring items) of HK$3,283.5 million,
a significant increase of 89%. Basic earnings per share based on underlying
net profit were HK$3.193. During the year, the Group’s subsidiary, Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited, disposed of a subsidiary holding land for
commercial use in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province. As a result, the Group’s
reported net profit surged 205% to HK$5,026.8 million. Basic earnings per
share based on reported net profit were HK$4.889. The Group’s financial
position remains robust and the Board has therefore proposed a final dividend
of HK70 cents per share and a special final dividend of HK30 cents per share,
subject to shareholders’ approval. Together with the interim dividend of HK30
cents per share paid in October 2016, this will constitute a full-year dividend
of HK130 cents per share.

PERFORMANCE

The Group has been ranked as the world’s top one laminates producer for
more than ten consecutive years. This achievement is attributable to the
Group’s strong and comprehensive vertical integration business model. As
a result of undersupply, market prices of glass fabric and other upstream
materials rose significantly during the year, leading to several price increases
of laminates. The division’s profit margin thus grew significantly. Segment
turnover (including inter-segment sales) increased by 8% to HK$13,923.1
million, while earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA") increased substantially by 32% to HK$3,093.0 million.

Benefitting from upgrades in telecommunications network equipment, as well
as the wide application of smart home appliances and automobile electronics,
the PCB division gained strong demand and recorded steady orders growth.
With the conclusion of its restructuring, the Elec & Eltek Group achieved an
earnings turnaround for the year, and is expected to be back on track to
positive contribution hereafter. The PCB division’s segment turnover was up
by 5% to HK$7,478.1 million, delivering an EBITDA of HK$873.7 million, an
increase of 19%.

The bottoming out of international oil price has driven the increase in the
prices of the Group’s chemical products. China’s further move to reduce
excess capacity has also brought evident improvement in the demand-supply
dynamics in the market. The profit margins for chemical products have thus
rebounded. Segment turnover (including inter-segment sales) increased by 3%
to HK$10,738.7 million, with EBITDA growing 21% to HK$1,106.6 million.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

PERFORMANCE (ontinved)

The partial booking of pre-sales from Huagiao Kingboard Yu Garden Phase
2, Zhangpu Kingboard Yu Garden, Kunshan Development Zone Kingboard
Yu Garden Phase 3, Qiandeng Kingboard Yu Garden Phase 2 and Jiangyin
Kingboard Yu Garden Phase 1 contributed property sales turnover of
HK$4,860.2 million during the year. Together with rental income of HK$625.9
million, segment turnover grew 35% to HK$5,486.1 million with EBITDA
increased by 72% to HK$1,699.6 million. Pre-sales activities during the year
generated contracted sales of HK$8,692.5 million on a contracted sales floor
area of 650,000 square metres. As at 31 December 2016, the Group held a
prime land bank in Shanghai and Kunshan with a gross floor area of over 4
million square metres.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s financial and liquidity position continued to be robust. As at
31 December 2016, net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
approximately HK$12,176.1 million (31 December 2015: HK$20,190.8 million)
and 1.54 (31 December 2015: 2.24) respectively.

The net working capital cycle decreased from 57 days as at 31 December
2015 to 41 days as at 31 December 2016 on the following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, was 23 days (31
December 2015: 30 days).

- Trade receivables, in terms of debtors turnover days, was 53 days (31
December 2015: 64 days).

- Trade and bills payables, in terms of creditors turnover days, was 35
days (31 December 2015: 37 days).

8 KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 258t TEEER AR

ERKRE

FAREBREHREE 8 - RBEEHMTE -
EIUMEREBERIEE =M TEZERL
B_HMIE@ERmtRE - HzHoBER
AN MEXHELERENTNAERTE
—t+8Ex - ERESBRARNE-TABAT
BRELT FBHENBMAEEHELANBRE
A+EENTARB-—T&EET - KMNKF
B BE MERBEZAMNLEAT2%E
TAREATABEATEET - FAREL@E -
EREESEANTABAT AR TEE
T AREEEBOR/NTHEEFI K - R
E-RFtZA=1+—R SEETEEZZ2H
mmbek2LEMEREEEEESNS
BV ORNEE LI E -

RBE S R MBI

SENTBRRAFERTER SER=-F
—RNE+ A=+ BZRHEETFES
—BEZt+—EBtFARE—+EEL(ZE—1
F+-_A=+—H: ZBZ—BALTZENT
BET)  RELERA14(ZE—RF+ A
=+—H:224)°

FEEESREHE—E-hE Tt - A=1+—
BHOA+TLER  BIAE_F—-XRF+H
=t+—HBHm+—8 - @

- GFEREHAE-_+=A(=ZZ—AF
+=ZA=+—H:=+H)-

- BHRUFERERAA+=A(=F
—HEFTZA=1+—H:XTHERA)-

- B REBRRNEFESHA=1THA
—E-RF+=A=+—-R: =+t
B)-



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(continued)

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest-bearing borrowings net of
cash and cash equivalents to total equity) significantly decreased from
38% as at 31 December 2015 to 24% as at 31 December 2016, while the
proportion of bank borrowings between short term and long term stood
at 47%:53% (31 December 2015: 30%:70%). During the year, the Group
invested HK$840 million and HK$5.1 billion in new production capacity and
property development projects respectively. Backed by a highly experienced
professional management team, a sound business foundation and solid
financial strength, management is confident that these investments will deliver
stable and satisfactory returns to shareholders over the long term. Less than
1% of the Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in RMB, while the
remainder were in Hong Kong dollars or US dollars.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management policy. It did
not enter into any material derivative financial instruments, nor did the Group
have any material foreign exchange exposure during the year. The Group’s
revenue, mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars,
was fairly matched with the currency requirements of its operating expenses.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a global workforce of approximately
41,800 (31 December 2015: 43,200). Through the continued increase in
the level of automation at its plants, the Group was able to streamline its
manpower. This has enabled the Group to raise efficiency while controlling
costs. In addition to offering competitive salary packages, the Group grants
share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible employees based on the
Group overall financial achievements and individual employee performance.
The Group’s continued success relies on a solid human resources strategy,
part of which involved the establishment of the Kingboard Institute of
Management to provide management training for middle and senior managers
of the Group. The Group also recruits fresh graduates from both mainland
China and Hong Kong each year in its search for talents to nurture. In future,
the Group will continue its efforts in developing and retaining staff through
its management training schemes, in order to sustain its long-term growth
momentum.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

PROSPECTS

Management has complete confidence in the prospects for the Group’s
development in 2017. The Group’s multi-year investments in operational
enhancements for its four core divisions have put it among the industry’s top
players in terms of R&D capabilities, production efficiency and environmental
standards. Riding on the significant recovery of the global business
environment, the Group looks forward to driving its performance further to
deliver greater returns to shareholders.

Looking ahead to 2017, the tight supply of upstream materials and laminates
is unlikely to improve over the short term due to the lengthy process involved
in capacity expansion. Thus there is room for upward price adjustments in
those products. In view of the strong market demand and considering further
supply-demand dynamics in the market, laminates division plans to expand
its capacity for glass fabric and other upstream materials, as well as that for
laminates.

Driven by the replacement demand brought by the upgrading of smartphone
devices, the demand for high density interconnect (“HDI”) PCB remains
robust. The proliferation of smart home appliances, coupled with the
introduction of new homes to the market, has helped to sustain a growing
order for PCB used in home appliances. To cater to the keen market
demand, the PCB division plans to add automated production facilities to its
plant, while optimizing its product portfolio.

The chemicals division is constantly investing in environmental protection
facilities in order to create a highly efficient and sustainable low-carbon
production platform. It is expected that China will continue to phase out
those chemical enterprises of weak performance in operating efficiency
and environmental standards. Apart from the tightening of approval for new
chemical capacities, the cost of production also increases, which will raise the
industry’s entry barrier. Management therefore anticipates further reduction in
market supply, and subsequently steady earnings growth for the division.

Shanghai Kingboard Plaza Phase 1, located in Changning District, Shanghai,
was completed during the second half of 2016. The Group also acquired a
commercial property in London, the United Kingdom. These two projects are
expected to drive significant growth in the property division’s rental income
in 2017. The Group has also scheduled the pre-sale of its residential projects
in Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, with a view to expediting cash returns from its
developments. In respect of its land bank, the Group will adopt a prudent and
pragmatic approach before considering any expansion plans.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, banks, the management
and employees for their unreserved support to the Group in the past year.

Cheung Kwok Wing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

EERGREEAEBZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wing, aged 61, is the chairman and a co-founder of
the Group, and the chairman and a non-executive director of Elec & Eltek
International Company Limited (“EEIC”), which is a subsidiary of the Company
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”) and
dual-listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Cheung was the chairman and director of Kingboard Copper
Foil Holdings Limited (“KBCF”) which is the subsidiary of the Company listed
on the SGX up to 3 January 2012. Mr. Cheung is a director of Hallgain
Management Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Cheung
is the brother of Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie, the cousin of Mr. Cheung
Kwong Kwan, the brother-in-law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin
Sang and the father of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing. Mr. Cheung had over 13 years’
experience in the sales and distribution of electronic components including
laminates prior to the establishment of the Group. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall strategic planning of the Group and sets the general direction
and goals for the Group. Mr. Cheung won the Young Industrialist Award of
Hong Kong 1993, which was organized by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and was described as “far-sighted, enterprising, and having insight
in the business”. Mr. Cheung was the winner of the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong
Business Award, accredited with the Owner-Operator Award in 2006. In
2011, Mr. Cheung was awarded the Honorary University Fellowships of The
University of Hong Kong. In 2013, Mr. Cheung was appointed as a member
of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of The People’s Republic of China.

Mr. CHANG Wing Yiu, aged 50, is the managing director of the Group. He
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin,
Stephanie and the uncle-in-law of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing. He joined the Group
in 1989 and has over 27 years’ experience in laminates production. Mr.
Chang graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher
diploma in marine electronics. He is responsible for the Group’s chemical
refinery plant and phenol/acetone plant in Yangzhou, Jiangsu province and
phenol/acetone plant in Huizhou, Guangdong province. He was re-designated
from a non-executive director to an executive director of EEIC with effect from
1 August 2014.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwong Kwan, aged 52, is the cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and the uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka
Shing. He joined the Group in 1988 and has been working in the PCB industry
since 1984 with particularly extensive experience in marketing components
and materials required for PCB production. Mr. Cheung is responsible for
the Group’s chemical business operations and property developments in
southern China.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERSREBAECER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. HO Yin Sang, aged 62, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing
and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and the uncle-in-law of Mr. Cheung
Ka Shing. He joined the Group in 1989 and is responsible for the Group’s
chemical business operations in Hebei and Shanxi province. He is also a non-
executive director of KBCF.

Ms. CHEUNG Wai Lin, Stephanie, aged 46, is the sister of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing, the sister-in-law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the
cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the auntie of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing.
She joined the Group in 2002. Ms. Cheung was appointed as an executive
director and the vice chairperson of EEIC with effect from 1 August 2014 and
responsible for the strategic planning of EEIC. Prior to joining the Group, she
worked as an administration assistant manager in a listed company for about
5 years.

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Shing, aged 29, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 1 August 2014. He joined the Group in 2009
and is responsible for the property development business of the Group in
eastern China. Mr. Cheung obtained his Bachelor of Science degree in the
study of Management with International Business at the University of London
in 2009. Mr. Cheung is the son of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, the nephew of Ms.
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and nephew-in-
law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang.

Mr. CHEN Maosheng, aged 53, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 11 January 2011. He joined the Group in 1996 and is
currently the chief financial controller of the Group in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”). He is responsible for the management of the finance and tax
matters of the Group in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, he worked with
the finance and economics department of the government of the PRC for 12
years. Mr. Chen graduated from Jiangxi Finance and Economics University
(formerly known as Jiangxi Finance and Economics Institution) in 1990. He is
an accountant certified by the finance department of the government of the
PRC.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERSREBAECER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. CHENG Wai Chee, Christopher, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 68, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director in 2007. Dr. Cheng is the chairman
of Wing Tai Properties Limited and an independent non-executive director of
NWS Holdings Limited, all being listed public companies in Hong Kong. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management
(CP) Limited (as manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust which is
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and an independent non-executive
director of the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. Dr.
Cheng has a keen interest in the public services. He is currently a member
of the Judicial Officers Recommendation Commission and a steward of the
Hong Kong Jockey Club.

Mr. CHEUNG Ming Man, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non
executive director of the Company with effect from 1 November 2015. Mr.
Cheung has extensive experience in the performance and cultural sector. Mr.
Cheung has participated in a number of community associations, including
the Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association (Vice Honorary
Secretary); The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Election Committee
(First, Second and Third Election Committee Member); Deputy of the National
People’s Congress of PRC Election Committee (Ninth, Tenth and Eleventh
Election Committee Member) and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
2010. Mr. Cheung was elected as the Hong Kong deputy to the 12th National
People’s Congress in December 2012. Mr. Cheung was an independent
non-executive director of Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (stock code:
00391), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Dr. CHONG Kin Ki, aged 61, was appointed as independent non-executive
Director in 1 July 2016. He obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in 1980. He became a Fellow of the
Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh in 1984, a Foundation Fellow of the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in 1993, a Foundation Fellow of the Hong
Kong College of Surgeons in 1993. Dr. Chong has been a private medical
practitioner since 1989 and become a Registered Specialist in General
Surgery since 1993.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERSREBAECER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTO RS (continued)

Mr. LEUNG Tai Chiu, aged 70, was appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 1 October 2016. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong
in 1969. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He has broad experience in accounting and auditing matters,
having worked in the auditing profession for over 30 years, 20 years of which
he served as a partner. Mr. Leung retired from PricewaterhouseCoopers in
2005. Mr. Leung was the President of Lions Club of Victoria in 1986 and
1998 and a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995 to 1997. He is a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Leung is an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the audit committee, and a member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (“KLHL”"), a subsidiary of the Company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Leung is also an independent non-executive director
of two other companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
namely Eva Precision Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0838) and
G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0657).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 43, the Company Secretary, joined the Group in
May 1999. Prior to that, he was an accountant at an international accounting
firm. Mr. Lo is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Professional Accountancy
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the company
secretarial work of the Group. He is a non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (“KLHL”), a 74.19% owned subsidiary listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2016 in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 40 and 19 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 can
be found in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report,
which forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties which are specific to
the Group and/or the industries in which the Group operates. These risks may
materially affect the Group’s business operations, financial condition, results
of operations and business prospects. The Group has identified the key risks
and uncertainties as follows:

Product defects

The products of the Group may contain defects that can only be detected
when the electronics systems into which they are incorporated are in use.
The Group could be exposed to significant liability claims in the event that its
products are found to be defective. While the Group has implemented sound
systems to monitor its products at various stages of its production processes,
no assurance can be given that the Group’s products are free of defects.
Any significant liability claims could have an adverse impact on the results of
operations and reputation of the Group.

Customer contracts

The Group typically enters into one-off purchase orders with its customers. As
such, the amount of purchase orders may vary significantly from time to time,
and it is difficult to forecast the amount of orders to be received by the Group
in the future. No assurance can be given that the Group’s customers will
continue to place purchase orders with it in the future in similar amounts to
prior periods, if at all. As a result, the results of operations of the Group may
vary significantly in the future.

Competitive industry

The business segments in which the Group operates are highly competitive.
No assurance can be given that the Group will be able to compete
successfully against its current competitors or emerging companies in
the future. If the Group fails to compete effectively, the Group’s results of
operations, financial condition and business prospects may be materially and
adversely affected.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

BUSI N ESS REVI EW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Recent global market fluctuations and economic conditions

The recent global market fluctuations and economic conditions have adversely
affected economies and businesses around the world. A slowdown in the
global economy, in particular, the PRC economy, could lead to a reduction in
demand for the Group’s products and may materially and adversely affect its
business operations, financial condition and results of operations.

The risks and uncertainties stated above are not meant to be exhaustive.
There may be other risks or uncertainties that are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability. The Group
endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use
of resources, waste reduction and energy saving. For instance, the in-house
manufacturing facilities of the Group operate in compliance with the relevant
environmental rules and regulations. The Group reviews its environmental
policies on a regular basis.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the ESG Reporting Guide contained in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report will be available on our website within three months from
the publication of this annual report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group and its business operations are subject to various laws, rules
and regulations. The Company seeks to ensure adherence to such laws,
rules and regulations in all material respects through various measures such
as internal controls, approval procedures, staff trainings and oversight of
business operations at different levels of the Group. The Board also monitors
the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with relevant laws, rules
and regulations in all material respects on a regular basis.

So far as the Directors and senior management are aware, for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Group has obtained the approvals, permits,
consents, licences and registrations material for its business and operations,
and there was no material breach of the relevant laws and regulations by our
Group that have a significant impact on the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

BUSI N ESS REVI EW (continued)

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers in order to operate in a
sustainable manner and to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

The Company strongly believes that employees are its most important
and valuable assets. In order to recognise the performance of and provide
incentives for its employees, the Group reviews its policies on remuneration
and benefits for its employees regularly to ensure that they are in line with the
market standard. The Group reviews and improves catering, residence and
recreational facilities and services to provide a pleasant living environment to
the employees regularly. The Group organises various recreational activities
for its staff to participate to maintain a close relationship with its employees.

The Company maintains sound relationships with its customers and suppliers
which enable the Group to foster long term business benefits. The Directors
and senior management of the Company endeavours to exchange business
ideas and updates of the Group with its customers and suppliers from time to
time. To maintain its competitiveness, the Group aims to deliver high quality
of products and services to its customers.

During the year, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its employees, customers or suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 66.

An interim dividend of HK30 cents per ordinary share amounting to
HK$307,680,000 in aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the
year. The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK70 cents per ordinary share and special final dividend of HK30 cents
per ordinary share to the shareholders on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 7 June 2017, amounting to HK$726,880,000
and HK$311,520,000 respectively, in aggregate, and the retention of the
remaining profit in the Company.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EEEWRE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has in aggregate
approximately HK$6,537 million available-for-sale investment, representing
approximately 9% of the total assets of the Company as at 31 December
2016, which consist of mostly securities listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and bonds issued mainly by companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The Company acquired its available-for-sale
investments through on market purchase. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 12 December 2016, the Company held, in aggregate
approximately 5.01% of the issued share capital of Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, in
a total consideration of HK$2,261 million. As at 31 December 2016, the
Company held 212,171,000 shares in the share capital of Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited, representing approximately 5.4% of its total issued share
capital. The aggregate consideration for purchasing the shares of Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited is approximately HK$2,418 million as at 31 December
2016. The Group will from time to time monitor the price movement of prices
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in securities and bonds and may adjust its investment portfolio as and when

appropriate.

The following table sets out the Group’s major available-for-sale investments

TREEEER -_ZT-—AR"F+-_A=+—RHx

as at 31 December 2016: ERFBEZAHEERE
Fair value as at Dividend
Name of available-for-sale 31 December income Bond interest
investments AHEERERR 2016 for the year for the year
FRABREWA FREHFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
5T FA&T
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited BERMEBR AR
(listed on the stock exchange with (R pT LT
stock code 293) &5 5% - 293) 2,161,144 8,185
Bond listed on SGX by Country Z2EEERAR AR
Garden Holdings Limited (PRSP 7 -
(listed on the stock exchange with &R 4R5% + 2007)
stock code 2007) with fixed BRI EmZES -
coupon interest 4.75% BBEFB475E2
per annum and maturity date on BE=RE - HEHAA
28 September 2023 —T_=FhAZ+NH 1,051,674 15,863
3,212,818 8,185 15,863
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

Save as the available-for-sale investments as set out in the table above, the
aggregate fair value of other available-for-sale investments held by the Group
as at 31 December 2016 do not exceed 5% of the consolidated total assets
of the Group as at 31 December 2016.

Based on the 2016 annual report of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (stock
code: 293), it was expected that, among others, the operating environment
in 2017 to remain challenging. Strong competition from other airlines and
the adverse effect of the strength of the Hong Kong dollar are expected to
continue to put pressure on its yield. The cargo market got off to a good start,
but overcapacity was expected to persist. Its group expected to continue
to benefit in 2017 from the fact that fuel prices are much lower than their
previous high levels, but to a lesser extent than in 2016.

Based on the announcement of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2007) (“CGH”) dated 21 September 2016, the senior notes
(“Senior Notes”) were issued by CGH in September 2016, and due in 2023.
The Senior Notes are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and carries an interest of 4.75% per annum and interests are payable
semi-annually. The proceeds from the Senior Notes was intended to be used
for refinancing certain of CGH’s existing indebtedness and for its general
working capital purposes. According to the 2016 annual report of CGH,
as at 31 December 2016, its group’s net gearing ratio decreased by 11.3
percentage points year on year to 48.7%. The CGH group was recognised
by credit rating agencies and major financial institutions for its sound financial
position which was backed by sufficient working capital.

For further information of the business and financial performance of the above
companies, please refer to the reports and announcement referred in the
above paragraphs for details. Please also refer to the respective publications
of the above companies from time to time for updates on prospects and
performances of the respective companies. The reports and announcement
referred above do not form part of this annual report and do not constitute
any publication issued by, or any opinion, advice or view of, the Company or
any of its directors.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital of the
Company are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to shareholders
of the Company by reason of their holding of Company’s shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OF REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities on the Stock
Exchange.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2016 comprised the retained profits of HK$596,559,000.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share premium and the
special surplus account of the Company are also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2016, the sum of the retained profits and the share premium
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$5,249,087,000.

M - BEKRRE
AEEZ WY BERRERENZ BB
HRERA BRI 15 -

[N
ARABEITHRANFEAZ B FIFHANEGE
B ERER M TE27 o

BIBR R

RARW AR - ARRIREEEA AR RR
DMEREERFE -

BE - HEIFEERHD

FA - ARRHEEAMBRRMERE W
EREEARAREZAZ ETES °

RRAT A 7Kt

RZE—RNF+_A=+—8  ARATEEK
RoIK 2 R IERE #7596,559,000/8 7T °
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Ho Yin Sang

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing

Mr. Chen Maosheng

Independent non-executive Directors:

Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Mr. Cheung Ming Man

Dr. Chong Kin Ki (appointed on 1 July 2016)

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu (appointed on 1 October 2016)
Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert (retired on 23 May 2016)
Mr. Tse Kam Hung (resigned on 1 July 2016)

Mr. Tang King Shing (resigned on 1 November 2016)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, each of Mr.
Cheung Kwong Kwan, Mr. Ho Yin Sang and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie,
being executive Directors, will retire from directorship by rotation and will
be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of
Association. Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan, Mr. Ho Yin Sang and Ms. Cheung
Wai Lin, Stephanie will offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

The Board has been informed by Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher that he
will not offer himself for re-election as a Director at the forthcoming annual
meeting of the Company as he intends to retire from the board immediately
after the said annual meeting. Dr. Cheng would like to devote more time to
his personal and other business commitments. Dr. Cheng has confirmed that
he has no disagreement with the Board and that there is no matter relating to
his retirement that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of
the Company. The Board would like to extend its gratitude to Dr. Cheng for
his valuable contribution to the Company in the past years.

In addition, Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu was appointed by the
Board as an independent non-executive Directors with effect from 1 July
2016 and 1 October 2016 respectively. In accordance with Article 84 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu
will hold directorship only until the next general meeting of the Company
following his appointment and will be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Dr.
Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and will be eligible for re-election as an
independent non-executive Directors.

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the section “Directors’
and Senior Management’s Biographies” on pages 12 to 15.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ot EEZ BRI ERR )

Long position
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (“Shares”) (a) AATEREEAGEBTZEER(R

(a)

24

% 1)

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Number of share capital
issued of the Company
Shares held N
Name of Director Capacity Fride T BRITRA
EEgA EEME RGEE ZBHBEDL
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Note 1) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 4,854,470 0.468
SR B8R S A (BT EE) B A A B
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 6,862,928 0.661
BRSNS A (B EE2) B A A B
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 3,408,000 0.328
SREE S EmEE A
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 2,475,000 0.238
fAI 3 A 2 A (F97E3) B A A B
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie (Note 4) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 1,966,000 0.189
sREELZ (M) B A A B
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner 870,000 0.084
SRR ST EnEBA
Mr. Cheung Ming Man Beneficial owner 10,000 0.001
SREABRSEAE EnEBA
Dr. Chong Kin Ki (Note 5) Beneficial owner 40,000 0.004
SEEREHE A (Ff7E5) EnEBA
Notes: BisE -
1) Out of the 4,854,470 shares, 2,952,405 shares were held by Mr. Cheung (1) RiZ 4,854 470 X 0 & & » E A
Kwok Wing and 1,902,065 shares were held by his spouse. 2,952,405/% B 7 Ty R SR Bl &R S HE AR A
A 11,902,065 % 15 Al 1 H AL (B
A o
© Out of the 6,862,928 Shares, 5,376,488 Shares were held by Mr. Chang @ 726,862,928 AR D & F - H R
Wing Yiu and 1,486,440 Shares were held by his spouse. 5,376,488 1% i 17) Ty FR Bk MR e HE AR A
A -+ M1,486,4400% A% 15 Bl i1 E B (B
A o
®3) Out of the 2,475,000 Shares, 1,500,000 Shares were held by Mr. Ho Yin 3) % 2,475,000 R Bk & - H A
Sang and 975,000 Shares were held by his spouse. 1,500,000% f& {5 TY 3 fa] e AE SE 2R A
g+ M975,0008%f% 17 A 8 KA B3%
ﬁ °
(4) Out of the 1,966,000 Shares, 1,896,000 Shares were held by Ms. Cheung (4) 7% 1,966,000 f% % 0 & - H &
Wai Lin, Stephanie and 70,000 Shares were held by her spouse. 1,896,000 A% A% 19 F R 18 388 20 78 A%
A 1 70,0008% 8% 15 Al L F B A -
(5) Dr. Chong Kin Ki was appointed as a Director on 1 July 2016. (5) HEHBER T FLA—BEZ

EREE-
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ot EEZ BRI ERR )

Long position (continued) RE®
(b)  Share options of the Company (“Share Options”) (b) FRARNELBRE(ELBRED

Interest in underlying Shares

Name of Director Capacity pursuant to Share Options
Espng ERtE BABREMEREROER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 6,760,000
SREIE e 4 BEmlEBA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 5,820,000
BRI SE A BEmlEBA
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 5,120,000
REELE BEmlEBA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 9,448,000
fa A 50 A (B EE) EnfEAAN/ T iBkER
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie Beneficial owner 5,620,000
RIFELZ L BEmlEBA
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner 6,128,000
SRR SEE BEmlEBA

Note:  Out of the 9,448,000 Share Options, 4,620,000 Share Options were held BIEE © 33%9.448,000/) BB S o B

by Mr. Ho Yin Sang and 4,828,000 Share Options were held by his spouse. 14,620,000 {8 46 B B 4 Ty /b {7 B4

FERAREE - M4,828,00017 18 50 hE
MBI E LB o

The Company adopted its first share option scheme on 11 May 1998, and RARR—AANGFRA T+ —HRAEHEE
such share option scheme was terminated upon the adoption of its second LHERERE - HEZErERETER =T
share option scheme (“2002 Scheme”) on 2 July 2002 for the duration of 10 ToFLAZARKMEE —EAH+F2E
years. In view of the changes to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities TR E([ T F518 DML - /&
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in 2009, a new share option REZFTES LA EMRR DR =ZFF
scheme (the “Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company at NFEZEE  ARERRERZZTZENF=A

the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23 March 2009. ZHZHRTZARBRERFRIAS EHE—
The 2002 Scheme was accordingly terminated on the same day without BHEEBRESEI([ZE] —FF=F
affecting the rights of holders of any options granted and outstanding under SFEINE MR R B &L - T FiTE
the 2002 Scheme. BATERAERERERITEZBEBERERE

AEMEAZZE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)

(c)

(d)

26

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (“KLHL Shares”) in KLHL, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEpE HmMtE

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner
SREIE e A4 BEnEBEA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Interest of spouse
BRI SE A BB

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse
Al e A BB

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu Beneficial owner
REgEERE BEnEBEA

Share options of KLHL (“KLHL Share Options”)

Name of Director Capacity
EEpE

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse
fa] A e A iy o

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner
REKEE BamERA

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 258t TEEER AR

EECRMDER

RE@®

() ZAAAFEFEEWBLARNRTEER
SREEIOE T ZER((RTHEE
AR )

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital
issued KLHL of KLHL
Shares held HEBFEER
e RTEE BRTRA
BERROEE ZBAE D
1,043,000 0.035
2,500,000 0.083
540,000 0.018

78,000 0.003

d =2ERERELBRE(ZERERE
STHEIRE]D

Interest in underlying
KLHL Shares pursuant to
KLHL Share Options
EEEERELEBREERT
HEEEEERR O ER

9,000,000

9,000,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)

(e) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in the share
capital of Kingboard Laminates Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity

ESHR EEME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner
SREIE e A4 EmEEA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner
BBk E EmEEA
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner
REE LA BEmlEBA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner
Al e A EmEEA

Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates Limited are
held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no rights to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of Kingboard Laminates
Limited and have practically no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

(f) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital of EEIC, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEpE ERME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner
SREIER S BEmEa A

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner
LIPS v EmEa A

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner
REBLE EmEa A

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner
fa] A e A BEmEa A

EECRDER

RE@®

() ZAAAIEFEEWBLARNRTEER
ERATARETSRABIEBTZER
ERELRD

Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
(Note)
PR R RIET
ROEE

(Fff7%)

1,904,400
423,200
846,400

529,000

s AREMESFREEERERARZ
EREEELERD - ZFRERH I E
B A U BUR B R AR A PR A AUE AR
RREBEXHEBRRAG NG LE
SR TR B BB R B R
BSEMDIR BEERER -

() KATFEZEREMH B R TEEICKRAF

Z2EBEK(EEICK % )
Approximate
Number of percentage of
issued EEIC the issued share
Shares held capital of EEIC
FIFERT IGEEICE R1TRAE
EEICR 3 & B 2N B
1,507,200 0.806
486,600 0.260
40,500 0.022
486,600 0.260
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)

(9) Ordinary shares (“KBCF Shares”) of US$0.10 each in the
share capital of KBCF, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company

Name of Director Capacity
Esng EmME
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse
fA[ A S A BB

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2016.
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(9 ZA2FAF2EHEENBLTKBCFRAE
HEREE0.10E T2 EER ([KBCF
B4 1)

Approximate
Number of percentage of
issued KBCF the issued share

Shares held capital of KBCF
e 81T {EKBCFE 21T
KBCFR: 13 8 H BAEZBHBED

2,000 0.0002
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company, EEIC and KLHL
(including their vesting and exercise period) are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 17 October 2016, an aggregate of 12,800,000 share options were
exercised at HK$12.424 per Share, with a closing market price per share
of HK$24.00 on the immediately preceding business day which the options
were exercised, for ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.10 each. Save as
disclosed, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or had lapsed
under the Company’s share option schemes during the year under review.

The following table discloses movements in the Share Options under the
Scheme during the year:

Outstanding
asat

1.1.2016 Transferred Granted

R=B-~F during during
-R-H the year the year
HATE RERER RERRE

BrBRE

ANRAF - EEICKEERBIR 2B E
HE(REERBRITES) SR GRE M BR
FHIFE28 °

RZZE—XRF+A+tH ' £%F12,800,00013
BRBREREITE  THEEARER124247%
UL BEELBREREITEA —EEER - K
AR BREECAOGETHE R s WTEAE
B524.007 7T - Br EXXCFTIE TR AN - BIEFE
ARRNB 2 BB EIE T WEEL - 17
- FESHEB TR B S BB AR R -

TRBERHEE T REMBEREN 22

Outstanding

asat

Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31.12.2016
during during during  RMZE-RE

the year the year theyear t=A=1-H
RERTR REREE RERXH KA

Category 1: Directors L
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing REREE 9,360,000 - - (2,600,000) - - 6,760,000
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu BXBRE 8,120,000 - - (2,300,000) - - 5,820,000
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan REERE 7,120,000 - - (2,000,000) - - 5,120,000
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 1) AR () 7,120,000 - - (2,500,000) - - 4,620,000
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie REELL 7,120,000 - - (1,500,000) - - 5,620,000
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing RRMEE 6,928,000 - - (800,000) - - 6,128,000
45,768,000 - - (11,700,000) - - 34,068,000
Category 2: Employees (Note 1) £ EE (M=) 11,784,000 - - (1,100,000} - - 10,684,000
Total all categories FESERA 57,552,000 - - (12,800,000) - - 44,752,000

Note 1: In addition to 4,620,000 Share Options held by Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the spouse of Mr.
Ho Yin Sang held 4,828,000 Share Options. None of such option was exercised.

MEEE B A3 A 5T A 35 §04,620,00017 18 4t B8 A% 4
S+ fAI R AE St A 2 BR 4B U5 FF  4,828,00017 18 5t
BERRAE o LiE ST RITIE o
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) @%Eﬁﬂﬁ*&(%)

TREFZEEERELBRERNFAZE

The following table discloses movements in KLHL Share Options during the

year:

Outstanding Outstanding
asat asat
1.1.2016 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31.12.2016

RZB-RE during during during during

-B-8 the year the year the year the year

WA RERRH RERTE REREE RERXR

Directors and employees of ~ EEEEREER

KLHL (Note) EE(E) 81,000,000 - - - - 81,000,000
Total A%t 81,000,000 - - - - 81,000,000

Note: ~ Among these KLHL Share Options, some of which were granted to a Director and a
Director’s associate. Please refer to page 26 for details.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangement or contract of significance in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its subsidiaries, its substantial shareholder or any subsidiaries
of its substantial shareholder was a party subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year under review.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company.

Capacity
FERME

Name of Shareholder

BRI &

Hallgain Management Limited (“Hallgain”) (Note) Beneficial owner

(PEE) BEnEBEA
FMR LLC Investment manager
RE KR
L) The letter “L” denotes a long position.

Note:  As at 31 December 2016: (i) no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more of the voting power at
general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its directors were not accustomed to
act in accordance with any shareholder’s direction; and (i) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing,
being a Director, was also a director of Hallgain.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2016 which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has been in compliance with
the applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016, save for the deviation that independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific terms pursuant to
paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code. Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation,
all the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in compliance with the Company’s Articles of Association and Listing
Rules. As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than those in the CG Code.

FERR

REARRBIZES M EGRIIFEIB6IHAFTE
ZEBERREMARE  R-F—RE+_H
=t—B TIBRR(EXAEEETESZ#
SRINEHEARRRERARRARD BITHA
TR RS SER -

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Number of issued share capital of

Shares held the Company
FrfEE 1T HAR AT E BT
REGEE RARZBAB DL
394,200,200 (L) 37.96 (L)
102,560,000 (L) 9.99 (L

() [LIFRERR -

Mz RZT—AFTZA=1T—8 : ()iffFEHalgainik
RAENHallgainfR R A& 170k Bk %
HITTE=5—sk A £ 2 TR - MHallgain & &
EEWMEERIBETAREIERTE  R()ES

SREIER S 4 TR R Hallgain g E = o
BREMBEEEN  RAFTHMEENEN =T

—RFET A=+ R ZARRBEBEITRAS
RIEES MG ROIEXVEIE2 3D # 2R F
ARAARNRWE 2EMEMAEERRER -
HARIEE H K E G0 5 33616R AR RAR
7z B ik 2 (AR EtiRRRERSE R -

EER

EERn BEUFRTESUIRBELRE
ATRMEXFEA 4 BRIRFEERREZ RBER
M2 RRRBE-Z-—RET_A=1+—
HIEFERA—BET EMARRMEEHmETZ
EREATA(TREERTRI) rEyIZER
SRS - BEB LIRS - IAEER(E
BEVFNTER)GERANRARAMSERA
AR ERRRARRBRRBFAE LEWHFER
T YRS LERBE - At - ARFRRBA
ERMEHENE - UERARFNEEERT
RIERBRNEEEARTE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (oninueq)

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in Appendix 10 of Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent for the purpose of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2016, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (which are also related party transactions) within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(a) 2013 KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, the Company and Hallgain entered into a
purchase framework agreement (the “2013 KBC/Hallgain Purchase
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to
purchase certain materials for the production of PCBs such as copper
balls and drill bits from Hallgain and its subsidiaries (the “Hallgain
Group”) from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. Under the
2013 KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement, the amount of
materials to be purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market price)
of the materials under the 2013 KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by the
Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the 2013 KBC/Hallgain
Purchase Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the basis that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

(b)

2013 KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement

(continued)

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the 2013 KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the
table below. Details of the 2013 KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28
November 2013.

In anticipation of the expiry of the 2013 KBC/Hallgain Purchase
Framework Agreement by the end of 2016, on 26 October 2016, the
Company entered into a purchase framework agreement with Hallgain
(the “2016 KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement”) in relation
to the purchase of certain materials for the production of PCBs such
as copper balls and drill bits from the Hallgain Group by the Group
for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.
The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2019 are
HK$520 million, HK$572 million and HK$629 million, respectively.
Please refer to the Company’s joint announcement dated 26 October
2016 for information.

2013 KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a supply
framework agreement (the “2013 KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to supply
copper and laminates to the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014
to 31 December 2016. Under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain Supply
Framework Agreement the amount to be supplied is not fixed but is to
be determined and agreed between the parties from time to time. The
actual quantity, specification and price (with reference to the prevailing
market price) of the products under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain Supply
Framework Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed
by the Hallgain Group with the KLHL Group.

The transactions contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain Supply
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules,
and KLHL is a subsidiary of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

()

34

2013 KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework Agreement

(continued)

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the
table below. Details of the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28
November 2013.

In anticipation of the expiry of the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain Supply
Framework Agreement by the end of 2016, on 26 October 2016,
KLHL entered into a supply framework agreement with Hallgain (the
“2016 KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework Agreement”) in relation to the
supply of copper and laminates by the KLHL Group to the Hallgain
Groupfor a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2019
are HK$700 million, HK$770 million and HK$847 million, respectively.
Please refer to the Company’s joint announcement dated 26 October
2016, and KLHL's circular dated 21 November 2016 for information.

2013 KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement

On 5 November 2013, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a purchase
framework agreement (the “2013 KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to purchase
materials for production of laminates such as drill bits and machineries
from the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.
Under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement,
the amount to be purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market price)
of materials under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by the KLHL
Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain
Purchase Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the basis that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules, and KLHL is a subsidiary of the Company.
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CO N N ECTE D TRAN SACTI ONS (continued)

(c)

2013 KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement

(continued)

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the
table below. Details of the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28
November 2013.

In anticipation of the expiry of the 2013 KLHL/HallgainPurchase
Framework Agreement by the end of 2016, on 26 October 2016,
KLHL entered into a purchase framework agreement with Hallgain (the
“2016 KBL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement”) in relation to
the purchase of certain materials for the production of laminates such
as drill bits and machineries from the Hallgain Group by the KLHL
Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2019
are HK$350 million, HK$385 million and HK$424 million, respectively.
Please refer to the Company’s joint announcement dated 26 October
2016, and KLHL's circular dated 21 November 2016 for information.

Purchase of copper balls and drill bits from
the Hallgain Group by the Group under the
Purchase Framework Agreement

Sales of coppers and laminates to the Hallgain
Group by the KLHL Group under the KLHL
Supply Framework Agreement

Purchase of drill bits and machineries from the
Hallgain Group by the KLHL Group under the
KLHL Purchase Framework Agreement
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FAT FAT
440,692 926,000
562,759 1,452,000
222,368 705,000
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The amounts of the above transactions did not exceed the corresponding
annual caps for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 as announced
by the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on
normal commercial terms and that the terms thereof and the relevant annual
caps thereto are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2016 disclosed by the Group
from pages 32 to 36 of this annual report in accordance with Listing Rule
14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange. The auditors has confirmed that nothing has come to its
attention that causes it to believe that the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016:

(@) have not been approved by the board;
(b) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group; have been entered into in accordance with the

terms of the relevant agreement governing such transactions;

() were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the cap.
The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure

requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of transactions during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2016 were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 or above
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Total: 45T

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
company laws in the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient
public float of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the articles of association of the Company, every Director,
agent, auditor, secretary or other officer for the time being and from time to
time of the Company (and the personal representatives of those persons, as
the case may be) shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and funds of the Company against all actions, proceedings, costs, charges,
expenses, losses, damages or liabilities incurred or sustained by him in or
about the conduct of the Company’s business or affairs or in the execution or
discharge of his duties, powers, authorities or discretions, including, without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any costs, expenses, losses or
liabilities incurred by him in defending (whether successfully or otherwise) any
civil proceedings concerning the Company or its affairs in any court whether
in the Cayman Islands or elsewhere.

Appropriate insurance covering for the Directors’ and senior management’s

liabilities arising out of activities of the Group has been arranged by the
Company.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting
to HK$2,616,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales or purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers combined or suppliers combined were less than 30%
of the Group’s sales or purchases respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group; or existed during
the year under review.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Please refer to note 41 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
event after the reporting period.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wing
CHAIRMAN

24 March 2017
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The Board recognises the importance of corporate governance practice of a
listed company. It is in the interest of the stakeholders and shareholders for
a listed company to operate in a transparent manner with the adoptions of
various self-regulatory policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms and
a clear definition of accountability of directors and management.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, save for the deviation
from paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code since the independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term. Notwithstanding the aforesaid
deviation, all the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
As such, the Company considers that steps have been taken with a view to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are in line with
the principles of the CG Code.

In addition to applying the principles in the CG Code, which is mandatory
in nature, the Board also observes certain recommended best practices
(“Recommended Best Practices”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and has adopted certain Recommended Best Practices which are
suitable to the Company’s current situation. The Board will continuously
enhance the corporate governance standard of the Company by reference to
the Recommended Best Practices whenever suitable and appropriate.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has confirmed
that he or she has complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions
adopted by the Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
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A.

DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the management
of the business and the affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted
internal guidelines in setting forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves
the Group’s strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by the Company
Secretary as delegated by the Chairman of the Board and distributed
to the Board members within reasonable time before the meetings.
Relevant meeting papers are also sent to Directors well before the
meetings, informing them of the background and giving explanation
on matters to be brought before the Board. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To
ensure the Directors make decisions objectively and in the interests of
the Company, the Company’s articles of association provide that any
Director shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in which he or his
associates is/are materially interested nor be counted in the quorum
of the meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board
meetings are sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board meetings and
are kept by the Company Secretary.
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A.

42

DI RECTO RS (continued) A

The Board (continued)

During the year under review, the Board had held four meetings and
the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committees’
meetings were as follows:

EE )

A1)

Board
Meeting
Ezg
&3
Number of Meeting R EE 4
Executive Directors BITES
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) RER(ZE) 4
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director) SE(ESLE) 4
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE 4
Ho Yin Sang fRAE 4
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie REE 4
Cheung Ka Shing RHRK 4
Chen Maosheng 51 4
Independent non-executive Directors B FHTES
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher Bk s 4
Cheung Ming Man KA 4
Chong Kin Ki freoss:
(appointed on 1 July 2016) (RZB—R"ELA-HEZA) 3
Leung Tai Chiu R
(appointed on 1 October 2016) (RZB-—R"ETA-HEZA) 1
Tse Kam Hung Himk
(resigned on 1 July 2016) (RZB—RELA—-HEHE) 2
Lai Chung Wing, Robert it
(retired on 23 May 2016) (RZZ-~FRAZTZARM) 1
Tang King Shing HEK
(resigned on 1 November 2016) (RZZ—"E+-A—-H&T) 3

Mr. Tse Kam Hung (“Mr. Tse”) resigned as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 1 July 2016 as he would like to
devote more time to his other commitments. Mr. Tang King Shing (“Mr.
Tang”) resigned as an independent non-executive director with effect
from 1 November 2016 as he would like to devote more time to his
other commitments. Mr. Lai Chung Wing, Robert (“Mr. Lai”) did not
offer himself for re-election as an independent non-executive Director
at the Company’s annual general meeting on 23 May 2016 as Mr.
Lai would like to devote more time to his personal and other business
commitments. Their reasons for resignation and retirement do not
relate to the affairs of the Company.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

The Board (continued)

Each of Mr. Tse, Mr. Tang and Mr. Lai confirmed that there is no
disagreement with the Board and that there is no matter relating
to his resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

The Directors have observed the importance of directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs at a more regular interval. After
consulting all Directors, Board meetings have been preliminarily
scheduled to be held at quarterly interval and no less than four times
in the coming year.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in D.3.1
of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met once to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Division and responsibilities

During the year under review, the Board was headed by the Chairman
whose role differs from that of the Managing Director of the Company.
The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director were segregated
and are not exercised by the same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the following:

o scheduling meetings that enable the Board to perform
its duties and responsibilities and to ensure all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner without interfering the Company’s operations;

o preparing meeting agenda after consultation with the
Managing Director;

o exercising control over quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between Management and the Board and
to ensure decisions are made on a fully informed basis by the
Directors; and

o assisting in ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and
the Company’s guidelines on corporate governance.

The Managing Director was mainly responsible for the overall strategic
planning and day-to-day management of the Group.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises eleven members, seven of whom are
executive Directors and four of whom are independent non-executive
Directors who are expressly identified in all corporate communications
that disclose the names of the Directors. One of the independent non-
executive Directors possesses appropriate professional qualifications
(or accounting or related financial management expertise) as required
by the Listing Rules. The composition of the Board as of the report
date is as follows:

Executive Directors

Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwong Kwan

Ho Yin Sang

Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Cheung Ka Shing

Chen Maosheng

Independent non-executive Directors
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher

Cheung Ming Man

Chong Kin Ki (appointed on 1 July 2016)
Leung Tai Chiu (appointed on 1 October 2016)

Tse Kam Hung (resigned on 1 July 2016)
Lai Chung Wing, Robert (retired on 23 May 2016)

Tang King Shing (resigned on 1 November 2016)

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie is the sister of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing. Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan is a cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and
Mr. Ho Yin Sang are brothers-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Cheung Ka Shing is the son
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, the nephew of Ms. Cheung Wai Lin,
Stephanie and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the nephew-in-law of
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang.

During the year under review, the independent non-executive
Directors were not appointed for specific terms but are subject to
retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election. The Board
considers that although such arrangement deviates from paragraph
A.4.1 of the CG Code, sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board comprises Directors who collectively provide core
competencies, sales and marketing experience and technical
knowledge in laminates, printed circuit boards, property developments
and chemical products, administration and management experience
in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skills. The Company
believes that the current Board with a balance of skills and experience
is appropriate for effective decision making, taking into account the
nature and scope of the operations of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s Articles of Association set out a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board, shall retire and be eligible for
re-appointment at the next following general meeting (in the case
of filing a casual vacancy) or annual general meeting (in the case of
an additions to the Board) after appointment. The appointment of
Directors are not fixed for a specified term, but at every annual general
meeting one-third of the directors, including the Chairman, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-appointment by shareholders.
The Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement
and re-appointment as mentioned above shall be taken into account
in calculating the total number of Directors for the time being but shall
not be taken into account in calculating the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-appointment shall
have their biographical details made available to the shareholders to
enable them to make an informed decision on their re-appointment.
Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director
shall be timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement and
shall include in such announcement, the reasons given by the Director
for his resignation.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every Director
is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve
the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own
expertise, qualification and professionalism.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Every newly appointed Director shall receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment. All
Directors shall be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the Company
and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the
applicable laws and regulations. The Board has a procedure for
Directors, either individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the Directors to
make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liability has been arranged against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the Directors and the management.

According to A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review, the Directors also participated in the
following trainings:
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REERBEE T2 ER - EEERIM
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Attending or participating in
the briefing session/seminars/
programmes relevant to

the business/directors’ duties

HERSREARLY
E%ﬁiﬁﬂ’ﬁfl‘%
Name of Directors
Executive Directors BE=S
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) REIR(F/E) 4
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director) Bkig(EFaE) 4
Cheung Kwong Kwan RES v
Ho Yin Sang BE:%S 4
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie REE 4
Cheung Ka Shing RE, v
Chen Maosheng 55321 4
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher Bl 4
Cheung Ming Man KA v
Chong Kin Ki (appointed on 1 July 2016) RERH(R T FLA—BEZM) 4
Leung Tai Chiu (appointed on 1 October 2016) REB(R_F—F+H—HEZT) 4
Tse Kam Hung (resigned on 1 July 2016) HWE(RZT— FLA—HEHT) 4
Lai Chung Wing, Robert (retired on 23 May 2016) RREE(NZZ—"FRAZ+=ARME) v
Tang King Shing (resigned on 1 November 2016) HEK(RZZ—"F+—A—BEI) v
The Directors confirmed that they have complied with A.6.5 of the CG EERRA O BE-_Z—XRE+=A
Code on Directors’ training for the year ended 31 December 2016. :-1— HIEFE  BREDETEHRES
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation to furnish the
Board with complete, adequate and appropriate information in
such form and such quality in a timely manner so as to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors of the Company. All the Directors are
given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

All the Directors are given separate and independent access to
the Company Secretary, whose role includes ensuring that Board
procedures are observed and followed, and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is responsible for
drafting minutes and keeping minutes records which can be accessed
by any Director for inspection.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) which comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chong Kin Ki (Chairman), Mr. Leung Tai Chiu
and Mr. Cheung Ming Man as at the date of the report. The role of
the Remuneration Committee is to formulate policies and procedures
for determining the remuneration of Directors and senior management
and other remuneration related matters. The Remuneration
Committee is set up with written terms of reference which set out
clearly its duties and authorities delegated by the Board, including the
following duties:

o formulate the framework or Board policy for determining
the remuneration of the Company’s Board and senior
management. The objective of such policy should ensure
that members of the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and reasonable manner,
rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of
the Company;
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

(continued)

° recommend specific remuneration packages including, where
appropriate, allowances, bonuses, benefits in kind, incentive
payments, and share options, if any, for each executive
Director and the Managing Director and such other members
of senior management as it is designated to consider;

° recommend targets for any performance-linked pay schemes
operated by the Company, taking into account remuneration
and employment conditions within the industry and in
comparable companies; and

° recommend to the Board the remuneration of independent
non-executive Directors (including non-executive Directors,
if any), taking into account factors such as effort, time spent
and responsibilities.

When recommending the remuneration package for each individual
Director, the Remuneration Committee will consider his qualification
and experience, specific duties and responsibilities assigned to
him by the Board and the prevailing market packages available for
similar position. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis
for the year under review is set out on pages 122 to 126 in Note
11 to the financial statements. Review and comparison in terms of
Directors’ emoluments package and net profits of the Group are
made from time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all such factors,
the Remuneration Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation with the
Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
convened two meetings during which, among other things, the
performance, and the remuneration policy and packages for all
Directors and senior management including the remuneration
packages for Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, each of whom
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1 July
2016 and 1 October 2016, respectively, were considered.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s account which gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The Company deploys appropriate and
sufficient resources to prepare unaudited half-yearly account and
audited yearly account. Senior management is required to present
and explain the financial reporting and matters that materially
affect or may have material impact on the financial performance
and operations of the Company to the Audit Committee and the
Board and respond to the queries and concerns raised by the Audit
Committee and the Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 58 to 65 of this annual report.

Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the key elements
of which are as follows:

° formal policies and procedures are in place, including the
documentation of key processes, procedures and rules
relating to the delegation of authorities. These allow the
monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of the
Group assets;

° experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for
important business functions. Annual appraisal procedures
have been established to maintain standards of performance;

o monthly business and financial reports are prepared, providing
relevant, timely, reliable and up-to-date financial and other
information; budget variances are investigated as appropriate;
and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee, is in place to determine whether the above
procedures are properly carried out.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (ontinueq)

Internal controls (continued)

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the above
internal control system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management and will conduct
such review at least once a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets are properly safeguarded. The
Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled
with its own observations and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, the present internal controls and risk management
processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has established
an internal audit team that reports directly to the Audit Committee.
The internal audit team will independently audit various functions,
operations and systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the priority list
recommended by the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
prepare an internal audit report highlighting the deficiencies and
weaknesses in existing audit functions, operations and systems for
discussion by the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on
these findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (ontinueq)

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated to them by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include the following:

o review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

° review with the external auditor, their evaluation of the system
of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

° review the statement of financial position and statement of
profit or loss of the Company and the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the
Group and submit them to the Board;

o nominate persons as auditor;

° review with the internal and external auditors their findings on
their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal controls
for the purpose of assisting the Board in developing policies
that would enhance the controls and operating systems of the
Company; and

o review connected transactions and examine the adequacy
of internal controls of the Group as part of the standard
procedures.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the scope and
results of the audit and its cost effectiveness, and the independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
The Audit Committee will review the independence of the Company’s
auditor, the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function,
at least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies non-audit
services to the Company, the Committee will keep the nature and
extent of such services under review, seeking to balance between the
maintenance of objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to
the Group were as follows:

Nature of services RIEMHE
Audit services ZER
Non-audit services FERZ R

()  Tax services () ARG
(i)  Other services (i) EApRS

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-
audited services provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded
that in their opinion such services did not affect the independence
of the auditor. The Board has appointed an accountant to be
responsible for the accounting and financial matters of the Group
and the Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial and relevant
information which enable them to discharge their audit committee
function effectively and efficiently. Besides internal assistance being
available, the Audit Committee may request for assistance and
advice from external auditor as and when they think necessary at
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee shall meet
with external auditor without the presence of executive Directors to
discuss the Group’s financial reporting and any major and financial
matters arising during the year under review at least once a year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (ontinueq)

Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

. to investigate any matter within its written terms of reference;
o to have full access to and co-operation by the management;
° to have full discretion to invite any Director or executive officer

to attend its meetings; and

. to have reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its
functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit Committee
are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities and at
least one member has accounting and related financial management
expertise or experience. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors as at the date of this report,
namely Mr. Cheung Ming Man (Chairman), Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr.
Leung Tai Chiu.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

o review of the scope of audit work;

° review and discussion of the annual financial results and
report in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 and
interim financial results and report for the six months ended
30 June 2016 and discussion with the management of the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

° discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

. review of the internal control, financial reporting and risk
management systems of the Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had convened
three meetings.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. Executive Directors
normally meet on an informal basis every two weeks and participate
in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor
and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies
set by the Board correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are
given to the management as to the matters which should bring to the
attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
each chaired by a different independent non-executive Director, to
assist the Board in discharging functions specific to each committee.
Each Board committee has its own written terms of reference
setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements which are
substantially the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members who are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Tai Chiu
(Chairman), Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Cheung Ming Man as at the
date of this report. According to the written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, the major responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include:

° regularly review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard
to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

° review whether or not an independent non-executive Director
is independent for the purpose of the Listing Rules on annual
basis;

o be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval
of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when
they arise;

o assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each individual Director to the effectiveness of
the Board; and

o be responsible for re-nomination having regard to the

Director’s contribution and performance, including, if
applicable, as an independent Director.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (ontinueq)

Board committees (continued)

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee had convened two meetings during which,
among other things, considered the Directors who should retire by
rotation pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee had resolved that Mr. Cheung
Kwong Kwan, Mr. Ho Yin Sang and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie,
being executive Directors, and Mr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher,
being an independent non-executive Director, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan, Mr. Ho Yin Sang, Ms.
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie will offer themselves for re-election while
Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu who were appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 July 2016 and 1 October
2016, respectively, will hold directorship only until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company according to Article 84 of the
Company’s Articles of Association and will be eligible for re-election.
During the meetings of the Nomination Committee, it had considered
the policy for the nomination of Directors, and the process and criteria
adopted by the Nomination Committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorship.

It had also reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and
assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors. All the above-named Directors were nominated by the
Nomination Committee to stand for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with
the CG Code. The policy aims to achieve diversity on the members of
the Board. In designing the Board’s composition, a number of aspects
would be considered, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. All Directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders. In
annual general meeting, Chairman of the Board and the chairman of
each committee are required to attend and answer questions from
from Company’s shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor is also required
to be present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant
queries by Company’s shareholders. The Company has also set up a
public relations website which enables the shareholders and public to
post their questions, comments and opinions in relation to the Group
to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) provide good opportunities for shareholders
to air their views and ask Directors and management questions
regarding the Company. All shareholders of the Company receive
the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and EGM and other
corporate communications. The notices are also published on the
Company’s website at www.kingboard.com. Separate resolutions are
required at general meetings on each distinct issue. Each shareholder
is permitted to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings may request the Company to convene an EGM by
sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary.
The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. Contact details are as
follows:
Address: 23/F, Delta House

3 On Yiu Street

Shek Mun

Shatin, N.T.

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2691 0445/2691 5245
Email: enquiry@kingboard.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association.

An up to date version of the Company’s Articles of Association
is available on the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited’s website. Shareholders may refer to the
Company’s articles of association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will
be posted on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kingboard.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ABE RS

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingboard Chemical
Holdings Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as "the Group") set out on pages 66 to 209, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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BYZHERE

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

HRESE

MO FS NAHRARETERETERERE

Assessment of net realisable values of properties held for development (“PUD”)

FHERBT R (FRRYE ) W ERFE

We identified the assessment of net realisable values of PUD
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the assets
and significant judgements involved in the estimating their
net realisable value and the future costs to complete the
PUD.

The Group had PUD amounted to HK$15.8 billion as at 31
December 2016 which are situated in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

As disclosed in notes 4 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, the net realisable values of the PUD are
determined by reference to the estimated future selling
prices. The future selling prices are estimated by reference
to the recent selling prices of similar properties in the same
project or relevant locations. In addition, the management
estimated the future costs to complete the PUD by reference
to the actual development costs incurred and the completion
status.
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Our procedures in relation to the assessment of net realisable
values of PUD include:

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the costs recognised
in PUD, on a sample basis, by obtaining the direct
confirmations from the independent qualified surveyors in
respect of the cost incurred and the completion status;

o Assessing the appropriateness of the estimated future
selling prices of the PUD, on a sample basis, by comparing
them to recent transaction prices of similar properties in the
same project or relevant locations, based on our knowledge
of the property markets of the relevant locations; and

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated future costs
to completion of the PUD, on a sample basis, based on
the actual development costs incurred and the completion
status of the properties of the Group with the adjustments
taking into account the current market data and the past
history of the similar projects.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

HRESE

Valuation of investment properties

REMENGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the inherent level of complex and
subjective judgements and estimates required in determining
the fair values.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises
commercial, residential and industrial properties mainly
located in Hong Kong, the PRC and the United Kingdom,
which are stated at fair value of HK$15.4 billion, accounting
for approximately 20% of the Group’s total assets as at
31 December 2016 with a change in fair value of HK$21.3
million recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year then ended.

As further disclosed in notes 4 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, in estimating the fair value of these
investment properties, the Group engaged a professional
independent valuer (the “Valuer”), to carry out the valuation.
The valuation committee of the Group provided information
to the Valuer and the Valuer established and determined the
appropriate valuation technique and inputs to the valuation.
The significant unobservable input of the investment
approach is unit market value of comparable properties.
Favourable comparable properties adopted would result in a
significant increase in fair value, and vice versa.
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Our procedures in relation to management's valuation of investment
properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of
the Valuer;
° Understanding the key assumptions applied to the valuation

based on available market data and evaluating their
reasonableness; and

° Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and
information used by the Valuer and the valuation committee
in the valuation model, including adjustment factors for
location and other individual factors such as road frontage,
size of property and facilities, on a sample basis, in order to
assess the appropriateness, completeness and accuracy
of these inputs and compare the comparable properties
adopted with fair market unit price.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

HRESE

MO FS NAHRARETERETERERE

Impairment assessment of goodwill arising from the printed circuit boards ("PCB") business

EN ) 4R B AR (1 ED R ARBE AR |) 3635 B 4 VBT BB (L AT AL

We identified the impairment assessment of the goodwill
arising from the PCB business as a key audit matter as the
amount is quantitatively significant to the Group and the
valuation requires involvement of significant judgements and
assumptions in the performance of this assessment.

As set out in notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units ("CGUs") to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. The estimation uncertainty mainly included
gross margin, discount rate and growth rate.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2016
is HK$2.3 billion, of which goodwill arising from the PCB
business relates to the goodwill arising from the Group's
acquisition of Elec & Eltek International Company Limited
("E&E") in the past and it accounts for HK$1.7 billion.
Although E&E incurred a loss during the year ended 31
December 2015, it has made a turnaround during the year
and recorded a profit for the year ended 31 December
2016. Thus, no impairment indicator is noted and annual
impairment assessment is performed. The key inputs
adopted by the management of Group are with reference
to relevant industry data and they assessed that there is no
significant impairment of goodwill.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill arising from the PCB business included:

° Obtaining the financial results of E&E for the year end and
the understanding of the basis adopted in the value in use
calculations prepared by the management;

° Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
made by the management, including growth rates, gross
profit margin and expected changes in capital expenditure
with reference to current market circumstances;

o Testing the appropriateness of key inputs applied by the
management in preparing the cash flow forecasts against
historical performance, including revenues, cost of sales
and operating expenses, with reference to the future
strategic plans of the Group in respect of each CGU;

° Assessing the key factors in determining the discount
rate, including the Group's debt and equity ratio, return
on investments and other risk factors, and comparing
to discount rates adopted in the cement industry for
reasonableness; and

° Checking the sensitivity analysis performed by the
management in respect of the growth rates and discount
rates to evaluate the extent of impact on the calculations of
the value in use.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

64

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 258t TEEER AR

BB RSB ERE
AENET @

. HERRARKBECESTERNRE L
e & o IRIBPIERMERE @ 1§
ERAFAEEFEKBERBANEANT
HEN R AR B B EENRE
RERNELBERERE - IREMAR
FEEATEEE G BEEZEE
REPRBEREIBFEAMBRERD
MR ER - REBENTETZ - 8
BAEERRIFERERR - RPINE
wRENZEE®RE B LIS ES
B o R - RIRFIALIE N A LG

BEEETRTEKE -

. FHERAMIERRBRIIRT A - &
BMAR  BREEE  UREAMBER
RELBPHERMZZMER -

. # BEEEANERAEREBNNEER
EEFR  EENEERE  UEEHRS
MBHRRELER - HMNBAEESERE
FHEVTM - EEEMIT - HAAEIE

RAZ2HEE-
BREMEES - RAERIEEEA TAHENE

TEE  KREZH  EAEFRRE - 28R
PIFER T &3B! BB I O (L R B KR

HPEFAEERRER  HBRRMAESTEE
FRAE MR ERERER - WRMFER
BRI EMEA RS ERMELIENRE
BEMEMER  UREBERNBERT - HE
E7 FBHEE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Mr. Chu, Johnny Chun Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZ = ZT— R "F+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—EB—REF —E—FHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue ] 5 35,830,320 32,788,186
Cost of sales and services rendered SHE IR AR AR (28,613,700) (27,992,732
Gross profit EF 7,216,620 4,795,454
Other income, gains and losses HaU A - Y25 R 7 619,069 555,546
Distribution costs DA (1,035,873) (1,026,218)
Administrative costs GIEGEN (1,727,765) (1,616,485)
Gain on fair value changes of investment &YW ¥ A FEZ T 2 WS
properties 14 21,286 267,085
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE 2 W&
investments 465,247 345,692
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB ARz W 31 2,121,238 33,590
Share-based payments VAR AR FE A5 3R (20,910) (62,764)
Impairment loss recognised on SRl E IR EER
available-for-sale investments ZREEE 20 (27,764) (314,299)
Finance costs B A& B AN 8 (403,074) (439,779)
Share of results of associates FEAEEE AR AR 19 9,152 (15,269)
Profit before taxation M F BT A 7,237,226 2,622,559
Income tax expense FRISTRIX 9 (1,075,209) (569,464)
Profit for the year REEHA] 10 6,162,017 1,953,095
Profit for the year attributable to: REERMEGDEE
Owners of the Company EN/NSIESZEUN 5,026,831 1,650,323
Non-controlling interests IR AR R M A 1,135,186 302,772
6,162,017 1,953,095
Earnings per share FRRER 13
- Basic —HA HK$4.889/% 7t  HK$1.60975 7T
— Diluted — 8 HK$4.8753% T HK$1.609/& 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ek EMEERER

For The year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ—ZF—"FE+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—B—AEF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FBT
Profit for the year KEEZ A 6,162,017 1,953,095
Other comprehensive (expenses) income REGEM2E(EE) S
for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T E#EF HIEE 15752188 -
Translation reserve: b 5 RE
Exchange differences arising EMEE2EEmEE
from translation to presentation currency ZE N =R (2,161,396) (2,208,571)
Property revaluation reserve: Y E R
Revaluation of properties transferred to HEBRSIGEYER Y MESE
investment properties - 309,429
(2,161,396) (1,899,142)
Items that may be reclassified AERAGHENIHE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmoHE -
Investment revaluation reserve: WE SRS
Net changes arising from At EIRE 2 #EHE
available-for-sale investments (268,971) 74,021
Translation reserve: b 5 RE A
Exchange differences arising from RITE MG EMES ZEH =58
translation of foreign operations (6,279) (6,919)
Share of change in reserve of associates e E ARIREZE (135,317) (121,165)
Reserve released upon disposal HE AR 2 D
of an associate - (4,388)
(410,567) (568,451)
Other comprehensive expenses AEFZHEMEES H (BREE)
for the year (net of tax) (2,571,963) (1,957,593)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) AEFEEWS (L) ERE
for the year 3,590,054 (4,498)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) 2EWE () BFEEL 7
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARFEEA 2,766,637 (46,501)
Non-controlling interests JEE AR AR B A S 823,417 42,003
3,590,054 (4,498)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a BRI R

AT 31 December 2016 R - ZE— X F+-A=+—H

2016 2015
—B—AEF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties WA 14 15,368,824 10,876,251
Properties, plant and equipment ME - R N & 15 13,545,102 15,660,817
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE 16 874,668 912,439
Other non-current assets HiIEmEEE 17 - 689,670
Goodwill [EES 18 2,288,149 2,288,149
Interests in associates REE R E) 2w 19 1,959,874 2,086,039
Available-for-sale investments AHEEERE 20 6,537,266 2,403,069
Entrusted loans ZHER 24(a) 882,944 1,193,072
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEYE -
properties, plant and equipment WEREE 2] 90,940 311,866
Deferred tax assets FERETRIEE E 21 3,347 3,420
41,551,114 36,424,792
Current assets MENVE
Inventories wE 22 1,779,065 2,287,118
Properties held for development FHFEREME 23 15,810,227 19,228,370
Trade and other receivables and Z 5 MEMERARR
prepayments NSELNE O 24(a) 6,946,775 7,849,134
Bills receivables FEWEE 24(p) 3,182,724 2,017,736
Other current assets Hibme)EE 17 645,931 -
Prepaid lease payments A ERE 16 21,809 25,086
Taxation recoverable B EEr 10,294 24,890
Fixed deposits held at banks with [REARR 2= =& A JA kL&Y
original maturity over three months RITE TR 24(c) - 210,079
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE 24(c) 6,472,614 4,853,792
34,869,439 36,496,205
Current liabilities MENAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N HAn R BR IR 25 6,809,624 5,927,617
Bills payables ARE=S 25 170,224 409,762
Deposits received from pre-sale of TEEMEMBET 2
residential units 7,334,955 3,192,521
Taxation payable FESFLIR 528,938 534,181
Bank borrowings — amount due RITIEE ——FAEH
within one year 2 I8 26 7,849,588 6,241,379
22,603,329 16,305,460
Net current assets mENEEFE 12,176,110 20,190,745
Total assets less current liabilities BELERRDEE 53,727,224 56,615,537
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBI K

AT 31 December 2016 R —Z—"NF+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E-ARF —T—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current liabilities ERBBE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIIE B (F 21 759,988 805,518
Bank borrowings — amount RITIEE ——F1E 2 H
due after one year ZIE 26 9,014,564 14,469,292
9,774,552 15,274,810
43,952,672 41,340,727
Capital and reserves IS 2 G
Share capital [N 27 103,840 102,560
Reserves i 37,483,164 35,143,608
Equity attributable to owners RARFHE AEIGER
of the Company 37,587,004 35,246,168
Non-controlling interests P AR A R 29 6,365,668 6,094,559
Total equity BARIBEE 43,952,672 41,340,727

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 209 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2017 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Kwok Wing
REIE
DIRECTOR
FE

FOE6EFE209B YA HREEN T —+
FZATHAEESSHEREERE I
HTHESREEE

Chang Wing Yiu
ROk R
DIRECTOR
BE

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —ZF—/RFF ik 69



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZ = ZT— R "F+-A=+—HILFE

Attrioutable to owners of the Company

&

Share
options
reserve

Capital
Share - redemption
premium

Share

capital reserve

Special
surplus
account

Statutory

reserve

Property

revaluation

Investment
Goodwill  revaluation

reserve

HK$'000
TR
(Note )
(

Translation
reserve

B
HK$'000

THL

Non-
controling
interests

Retained

profits ~ Sub-total

HK$'000

THL

Total
equity

Balance at 1 January 2015 RZF-1§
—A-Az& 102,560 4,467,742 1,911 228,824 10594 415248 28480 1,043,523 (89,818) 3,554,896 25,922,348 35,676,308 6,296,882 41,973,190
Proft fo he year KEREA - - - - - - - - - - 1650323 160328 G072 196309
Net changes arising from avalable-for- AT HERE 7
sale investments (Note e) 2H25(ite) - - - - - - - - 76687 - - 76687 (2666 74,021
Share of change in reserve EEBERR
of associates GHEEY - - - - - - - - - (121,169) - (121,169) - (121,163)
Reserve released upon HE-EBERR
disposal of an associate 2GEDE - - - - - - - - - (4,388) - (4,388) - 4,388)
Exchange differences arising from RAEZ25I&%
tranglation to presentation currency EEZEREE - - - - - - - - - (1,870,404) - (1,870404) (338,167) (2,208,571)
Exchange differences arising from R EsMEEE
translation of foreign operations MEEZEREE - - - - - - - - - b4y - b4 (148 (6919
Revaluation of properties transferred S ZIFAYLE
o investment properties IOEERE - - - - - - 2278% - - - - 22780 81539 309429
Total comprehensive income TEE2ENE
(expenses) forthe year (xit)eE - - - - - - 2780 o TBGST 00140 1650323 (6S0T) 42003 (4498)
Recognition of equity-settled BRNEREEN
share-based payments Dl - - - 6764 - - - - - - - 62,764 - 6764
Final dividend for the year HE-Z-DET2AR
ended 31 December 2014 ST-AIEEEZ
$Hme B, - . - - - - - - - (a0TeR)  [307,680) - e
Interim dividend for the year HE-5-R41CA
ended 31 December 2015 “t-RIEEEZ
hiRE - - - - - - - - - - 05120 (205120) - 51
Acquisttions of addtional RN B A=
interests in subsidiaries 3 - - - - - - - 676% - - - 6769  (158631)  (90,936)
Disposal of partal interests HEHRAA
in a subsidiary pa: oy i3 - - - - - - - (1209 - - - (1298 8603 7305
Reserve released upon HE-RHHBAR
disposal of a subsidlary 2REEE - - - - - - - - - (8,716) 8,716 - - -
Capital contribution from NGRS
non-controling shareholders REHES
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 42,400 42,400
Dividends paid to non-controling YHTHEBRARAZ
shareholders of subsidiaries FERREZRE - - - - - - - - - - - - (136,698 (136,698
Transfers to reserve BETEE - - - - - 33,553 - - - - (33559 - - -
- - - 62,764 - 33,563 - 66,397 - (8716)  (537,637) (383639  (244,326)  (627,965)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=F-R5+=A
=t-RZEH 102,060 4,457,742 1911 291,588 10594 448801 256370 1,109,920 (13,131) 1,544,779 27,035,084 35246,168 6,094,559 41,340,727
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
AR ARERR

Capital Share Special Property Investment Non-
Share Share  redemption options surplus  Statutory revaluation ~ Goodwill revaluation Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve account CT reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests

B BiBRE  BHER EE REEf FERRR
ks ROEE BEEE BE  AERR B BERR fE  EiRE RS it i
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKY000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TER TER 7 TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TR TER
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note ¢)
(Hizta) (Hfzib) (GE] (W&kd) (Hiike)

Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE-7%

-A-B&% 102,560 4,457,742 1911 291,588 10,59 448,801 256370 1,109,920 (13,131) 1544779 27,035,034 35246,168 6,004,559 41,340,727
Proft for the year TERRR = = = = = - - - - - 5026831 5026831 1135186 6,162,017
Net changes arising from
of avallable-for-sale
investments (Note ¢) - - - - - - - - (264,659 - - (264,659 4312 (268,971)
Share of change in reserve EREEARREESD
of associates - - - - - - - - - (135,317) - (135,317) - (135,317)
Exchange differencesarising ~~ RITEZ25I6%
from translation [il:294:3:5=3
to presentation currency - - - - - - - - - (1,855,594) - (1,855594) (305802 (2,161,396)
Exchange diferencesarising ~ EATENNAE
from tranglation of (234351
foreign operations - - - - - - - - - (4,624) - (4,624) (1,655) (6,279)
Total comprehensive FEE2ENE
income (expenses) (%i)eg
forthe year . . . - . . 5 - (6465 (19955%5) 5026831 2766637 823417 3590054
Issue of new shares BirEmrERiE
from exercise of share options - ME4T31MR 1,280 194,786 - (87,039 - - - - - - - 159,027 - 159,027
Recognition of equity-setled ~ LMEREEN
share-based payments RiF R - - - 20910 - - - - - - - 20910 - 20910
Final dhidend forthe year HECZ-R51A
ended 31 December 2015 =t-BILER
RERE - - - - - - - = - - (TR0 (307,680) - (307,600)
Inferim dvidend for the year ~ BE-F-A%E+ZA
ended 31 December 2016 =+-BILEE
RS - - - - - - - = = - (07,880)  (307,680) - (307,680
Disposal of partil interests HERBATHA
ina subsidiary i34 = = = - - - - 9,622 - - - 9,622 47,002 56,624
Reserve released upon LE-RHEARE
disposal of a subsiciary B - - - - - - - - - 1,569 (1,569) - - -
Capital contrioution from HELAEERER
non-controling shareholders  #/&3E
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 26,400 26,400
Dividends paid to non-controling 75 FHBAA
shareholders of subsidiaries OHERRRE 2 RS - - - - - - - - - - - - (6257100  (625,710)
Transfers to reserve L - - - - - 63,851 - - - - (63,851) - - -
1,280 194,786 - (16,129) - 63,851 - 9,622 - 1,569 (680,780)  (425,801)  (552,308)  (978,109)
Balance at 31 December 2016 M=F—REFT-A
“+-Bi# 103840 4,652,528 1911 215,459 10,594 512,652 266370  1,119542  (77,790)  (449,187) 31,381,085 37,587,004 6,365,668 43,952,672
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

Notes:

(@)

72

Special surplus account represents the difference between the nominal amount of
the shares issued by the Company and the nominal amount of the issued share
capitals of the subsidiaries which were acquired by the Company under the Group
reorganisation in 1993.

Statutory reserve comprises statutory fund, which is non-distributable, represents
capitalisation of retained profits of certain subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) for capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and funds
shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses or (i) expand production operations.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on revaluation of
certain properties of the Group for own use as a result of transfer of those properties
for own use from properties, plant and equipment to investment properties.

Goodwill reserve represents the effects of changes in ownership in certain
subsidiaries when there is no change in control.

Net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist of gain on fair value
changes amounting to HK$168,512,000 (2015: HK$105,420,000), gain on disposal
amounting to HK$465,247,000 (2015: HK$345,692,000) and impairment loss
amounting to HK$27,764,000 (2015: HK$314,293,000).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE— X NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—~nE T—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Profit before taxation FREL AT R 7,237,226 2,522,559
Adjustments for: FAE
Share of results of associates NI E X5 (9,152) 15,269
Depreciation of properties, Y - WEREEBITE
plant and equipment 1,955,026 2,216,479
Dividends from available-for-sale investments AL EIRE 2 R BUA (168,382) (171,236)
Impairment loss recognised on PE ZEWER R IER 2 R EEE
trade receivables 86,682 44,052
Impairment loss recognised on properties, TV - BE MR BER ZREETE
plant and equipment 39,000 -
Impairment loss recognised on A ERERR 2 REES
available-for-sale investments 27,764 314,293
Interest expenses and other finance charges AMEFZHNEMEEE A 403,074 439,779
Interest income FEUA (226,134) (358,001)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHBESERE 2 W
investments (465,247) (345,692)
Gain on fair value changes of investment REMENTFEZ S 2 WS
properties (21,286) (267,085)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB A RER 2 WE (2,121,238) (33,590)
Release of prepaid lease payments TETAE BRI R 21,218 24,292
(Reversal of) write down of inventories (BEDMHETE (37,997) 16,822
Loss on disposal and write off of properties, HE MM E - R KR iE 2 EiE
plant and equipment 32,656 13,132
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—RHBEARER 2 EE = 8,977
Loss on disposal of prepaid lease payments HETENTEERIE 2 &8 = 325
Share-based payments AR AT 3R 20,910 62,764
Fair value changes of foreign HINERHIE K 2 AT EE
exchange forward contracts - 453
Operating cash flows before movements RET2EESEHR LEHRSRE
in working capital 6,774,120 4,503,592
Decrease in inventories FERD 401,001 333,540
Increase in properties held for development FEERE YL (161,558) (1,311,233)
Decrease in trade and other receivables and B 5 N E b R BRFR X B FIE R
prepayments 699,094 409,910
Increase in bills receivables FEUTZ 32N (1,292,953) (28,440)
Increase in trade and other payables E 5 &k E AR BR TN 1,626,479 691,310
Decrease in bills payables e (213,551) (316,567)
Increase (decrease) in deposits received from pre- TEEWE U2 5T 2L MO L)
sale of residential units 4,344,904 (1,148,721)
Decrease in derivative financial instruments PTESR T AR - (7,232)
Cash generated from operations RS IR S 12,177,536 3,126,159
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBFEH (6,464) (53,675)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) paid EAP B R ER ([ LB ER 1) (176,745) (101,283)
Other income taxes paid Hib B @EEH (881,250) (416,807)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% %K HMS5H & FHE 11,113,077 2,554,394
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

2016
S i

HK$’000

TR

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEK
Purchase of available-for-sale investments B & Al it HE18& (12,579,920) (5,636,900
Acquisitions of subsidiaries BEEMEAT 30 (2,582,315) (623,226)
Purchase of properties, plant and BEYYE  HELRE

equipment (524,495) (712,804)
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties, BB - BMEREEM NS

plant and equipment (90,940) (311,866)
Prepaid lease payments made B TEEERIE (27,184) (7,826)
Proceeds from disposal of HERHEERESHRIE

available-for-sale investments 8,614,235 6,448,337
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary HE—RNBARERATSHRIEA 31 2,133,849 126,583
Net decrease in entrusted loans RREEFRFEE 246,473 166,235
Interest received BUF B 203,828 394,996
Withdrawal (placement) of fixed TR (1) FREARR 7%

deposits held at banks with =& A AR TE TR

original maturity over three months 196,756 (210,079)
Dividends received from B AT SR E R B

available-for-sale investments 168,382 171,236
Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEME -« BENEETESIHE

plant and equipment 126,948 86,015
Capital injection in an associate m—fEEE N E)TE = (1,071,419
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EERRITIFIFORLD = 119,363
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—RBE A RESATSRIE - 35,911
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid HEBNHERIBATSRIAE

lease payments = 720
Net refund of capital from an AMHEEREREEANFEE

available-for-sale investment - 149,368
Purchase of investment properties BEREME - (4,561)
Dividend received from an associate Bl —EBE A RRE - 170,356
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBFMARSEHE

ACTIVITIES (4,114,383) (709,561)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RESEE
New bank borrowings raised HRITEE 9,400,545 15,779,055
Repayment of bank borrowings EBIRITEE (13,246,598) (17,113,370)
Dividends paid to non-controlling HFHEBARZ

shareholders of subsidiaries FEPERRAE R 2 IR B (625,710) (136,698)
Dividend paid on ordinary shares IR R R E (615,360) (512,800)
Interest and other finance charges paid EAHE REMRE R (375,810) (397,093)
Proceeds from exercise of share options ~ {T{# BB PR TS 5R1E 159,027 -
Proceeds from the partial disposal of a HEH B R RS D ESFTSHIE

subsidiary 56,624 7,305
Capital contribution from non-controling [ B A &2 JEH AR EE & 48

shareholders of subsidiaries 26,400 42,400
Consideration paid for acquisition of U BB BT BB N B EBAME RS PR HRE

additional interests in subsidiaries - (99,495)
Advance from an associate — BN T Z R - 1,172,532
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING REITHMARSFE

ACTIVITIES (5,220,882) (1,258,164)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FH&T
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RePRESEEEREMFEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,777,812 586,669
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FOzReRESEHEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 4,853,792 4,432,635
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ERSHHE
CHANGES (158,990) (165,512)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE ERzEERBRSEEER - 6,472,614 4,853,792
END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING BANK ElR{T&#EES
BALANCES AND CASH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZ = ZT— R "F+-A=+—HILFE

1.

76

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of
the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and sale
of laminates, printed circuit boards (“PCBs”), chemicals, liquid crystal
displays (“LCDs”), magnetic products and property development and
investments (“Properties”).

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (“RMB”) while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
considered it is more relevant for the users of the consolidated
financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year

The Group has applied for the first time in current year the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Amendments to Hong Kong Disclosure initiative

Accounting Standard

(“HKAS”)1
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of acceptable methods
HKAS 38 of depreciation and amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer plants
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 cycle
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;

EE-RFTA=T—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Financial instrument?

Revenue from contracts with customers and
the related amendments?

Leases®

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-
2016 cycle®

Classification and measurement of share-
based payment transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Investments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture*

Disclosure initiative!
Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

4 Effective for annual periods on or after a date to be determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1

January 2018, as appropriate.
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2.

78

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

. All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 December 2016, application of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have a material impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. The Group’s available-
for-sale investments, including those currently stated at cost less
impairment, will either be measured at fair value through profit or
loss or be designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (subject to fulfilment of the designation criteria). In addition,
the expected credit loss model may result in early provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial

assets measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction contract and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:
Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing and
amounts of revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as financing and
operating cash flows respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and
a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$37,918,000 and HK$947,000 in relation
to premises and plant and machinery, respectively, as disclosed in
note 36. A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect
until the directors complete a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments require the
following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising
from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses;
(iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application permitted. The
application of the amendments will result in additional disclosures on
the Group’s financing activities, specifically reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the consolidated statement of
financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities will be
provided on application.

The Directors anticipate that the application of amendments to HKAS
7 in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the Directors
do not anticipate that the application of HKAS 7 will have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Except as describe above, the Directors do not anticipate that the
application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have a
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-base Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at

the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investeg;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and

cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s relevant components of equity including reserves and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-
attribution of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based payment at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other individual identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash generating unit (“CGU”) (or groups of CGU)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purpose and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of CGU)
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGU).
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of goodwiill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

The Group policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate

is described below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the

period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount

of the investment subsequently increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the

equity method is discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the

associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,

rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are

delivered and title has passed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities as ‘deposits received from
pre-sale of residential units’.

Service income for drilling services is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income and licence fee income are recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease and licence agreement.
The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue for operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties held for development

Properties held for development in the future are stated at the lower

of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, comprising prepaid
lease payments for lands and development costs, are included
in properties held for development until such time when they are

completed.

The Group transfers properties held for development to investment
properties when there is a change of intention to hold the properties
to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for sale
in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value at the date of transfer and its previous carrying

amount of the properties is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group transfers properties held for development to properties,
plant and equipment when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties for the Group’s own use rather than for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Its previous carrying amount of the properties
becomes the deemed cost upon transfers to properties, plant and

equipment.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties, plant and equipment under
construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes, are carried at cost
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate category of properties, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than properties, plant and equipment under construction) less their
residual value over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective

basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

If an item of properties, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item (including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Licenced properties, plant and equipment

Licenced properties, plant and equipment (included in properties,
plant and equipment) held to earn licence fee income are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of items of licenced
properties, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sales.

Licenced inventories

Licenced inventories shown as either other non-current assets or
other current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position
are stated at cost less impairment, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policies in

respect of goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases and licence fee income are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
and licence agreement. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties measured under fair
value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased assets are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as properties, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

The Group transfers prepaid lease payments to properties held
for development when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties for the Group’s redevelopment rather than owner
occupation. The previous carrying amount of the prepaid lease
payments becomes the cost of properties held for development upon
the date of transfer.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint arrangements that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit

or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before 1 January 2005
is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and
reported using the historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sales, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits

the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of

an asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
consolidated statement of profit or loss because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, the
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised of the temporary difference
arisen from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reserve in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value though profit and loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
financial asset. The net gain or loss for available-for-sale investments
excludes any dividend income or interest income earned.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, entrusted loans, amount due from
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, bills receivables, fixed
deposits held at banks with original maturity over three months and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
changes in exchange rate, if applicable, are recognised in profit or
loss. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the disappearance
of an active market for that financial asset because of financial

difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed for impairment on a collective basis even
if they were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event

occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bills payables
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the
higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to the Directors and employees of the Group
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually rest, with a
corresponding increase in share options reserve.

At end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 14 and 21)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that certain of the investment
properties located in PRC of carrying amount with approximately
HK$8,742,449,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$6,635,467,000)
are held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of such investment properties are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on LAT in respect of changes in fair value of such investment
properties but has recognised deferred tax on Enterprise Income Tax
on the assumption that these investment properties will be recovered
through use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continuea)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting

policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 14 and 21)
(continued)

The investment properties located in Hong Kong and United Kingdom
of carrying amount of HK$2,909,041,000 and HK$3,717,334,000
at 31 December 2016 respectively (2015: located in Hong Kong
and United Kingdom of approximately HK$2,893,330,000 and
HK$1,347,454,000 respectively) are not held under a business model
whose objective is to recover the economic benefits of the investment
properties entirely through use. No deferred tax is recognised in
respect of the fair value change in such investment properties as the
Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of investment
properties in Hong Kong and United Kingdom because no capital
gain tax arising from property sales in Hong Kong and no capital gain
tax arising from non-resident properties in United Kingdom.

Legal claim (note 35(b))

The Group is involved in legal proceeding as disclosed in note
35(b) to the consolidated financial statements. Management has
evaluated and assessed the claims made against the Group based
on legal advice from the Company’s lawyer and is of the view that the
judgement handed down on 24 March 2017 is in favour of KBCF and
the Company. Accordingly, no provision nor accrual are made in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill (note 18)

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change
in facts and circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash, a material impairment loss may arise. At 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$2,288,149,000 (2015:
HK$2,288,149,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are

disclosed in note 18.

Deferred tax assets (Note 21)

At 31 December 2016, deferred tax assets of (i) approximately
HK$12,522,000 (2015: HK$12,522,000) in relation to unused
tax losses for certain operating subsidiaries and (ii) approximately
HK$4,204,000 (2015: HK$15,686,000) in relation to write-down
of inventories have been recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of HK$1,322,194,000 (2015:
HK$1,354,126,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are less or more than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
taxable profit estimation, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period

in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and

equipment (note 15)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation charges for its properties, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of properties, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are expected to be shorter than previously
estimated, or it will write-off obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Change in these estimations may
have a material impact on the results of the Group. The management
reviews properties, plant and equipment to determine if there is
any indication that the assets may have been impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amounts of properties, plant and
equipment have been determined based on discounted cash flow
method of each asset or a CGU. During the year ended 31 December
2016, impairment loss of HK$39,000,000 (2015: nil) was recognised
because the recoverable amount was less than the carrying amount
of the relevant properties, plant and equipment. At as 31 December
2016, the carrying amounts of properties, plant and equipment are

approximately HK$13,545,102,000 (2015: HK$15,660,817,000).

Estimated impairment of trade receivables (note 24)

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition) where applicable. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes, in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables are approximately HK$5,237,066,000
(2015: HK$5,705,197,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of

HK$770,209,000 (2015: HK$689,923,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Allowances for inventories (note 22)

In determining the net realisable value of the Group’s inventories,
management estimated the recoverable amount of inventories
based on the most reliable information available at the time the
estimates are made. These estimates take into consideration the
fluctuations in price, the balance on hand relative to sales prospects
and the condition of the inventories. Reversal of write down of
HK$37,997,000 (2015: provision for write down of HK$16,822,000)
on inventories was recognised during the year ended 31 December
2016. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$1,779,065,000 (2015: HK$2,287,118,000).

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development (note 23)

In determining whether write down should be made to the Group’s
properties under development, the Group takes into consideration the
current market environment and the estimated market value (i.e. the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of selling expenses) less
estimated costs to completion of the properties. Write down is made
if the estimated market value less estimated cost to completion of the
properties is less than the carrying amount. If the actual net realisable
value on properties under development for sales is less than expected
as a result of change in market condition and/or significant variation
in the budgeted development cost, material write down may result.
As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of properties under
development was HK$15,810,227,000 (2015: HK$19,228,370,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Directors have a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair

value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the management
of the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group
will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level
2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques
that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported
to Directors. Any changes in the price per square metre in reference
with recent transactions will affect the fair value of the investment
properties of the Group. Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s

investment properties are disclosed in note 14.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the management
of the Group will assess the valuation of financial instruments based
on quoted bid prices of the previous trading day in the markets at
the end of each reporting period. The fair value of the Group’s bond
securities listed in the Stock Exchange, the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading (“SGX”), SIX Swiss Exchange (“SIX”) and Deutscher
Aktienindex (“DAX”) is determined with reference to the pricing
vendors’ estimation, who will assess its fair value taking into account
primarily the fair value quoted by the brokers which is adjusted for the
lack of marketability of the bond securities at the end of the reporting
period. Pricing vendors will exercise their judgements based on their
experience to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
technigues and inputs to the valuation model. Where there is a
material change in the fair value of the assets/liabilities, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the board of directors of the
Company. Any changes in the marketability of the listed bonds will
affect the fair value of the investments. Notes 33(c) and 20 provides
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of the Group’s

available-for-sale investments.
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5. REVENUE 5.

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable by
the Group from the sale of goods and services rendered to outside
customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes, and
rental income received and receivable, analysis of revenue for the year

E -

ERERASEREHIINEFPHEER
ORATI0 ~ RE R HEMRRTIR) A KR
TRz E M R ER S EFRARE R
RERHES WA - FFENEERSNN

is as follows: T
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T T4
Sales of laminates HEBINE R 12,230,171 11,284,105
Sales of chemicals SHEL TEMR 10,229,696 9,809,217
Sales of PCBs $HE EN R AR BE AR 7,478,095 7,103,780
Sales of properties HEYE 4,860,247 3,505,459
Rental income Ee WA 625,902 552,090
Others (Note) EAb (HIEE) 406,209 533,535
35,830,320 32,788,186

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2016, the amount included service
income of HK$29,002,000 (2015: HK$35,066,000), sales of LCDs and
magnetic products of HK$313,960,000 (2015: HK$436,070,000) and
income from hotel business of HK$63,247,000 (2015: HK$62,399,000).

ek : HEZZ—RF+ZA=1+—HLHF
& 0 ZAKE B 1 RS U A 29,002,000
B (=—ZT— R F : 35066,000 &
T HERSBETIELRUMEE
5 U A 313,960,00058 7T (—F — A
&+ 486,070,000 % 7T ) KA JE ¥
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6.

112

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating segments to be
identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM?”) in order to allocate resources to segments and
to assess their performance. Specifically, the Group’s operating
and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 were organised into five
main operating divisions — (i) manufacture and sale of laminates,
(i) manufacture and sale of PCBs, (iii) manufacture and sale of
chemicals, (iv) sales and rental of properties and (v) others (including
service income, hotel business and manufacture and sale of LCDs
and magnetic products). The management aggregated the sales of
properties and rental income business into one reportable segment
because the financial performance of both businesses are affected
by changes in the property market. In addition, the management
aggregated service income, hotel business and manufacture and
sale of LCDs and magnetic products into one reportable segment
because the revenue, results, assets and liabilities of each business
are insignificant to the Group. No other operating segments identified
by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Under HKFRS 8, segment information is based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the
executive directors, being the CODM of the Group. The measurement
policies the Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its HKFRS financial statements. The CODM
assesses segment profit or loss using a measure of operating profit
whereby certain items are not included in arriving at the segment
results of the operating segments (share of results of associates, gain
on disposal of and impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale
investments, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, finance costs, share-
based payments and unallocated corporate income and expenses).
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6- /]-J\%Bﬁ*sl'(@>
(@ Segment revenues and results (a) oHEEBREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and result T BZBRDEE D 2 AN EH
by reportable segments: ERERBMEE NI

Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others  Eliminations Consolidated

Year ended 31 December 2016

BRER

HK$'000
TEn

BEC-E-~ETZR

RIS R
HK$'000
TR

LIER
HK$'000
TiEn

L
HK$'000
TR

Hft
HK$'000
TiEn

i &8
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEn TiExn

ST-ALEE

Segment revenue NHEEE

External sales HIMEER 12,230,171 7478095 10,229,696 5,486,149 406,209 - 35,830,320

Inter-segment sales PHEHEER 1,692,041 - 508,952 - 2781 (2,204,674) 2
Total Aif 13,923,112 7478095 10,738,648 5,486,149 408990  (2,204,674) 35,830,320
Result E

Segment result PHEE 2,465,136 378,208 312823 1,701,060 8,567 4,865,884
Gain on disposal of avalleble-for-sele ~ MEARHERE 2 Uim

investments 465,247
(Gain on disposal of a subsidiary nE-HANBATRE MG 2,121,238
Impaiment loss recognised on R ERERD L

avallable-for-sale investments HEEE (27,764)
Share-based payments WRBEARR (20,910)
Unallocated corporate income KA DEMA 590,125
Unallocated corporate expenses AN (362,672)
Finance costs BERK (403,074)
Share of resus of associates EEBREDTEE 9,152
Proft before taxation TN 7,231,226
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION coniinueq) 6. THER @
(@ Segment revenues and results (continued) () oHEXBREE®E
Laminates QOthers  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
BAER A i 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT Thr
Year ended 31 December 2015~ HZE-F-1%+-A
St-RLEE
Segment revenue NHEEE
Extemal sales HIMEER 11,284,106 533,535 - 32,788,186
Inter-segment sales APRIHER 1,598,342 2052 (2,178,162 -
Total At 12,882,447 535,587 (2,178,162) 32,788,186
Result i
Segment result NHxE 1,603,961 (1,172 3,085,981
Gain on disposal of avalleble-for-sele  MEARHERE 2 Uim
investments 345,69
(Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLARIER Wi 33590
Impaiment loss recognised on AR ER AR
avalable-for-sale investments HEEE (314,209)
Share-based payments WRAF AR (62,764)
Unallocated corporate income KA DEMA 167,316
Unallocated corporate expenses AN (247 915)
Financ costs BEKK 439,779)
Share of results of associates EEBLNTEE (15,269
Proft before taxation TN 2,522,559
Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by B HEBRLETRER
both parties. EE -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6- ﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬂ(zé}
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) SBEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities T BZBRDEE D 2 AN EH
by reportable segments: BERBBEZDHN

Laminates PCBs
EHER

Chemicals  Properties Others Consolidated
IR tIER E Eff e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn TiEn T TiEn TiEn TiEn

At 31 December 2016

Assets
Segment assets
Avalable-for-sale investments
Interests in associates
Unallocated corporate assets
- Bank balances and cash
- Deferred tax assets
- Taxation recoverable
- Others

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilties
- Bank borrowings
- Taxation payable
- Deferred tax liabilties
- Others

Consolidated total liabilities

Ro®-AE+2A
=t+-A

&g

NHAE

AHHERE

RBERAIZER

APEZATRE
-RiTERRASE
-EHEEE
~AMEHE
-Hi

GRBEME

&
AR
APEZARRE
-HiE
~F&HA
-EEHARE
~Aft

GARELE

16,565,429

(2,563,045)

10,199,552

(1,702,484)

6,476,958 31,270,896

(798,092  (8,830,151)

723,194 65,236,029
6,537,266
1,950,874

1,841,366
3,347
10,204
832,317

76,420,553

(45,363)  (13,940,035)

(16,864,152)
(528,938)
(759,988)
(374,768)

(32,467,881)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinueq)

6.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

6. DEER
b) IWBEEREB®R)

Laminates PCBs Chemicals Properties Others  Consolidated
EoER  ERlgR LIER % f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FATL TAL b
At 31 December 2015 R-2-EF+=R
=t-A
Assets BE
Segment assets HHEE 15,522,125 9,653,690 8,140,625 31,320,711 818,526 065,456,277
Available-for-sale investments HHERE 2,403,069
Interests in associates REEAR R 2,086,039
Unallocated corporate assets OB AAEE
- Bank balances and cash -RTERRES 2,117,577
- Deferred tax assets -ERENEEAE 3420
— Taxation recoverable — e 24,890
- Others —Eih 829,725
Consolidated total assets GREESE 72,920,997
Liabilities 1
Segment liabiiies HBafE (1726929 (168720) (1106963  (4821,067) (49269 (9,391,435
Unallocated corporate liabilties FARZDAIEE
- Bank borrowings -RIIEE (20,710,671)
- Taxation payable — e (534,181)
- Deferred tax liabilties -EENEER (805,518)
- Others ~Hfth (138,465)
Congolcated total ligbilties eyttt (31,580,270)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RERSHBRR|EDBEH
allocating resources between segments: BR
. all assets are allocated to operating segments other o RIECEHRIBEE - ATl
than deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank CFTE - L&D EHER
balances and cash and others assets used jointly by FRAMRITERLRS
operating segments; and LEMEEN FIEE
ENBEEEEDE &
. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other o BRIBITEE - BLERIE

BE BERBERKE

than bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, taxation
payable and others liabilities for which operating
segments are jointly liable.

DERPHRIAENE MR
B9 ERESEE

ESER o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION coniinueq) 6. THER @
(c)  Other information (c) HEs
Unallocated
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others amount Consolidated
BEEGR ORERK  LIEm nE A RAELE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn TEn Thn
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E-AE1ZB
Z+-BLEE
Amounts included in the HEAHERY
measure of segment proft or loss PHEERA
o segment assets: iz 8
Capital additions ERER 149,755 376,413 241,630 3,565,730 8,048 - 4341576
Depreciation it 625,359 499,454 786,433 5,746 38,034 - 1,955,026
Release of prepaid lease payments BRREZEAE 8,425 4,288 1310 = 1,13 9 21218
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised (8182 SIEWERR
on trade receivables BALREEE (2,408) 68,559 20,531 - - - 86,682
(Reversal of wite down of inventories (BB 4TS (2,148) 22,057 (57,209 - (1,603) - (37,997)
Interest income MEHA 47,731 12,890 43,005 44,289 3% 78,177 226,134
Loss (gain) on disposal and write off of ~ HERHENE -
properties, plant and equipment BERFEL
Bals) 31,133 (303) 221 - 1,605 - 32,656
Gain on fair value changes of REMELTESY
investment properties 2 - - - 21,286 - - 21,286
Unallocated
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others amount - Consolidated
-1l tIER S i B ]
HK$'0 HK$'000
TAL i
Year ended 31 December 2015 BZ-2-1EtZR
=t-ALEE
Amounts included in the TEAHERY
measure of segment profit or loss AHEERFA
or segment assets: e
Capital additions ERER 522,267 504,099 182,809 4,229,577 5,69 - bd4d4.447
Depreciation e 735,607 546,194 879,356 3,489 51,833 - 2216479
Release of prepaid lease payments 1 EZERD 6,033 3,030 10,830 - 4,399 - 24,292
Impairment loss recognised on HBAERIETED
trade receivables ZhEEE 13,241 30,548 263 - - - 44,052
Interest income IELON 91,628 216 3820 162,199 37 100,101 358,001
Loss on disposal and write off of HERMENE -
properties, plant and equipment BEREEZER 12,081 806 42 203 - - 13,132
Fair value change of foreign exchange  SMNERZAXZ
forward contracts LTEES 453 - - - - - 453
(Gain on fair value changes of REWELNTERY
investment properties pd - - - 267,085 - - 267,085
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinued)

(c)

Other information (continued)
The Group operates principally in the PRC (country of
domicile).

The geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location based on where
the goods sold are delivered and services are rendered, is as
follows:

DEER

(c)

HipER (@)
AEEMN T B LB DB
EFR) -

REBERIEAE MEXE NP
AR B TE SNEL P P AR
HlEm - LAZI S & R R DTN
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-H=1+—HLFE

2016 2015

—E—KEF —E-RE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FAET

The PRC (country of domicile) AL (FTEEISR) 32,083,087 29,065,210
Other Asian countries (including Thailand, — HZsMER (B FEHRE -

Japan, Korea and Singapore) A7 - SRR TN ) 1,664,101 1,780,722
Europe BOM 1,527,199 1,384,251
America =M 555,933 558,003

35,830,320 32,788,186

No single external customer of the Group contributed over
10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the years ended 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2016.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
other than deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, deferred tax assets, other non-current assets
and available-for-sale investments by location of assets is
presented as follows:

HE-_ZT—RF+=-A=+—H
E—ZB—XRE+_A=t—Hit
BEE - REBIEE— 2 IMNB
EREAEEEEBEEBRI0% -

BB E  BERRECH
ZiRE  RERIBEE - Afn3E
MEVEE R AT ERESN - K
EEIERESEEREEI DT
E5T -

At 31 December

R+=—B=+-—H
2016 2015
= —F-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T TET
The PRC (country of domicile) B (FTFERIZR) 30,883,362 31,392,382
Thailand Z=E 235,633 276,930
United Kingdom k:a 3,800,566 1,347,455
34,919,561 33,016,767
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7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HMEWA - Wz KkESE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Other income, gains and losses includes: HiA ~ W REEaE
Income from relocation compensation B EWA 271,079 -
Interest income from available-for-sale investments 7] {ft H & 18& > | B ULA 104,376 182,840
Interest income from bank balances and cash IRITHEB RS ZF BIA 57,572 79,508
Interest income from entrusted loans ZREERZFERA 64,186 95,653
Dividends from available-for-sale investments A HERE 2 IR B A 168,382 171,236
Impairment loss recognised on properties, MY - BE REE
plant and equipment R B(EEE (39,000) -
Loss on disposal and write off of properties, HEMMEDE BEX
plant and equipment RIS ot (32,656) (13,132
Fair value changes of foreign exchange forward HNERHAEH 2 A TE
contracts #E) = (453)
Loss on disposal of prepaid lease payments HEBMNHEERBZERE - (325)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—MEtE N alER
ki - (8,977)
Others Hip 25,130 49,196
619,069 555,546
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. mEMAK
2016 2015
—EB—RE —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZF B 438,379 473,439
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of B BEREEKRAR
qualifying assets B eRE (35,305) (33,660)
403,074 439,779
Bank borrowing costs capitalised during the year includes the bank FERNZENBITEERN B AN FEE
borrowing costs of HK$30,796,000 (2015: HK$29,671,000) arose THAREHEXREEBEE ZIRTEER
from a bank borrowing specific for the property development project B A830,796,000/8 T ( —FE — R 4 -
and bank borrowing costs arose from the general borrowing pool 29,671,000 ) R —REEEL 7R
which were calculated by applying a weighted average capitalisation TEREFEKRAK  LAEEKREERIM
rate of 2.49% (2015: 1.0%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying BFHEREFEFE249%(ZE—H
assets. F 1 1.0%):1E -
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9.

120

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount comprises: THIBEIE

Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEB

FrEBipax

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —T—hF
HK$'000

HK$’000
TR TAT

Charge for the year REF 2 HEX 30,339 17,906
Overprovision in previous years BEFEBEREE (2,190) _
28,149 17,906
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS
Charge for the year REE 2B 850,571 474,860
Under (over) provision in previous years BEFERETR
(HBFERE) 866 (7,766)
851,437 467,094
PRC LAT HE I (E R 188,893 67,281
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions H el AR 2 BiE 5,333 4,626
Deferred taxation (Note 21) IRAER IR (FiFE21) 1,397 12,557
1,075,209 569,464

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has
been levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, represented by the excess of sales
proceeds of properties over prescribed direct costs. Prescribed
direct costs are defined to include costs of land, development and
construction costs, as well as certain costs relating to the property
development. According to the State Administration of Taxation’s
official circulars, LAT shall be payable provisionally upon sales of
the properties, followed by final ascertainment of the gain at the
completion of the properties development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9- Fﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁ i(,@-’i)

H ity FUAHER 2 BB YA B A A
ZEAREE -

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation as REE 2 BIE B R B AT & B 2 $ AR 0
follows: N
2016 2015
—E-—RF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation B A ) 7,237,226 2,522 559
Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate of 25% LAR 1> ZEFTEF & 25%
(2015: 25%) (Note a) (ZT—hF : 25%)
FTE 2 B (MisEa) 1,809,307 630,640
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax NI BER 2 MB 2
purpose 20,333 42,849
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERB WS 2 RS & (771,687) (80,170)
Tax effect of share of results of associates JEEEE DR B2 (2,288) 3,817
PRC LAT ARt IR (E R 188,893 67,281
Tax effect of PRC LAT AP B IR E T 2 B R 2 (47,223) (16,820)
Over provision in respect of prior years BAFERBEREG (1,324) (7,766)
Tax effect of Tax Concession (Note b) HEER 2 ST 2(H:Eb) (22,873) (49,814)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RTERBIEBE BB E 93,508 105,597
Utilisation of tax losses previous not recognised A RER BB EE (101,491) (20,340)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating BB N> 2 FTSHIEAN - AH
in other jurisdictions/areas other than tE AR, RS EHE
the domestic income tax rate NRAZ AR R 258 (26,567) (14,106)
Effect of tax exemption (Note c) HIER G 2 2 (W3Ec) (63,379) (91,662)
Others HAb = (42)
Tax expense for the year REE 2 BBREZ 1,075,209 569,464

Notes: s -

(@) The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2015: 25%) represents the (@) NEEMREBBE25%(ZE—H
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of which the Group’s operations are F 1 25%) AANEBKE D EBED
substantially based. FEIEAMEHE -

(b) Pursuant to the EIT Law, a High-New Technology Enterprise shall be (b) RIBDEMRERE - STt EaE
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for three years since it was officially EEHRUREE A =FMN15%FKHE
endorsed. Certain subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC obtained official BE - ARAETHRENEAREE S
endorsement as a High-New Technology Enterprise (“Tax Concession”). RE mm e ((HKEER]) -

(© Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau are () ARBINFSRM 2 BT HBARTES

exempted from profit tax.

A ER R BAATISH
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. XNFERF

Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

REREMDEMB (L)
IATNIER

2016
S

HK$’000
TR

2015
—T—hHF
HK$’000
T

Auditor’'s remuneration T EREMEN & 13,050 13,050
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses MERARY 2 FEKA 24,046,368 23,870,852
Cost of properties sold BEEWEKA 3,351,778 2,938,763
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment Yz - B R ETTE 1,955,026 2,216,479
Net exchange loss M 5 5 18 5 315,286 78,472
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables  Ft & 5 EUBR FUER 2 REE

(included in administrative expenses) B(EFTATTHRER) 86,682 44,052
(Reversal of) write down of inventories (BEREDMRTTE

(included in cost of sales) (T ASHERA) (37,997) 16,822
Loss on disposal and written off of property, e R E - BB &

plant and equipment Bl -t 32,656 13,132
Release of prepaid lease payments TR ERIE 2 # R 21,218 24,292
Total staff costs, other than share-based payments 8 T A 42%8 (AR AT

(including directors’ emoluments, see Note 11) NFEERIN) - BEEEMNE

(RBIEE11) 2,779,056 2,500,762

Direct operating expenses in relation to BRREYENEEREE

investment properties AR 118,948,456 91,235,214

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11. ES > THEARKEE
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS &

EEME
ENSEN 22T

(@) Directors’ emoluments (@)
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows:

2016 2015

—T—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Fees we 1,322 1,424

Other emoluments: Hivf e -

Salaries and other benefits e MEMmER 14,148 14,498
Contributions to retirement benefits RINEFIF SR

scheme 707 669

Performance related incentive payment TVERIRIGIEE A 95,624 80,660

Share-based payments AR S 3R 18,600 56,488

130,401 153,739

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 258t TEEER AR



+—HiEEE

—_A=

T—RF+

—-=

B BHERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &=

N

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n

H0r'0eH 06 008 ] 054 i1 08y 06} Jids ) £85'8} 859'8} 66€6+ (4 £L0'e W SJuBLLNOWS [El0.
0098} - - - - - - - 068 - 60 128l e e’ eeky
129'56 - - - - - - - 0862 88l 0vg'el 0ve'yl vyl 0992} 08192

[ BECLE T NIUSOU DRJBRI BOUBLLIOYSY
10 - - - - - - - 15 6 18 61 al a ek QU8 SYAURY
VBT UeWIBI 0) SUONQUIO)

8kl - - - - - - - i g £29' 587 (4194 (4194 6297 IEHENTE  SWAUSO Jalio pUB SaUeeS
TimE SjusWNjows JeulQ
@ 06 008 ] 054 11 08y 06} - - - - - - o T 5584

(1))
1 3j0N) 1 310N) (110N) | 3j0N)
Ygs Ygs gt gt gt gt X X gt gt gt gt u gt
000SYH 000SYH 000$YH 000$%H 000$%H 000$%H 000$%H 000$%H 000$)H 000$)H 000.$XH 000.$XH 000.$XH 000.$XH 000$YH
#9 HEg MER 11 1 HEE BEE SHE 1Bt HEL Y ] E7 40 EEL 2]
1E101 Buny Buyg yaqoy Nl nyy Jaydojsuyy ey Buygey  Busysoey  aiueydels  Bueg uemy nig
wey| Bury Buip ury 1) 30y Buy Bunayg Buayy ‘ur lem UIA Buomy Buig

5] Bue) Bunyy Buoyy Bunay eM Bunayy Bunayy o4 Bunayy Bueyy Bunayy
2] Buayy

EEUEHTE EELR
$10}0811p AN3Xa-UOU JuspUadapu] $10}0311p AN0AX3
HHTH-{=H- V-2 28
9407 49GWa93Q |§ PapUa eaj

A T e LI E) SMOJ|0} SB 8JaM ‘BAIIN8Xa Jalyd syl Bulpnioul
EB5(RT4 BT —F0) TN ENEND ‘sJ0108.410 (9APM] (G LOZ) USauN0} 8y} JO Yyoes 0] ojgeied Jo pred sjuswinjows ay|
(BEWWEE (o) (penunuoo) sjuswinjow s1030ai1q  (e)

Penuiuedl g ) NFINNTOWE . STIAO0TdINT
FTWEH AL  EE LI ANV S.3AILND3IX3 43IHD .SHOLD3dIa "LL

123

T-RNFER

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BHERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &=

N

n

+—HiEEE

—EF-AET-AS

cMNFEUWEEETYHASHEETIM
SEDGHTEIWT - NEUGSPESY

‘Auedwo) 8y} Jo sJojoalIp
SB S90IAISS JIBy} 104 AJUlBW 81oM SAOCE UMOYS SIUSWN|OWS SI0}08JIP SAIIND9XS-UoU
Juspuadepul "dnois) sy} pue Auedwo) 8y} JO Jlege ey} Jo Juswabeuew 8y} YiMm UOIO8UU0D

HNETYHEEMUEETEWEELEI|T () Ul S80IAISS J18U] J0J AJUIBW 818M BAOCE UMOUS SIUSWN[OWS ,SI01084Ip 9AIIN08X8 ay | )
o Y
UGBS HE LN EEVE  HXS sJeah 4100 Bupnp soisijels jexew ajoe eduwiod pue soueuLOpad [enpIAIpUl ‘SHNSa
W E B MAE S H (R BB ) T (in) Bunieiedo 8y} 0} 8oUBIBNR) YIM pauILLISIep SI JuswAed eAnusoUl palejel souewIopad ay) ()
cHFH=F THEHN - THFYH
Wi e HEH-—EFHN—ETHTH-H—+ ‘9102 KB\ £ UO painel pagoy ‘Buipy, Buny) re A Aleanoedses 910z
EAVAR N e e e ® AP | pue 910z JBQWIBAON | UO paubisas BunH Wwey| 8s1 “JN pue Buiys Bury Buel " 0)
c ER LWL E
EBOYHHEHH -+ 2" WE-H ‘Alpnioadsal 910 4890300 | pue 910z AP | uo Auedwod eu} Jo Jojoauip
FHNETHECFYRABENFEEEY (0] BAIIN0BXB-UOU JUspuadapul Ue se peluiodde alem niyy fe| BunsT "I\ pue 1y Uy Buoy) g ()
Ty :S810N
66.'05} 09¢ 09¢ 70¢ 087 0¢ 18961 691 709'1¢ 856'6C 80562 65'L2 08’26 EHTH SUsUINOWS 210
887'96 - - - - - 6968 - 6968 6928 6928 0970k 4 EEAY MY sjueLifed paseq-oieyg
099'08 - - - - - 002'9 099' 009tk 00v'2h 00'ck 0%y} 00022 B 810N 1uaw/fed
[ BEMEY T ONIUSOU Pajefe) B0UBWIOUEd
699 - - - - - & % u i i i i) aWas SR
WHEILYEE  UeWaIRI 0} SUOjgUIUo)
86v'71 - - - - - 0v0'} erv'l £95'} §l¥'e 197 19 1612 VBN T S)j8USq JBUI0 pUe SeliefeS
et SIUBWNIOWS Ay
eyl 09¢ 09¢ ¥0¢ 087 0¢ - - - - - - - Th S804

1y

000$YH

Bydoisuy

%0

M

Buayn

$I0}08J1p BAINOBX3-UOU JUBpUadepU|

P E SN

NI

Lot +
000.$¥H
FEH ]

Uep Buys ey

Bunsyn

H3H—4=H=+%
G107 Ja0We0a(] 1§ PapuUa Jesg

£E LI

000.$¥H

Buaysoep

Lgd
000.$YH
EEE
alUeydaig

u\r«ﬂ Lﬂ
000$MH

m_hn«ﬂ l\‘v
000.$4H
B3 BEY
Bueg Uemy|
UlA Buomy
OH Buneyn

gt
000.$¥H

[
Buim
Yomy|
Buneyn

W W =
SI0}08IID BAIN0BYT

(peNURUOD) SJUBWINIOWD ,S10}103lI0

(e)

perned §1NJWNTONS STIAOTdINT
ANV SAAILND3AXI 43IHO .SHOLO3HIA “kL

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 258t TEEER AR

124



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Chief Executive’s emoluments

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors had
waived or agreed to wavie any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Employees’ emoluments
For the year ended 31 December 20186, four (2015: five) of the
highest paid employees are Directors and the Chief Executive.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the emoluments of
the remaining one (2015: nil) individual were as follows:

1. B TREABREES

(b)

()

SZ (#8)

THHERMNE
EKBEE TN BARRRITERE
o AR EXWE - BP&
NE G RITRAARIR M2 RS
Z3REH o

THAHKEMNESREREE
“ERERCTE-RET A
=T RLEFEREXRBRE
ERBE -

EEME
HEZT—RF+ZA=+—H
HFE N&E(ZE—RHF R
E)mEHFATEHBHREER
ITIRAEE, -

BE-T-—AF+=A=+—
ALFE BT—&(-F-5
F ) ALOBSHFIIT

HK$’000
FET

Salaries and other benefits e REMER 2,566
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RIAEHE B 128
Performance related incentive payment TERIRIERAER B 18,760
Total emoluments < 4B %8 21,454

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid to or receivable by the Directors or
the Group’s five highest paid individuals, including Directors,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

HEZZ - FR-ZT—1F
TZA=Z+—BILFE  E=R
REERERSFAL(BERZ
=) ED e ER TS
VeSS B sk N BB RS & 1
2 SEE R E AR E -
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11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

126

(d)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

As disclosed in note 39, the Group entered into sale and
purchase transactions with the subsidiaries of a shareholder
with significant influence on the Group. The price was
determined and agreed between the parties with reference to
the prevailing market price.

In addition, the Group purchased properties from subsidiaries
of a shareholder with significant influence on the Group. The
price was determined after arm’s length negotiations between
the parties with reference to the valuation reports prepared by
Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, Chang Wing Yiu, Cheung Kwong
Kwan and Ho Yin Sang, the executive directors of the
Company, are interested in these transactions to the extent
that they have beneficial interests in these companies.

Save for the aforementioned transaction, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company or the Group was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE
12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2016
—EB-REF
HK$'000
FET
Dividends declared and paid EERRIKERE
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December Hz—_ZT—XRFt+=A
2016 of HK30 cents (2015: HK20 cents) —t+t—RHIEFEZHE
per ordinary share i B AR @AR30E L
(== — % : 20311) 307,680 205,120
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 &Z2 —ZE—HF+_H
of HK30 cents (2015: final dividend for the year =t+—BIFE 2 RE
ended 31 December 2014 of HK30 cents) A% B A% 5 AR 307811l
per ordinary share (ZE—0F &=
—E—MOF+=A
=t+—HIEFEZRE
A% 2307811 307,680 307,680
615,360 512,800
2016
—E—RHF
HK$’000
FET
Dividends proposed EBERE
Proposed final dividend for the year ended BREE—_T—F1+=A
31 December 2016 of HK70 cents (for the year —t+—HIEFEZRPEE
ended 31 December 2015: HK30 cents) R TR 70BIL (B E
per ordinary share —E-RFE+ZA=+—H
1FFE  3078(l) 726,880 307,680
Proposed special final dividend for the year ended EHEE_Z—~F+_A
31 December 2016 of HK30 cents (for the year =+ —BILEE 2 FRIRE

ended 31 December 2015: Nil) per ordinary share A% 8.8 1% & @B AZ 305511
(Bz==—Z—h%+=A

=+—HIEFE : 8F) 311,520 -

1,038,400 307,680
The final dividend of HK70 cents and special final dividend of HK30 EEERREBE_ZTE—XRF+=A
cents per ordinary share amounting to HK$726,880,000 and =+ —RALEFERERARETRE A
HK$311,520,000 respectively (FY2015: final dividend of HK30 cents RE70BIL(ZE—RF 30781 KEHI
and nil of special final dividend per ordinary share amounted to REMR B R EBARIOBW(ZE—HR
HK$307,680,000 and nil, respectively) in respect of the year ended 31 F:8%F) ¥R A726,880,000
December 2016 have been proposed by the Directors and is subject B (ZZE—AHF : 307,680,000 7T)
to approval by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming }311,520,0008 L (ZF—HF : &8
annual general meeting. B) o MEFARFIRERFEEKRRE

FREHA - TAFE -
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the following

data:

Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic and

diluted earnings per share

13. BREF

ARABEAANBIEERER R EERT
BT BIETE

2016 2015
—T—hHF

HK$’000
TR

HK$'000
TAT

AESRERNEERNZ

ZF 5,026,831 1,650,323

Number of shares

R B

2016

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BIREARNZ BB

for the purpose of basic earnings per share E 8 1,028,230,273  1,025,600,236
Add: Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares ik REEEREERN
arising from share options BBRTEERE
Tmke e 3,016,559 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares SFRREER T 2 LB nEF
for the purpose of diluted earning per share HE 1,031,246,832 1,025,600,236

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2016 did not take into account the effects of share options
of the Company granted on 21 March 2011 and Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (“KLHL”"), the listed subsidiary of the Company, as
the exercise prices of the outstanding share options were higher than
the average market prices of the Company’s and KLHL’s shares

during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 did not take into account the effects of share options
of the Company and KLHL, as the exercise prices of the outstanding
share options were higher than the average market prices of the
Company’s and KLHL'’s shares during the year ended 31 December

2015.

REBE-_T—R"F+_A=+—RHL%F
B s EESRE SR NI EE B
RARZE——F=A=+—-BRAEAR
Bz~ LHHB A RRERERER
BRAR([ZERER ) ETMEAT
EZEEBEE  AEE_F R F
TZA=T-HIEFEZFELERE
ZITEE  BEARR REBERBRK
TS TIHERSD °

REE-ZE—AF+_A=+—HILF
EN - i ETREESAF KT EEZER
NARBERER 2 MARITEZELE
i AHE—E—RAF+-A=+—
ALEFEARARB REBERERZ MATT
7 BB ZITEE - HRER D
WmETrHERES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14, BEYE

HK$’000
TAT

FAIR VALUE AEE
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—hF—A—H 10,192,857
Exchange adjustments bE 5 A EE (460,976)
Additions NE 4,561
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 30(b)) hde WG Esselo](9) 355,843
Transfer from properties held for development (Note (a)) i FERYEME@E) 109,729
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment (Note (b)) LT%E Y% - B KRR (MEEb) 407,162
Increase in fair value NFEE 267,085
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=-A=+—H 10,876,251
Exchange adjustments PE 5, = (789,336)
Acaquisition of a subsidiary (Note 30(a)) Uk BE R 8~ 7] (FI5E380(@)) 2,638,294
Transfer from properties held for development (Note (a)) ﬁﬁéé FEREME(ME@) 2,622,329
Increase in fair value NFEEE 21,286
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+-_A=+—H 15,368,824
Notes: Bt T
(@) During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, certain properties (a) HE-Z—RAFER=-ZT—XRF+=A
held for development were reclassified to investment properties upon =t-— EIJJ:@V ESE kv =y
change in use as evidenced by commencement of operating leases with CETHEME T BREY  ETE%
independent third parties (see note 23). BOMESHHBEEREME(RM
23) e
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group changed the use of (b) HE-_ZT—RF+=-A=+—8H Jti
certain of its leasehold properties and had leased them out to independent g ZFEEIE&&EHET%%FFJ&

third parties for rental income. Upon the transfer from properties, plant and
equipment to investment properties, these properties were revalued with a

gain on revaluation of approximately HK$309,429,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recognised
gain on fair value change of investment properties amounted to
HK$21,286,000 (2015: HK$267,085,000). The fair value of the
Group’s investment properties at the date of transfer from properties,
plant and equipment and properties held for development to
investment properties during the years ended 31 December 2015

HEFBILFE=T7 - NEL Tﬁ%”ﬁz)\
EREWE - BERRETERERED

X5 B SWEETERS - Bt
#1/3309,429,000/ 7T ©

BE-_E—RNF+-_A=+—HILEE
N REBRREENELNTEES
U % /21,286,000 T ( — T — R F :
267,085,000/8 7T ) °
%#aﬁ:f AF+-A=+—A8K

T—AF+_A=Zt+—HBLEFEAY

AEBEZEREY

and 31 December 2016, and as at 31 December 2015 and 2016 had
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date
by Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuers
not connected with the Group. Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was
determined based on direct comparison method by reference to the
market observable transactions of similar properties and adjusted to

reflect conditions and locations of subject properties.

% B KR BAR S EREBRE
KREMENBHRER _T-AFR_-F
—ARF+ZA=t+—BZAFENRE
ZIKEIIEFEEZ?‘%I BRhERZE
mﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁi C R REITRE
HEER - zﬁ%l RAHEERAR R
%-i/% E”EEW;QQE =REETIZE
BUMEZTEETSR I UERLER
AR TE I FEE A R BRFTS ) R e GR1F Ke
& o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (ontinued)

130

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the Directors
of the Company has set up a valuation committee, which is headed
up by the person in charge of financial matters of the Group, to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair

value measurements.

The Group engages an independent valuer to perform its valuations.
The valuation committee works closely with the independent valuer
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The person in charge of financial matters reports the valuation
committee’s findings to the board of directors of the Company every
quarter to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets

and liabilities.

All the Group’s investment properties were classified as Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
There were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy during the year.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation

technique and inputs used).

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of
financial position

rRa MBI RS
REEREZREME

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
(GAEETT
TEHARIE

Industrial properties in Direct comparison method

Hong Kong with price per square
metre
REBH TR % BEELEEREBTHK

&
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%) e

Significant unobservable
inputs

BRNAIEER

T A B

Price per square metre, using
market direct comparable and
taking into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of
property etc., which is ranged
from HK$41,129 to HK$41,980
(2015: HK$41,108 to
HK$41,789) per square metre.
RAMSEEILRYERE
AL E DA K B Ath 18 51l = 4% (40
FRITER - MEXRNE)NET
FOREE - N F41,1208 T E
41,9808 (ZE—HF : NF
41,1087 L E41,789/87T) °

Jp———

14. REVHE »)

REEHREBENENLTE  ARFES
ERVAELZES
ERALTHE  URATEFEET
EE O AERM R E AR -

=&

C HAAEAREERE

AEBBFE 2B AHEMETHEE -
HMEZBSRBYAEMEZAE B
MEEEEENEERTREARK
B BEMBEBNALTEFTAARA
EFeREHEZEENER - URE
BEMABRATFENRBRA -

—RETZAZT—HAKZZE
—hF+ZA=t+—B AEEZFE
REWEDERBE-BRATESR - F
NI EATFESRZE2EE -

TREJZEREMEZAFEEE
7 LEZ B S E R R AR

Sensitivity

A significant increase in the
price per square metre used
would result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FFIRBRKRIE LT
BREMENRFEFEARL
Tt RZIFA e
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES(continued) 14- ?Qﬁ%%(z§>

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of ~ Valuation techniques Significant unobservable

financial position and key inputs inputs Sensitivity

e B RS AR & BANAEER

REERFBZIREME =+ Zig) A B B ABUR BRE

Commercial properties Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using A significant increase in the
in the New Territories, with price per square market direct comparable and  price per square metre used
Hong Kong metre taking into account of location  would result in a significant

and other individual factors increase in the fair value

such as road frontage, size of  measurement of the investment
property etc., which is ranged  properties, and vice versa.
from HK$54,197 to HK$55,026
(2015: HK$54,390 to
HK$55,166) per square metre.

REBRANEAYE BELEEREFETK KAMSEEALEMERE SFFRERKREEABEE

EE BRENREMERNEEZZ(N REMENATFEFEXNEL

FRETERE - MERDNE)INET A R2MA -
FAREE  NTF54,1978LE
55,026 T (ZE—hF : NF
54,3907 7L 255,166/ 7T)

Commercial properties in -~ Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using A significant increase in the

Hong Kong Island, with price per square market direct comparable price per square metre used
Hong Kong metre and taking into account of would result in a significant
location and other individual increase in the fair value
factors such as road frontage, = measurement of the investment
size of property etc., which properties, and vice versa.

is ranged from HK$161,460
to HK$163,347 (2015:
HK$161,255 to HK$162,430)
per square metre.
REBEEESNAMAME BERELEERFTHK HRAMSEZTLERMERE SYFRERARLEAGER
EE BAENREMERIEZZ (N REMENRTEFEAEL
RATE MEANNFINTTE A RZBPA -
FOREE + NF161,4608 T
F163,3478L(ZE—RF -
N F161,2558 T2 162,430/
TT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (ontinued)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of
financial position

e B RSP
REEFBZIREME

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERM &
TEHABRE

Commercial properties in - Direct comparison method

Shanghai with price per square
metre
R_EBH AT BELEEREFTK
&E

Commercial properties in
Guangzhou

Direct comparison method
with price per square
metre

REME R BERLEBEREFIIK

EE
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Significant unobservable
inputs

EATABE
BB

Price per square metre, using
market direct comparable

and taking into account of
location and other individual
factors such as road frontage,
size of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB28,000 to
RMB31,000 (2015: RMB28,100
to RMB30,600) per square
metre.
RAMSEEALEYERE
FEALE DA R EoAth {1 B = 4% (40
FRETEER - MEXNF)NFF
TRERE - N ARYE28,000
TEARMS1,000L(ZE—H
F:NFARKE28,100TEA
R ®30,6007T) °

Price per square metre, using
market direct comparable

and taking into account of
location and other individual
factors such as road frontage,
size of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB16,500 to
RMB22,500 (2015: RMB16,500
to RMB22,500) per square
metre.
KAMSEERLEMERE
e B LA K EAth 18 51 Rl &= 4% (40
FRiTER - MEXNNE)NET
FREE - N FAR16,500
TEARE22 500 (=2 —H
F: NFARKE16,500TEA
R#22,5007T) °

14. REVHE »)

Sensitivity

BRE

A significant increase in the
price per square metre used
would result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FFIRERAE LT
KEMENRFEAEAEL
Tt RZIMA e

A significant increase in the
price per square metre used
would result in a significant
increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FFIRERAE LT EE
KEMENRFEAEAEL
Tt RZIFA e
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES(continued) 14- ?Qﬁ%%(z§>

Investment properties

held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of ~ Valuation techniques Significant unobservable

and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
EATABE

financial position
e B RS HERM &
REERFBZIREME =+ Zig) A B 9 A\ SR BRE

Commercial properties in -~ Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using A significant increase in the
Shenzhen with price per square market direct comparable price per square metre used
metre and taking into account of would result in a significant

ISZSU I FE)EEYES
EE

BEERLEBEREFIIK

location and other individual
factors such as road frontage,
size of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB14,800 to
RMB14,980 (2015: RMB14,500
to RMB15,000) per square
metre.
RAMSEZALEYERE
FEALE DA R EoAth {1 B = 4% (40
FRETEER - MEXNF)NFF
TRERE - T ARME14,800
TEARA14,980T(ZF—H
F:NFARKE14,500TEA
R¥15,0007T) °

increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

FFIRERAE LT
KREMENRFEAEAEL
Tt RZIMA

Commercial Shops in Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using A significant increase in the
Qingyuan with price per square market direct comparable price per square metre used
metre and taking into account of would result in a significant

location and other individual
factors such as road frontage,
size of property etc., which

is ranged from RMB9,375 to
RMB9,500 (2015: RMB9,500 to
RMB10,000) per square metre.

increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

RIBENE R BEEREBEREFIIK RAETSERALENERE SFHKERARELABER
EE B ENAREMERRZ®R(N REMENAFEFTEKREL

BRATER - WENNE)NTTE
FKREE  NTAREQ,I75
TEAREIS00T(ZZE—H
F: NFARE0TEAR
#10,0007T) °

Tt RZIFA e
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (ontinued) 14.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of ~ Valuation techniques Significant unobservable

financial position and key inputs inputs
e B RSP HERM & BANAEER
REEFBZIREME =+ Zig A B EEPNE 67

REWE

Sensitivity

BRE

Commercial properties in ~ Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using A significant increase in the

London with price per square market direct comparable and  price per square metre used
metre taking into account of location  would result in a significant
and other individual factors increase in the fair value

such as road frontage, size of  measurement of the investment
property etc., which is ranged  properties, and vice versa.

from GBP5,016 to GBP9,293

(2015: GBP5,501 to GBP8,400)

per square metre.

N GE GOTE)EEES BERLBEREFIIK RATSERAILENERE SFHKERARLARER
B BAEAREMERNERZRZ(N REMENAFEFEKNEL

BREHER  WEXNENEFE A RZNTAR-e
FAKEE  NTF5,016HES

9,203 (=T —HF :

5,501 585 58,4005 4% )

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use. There has been no change to
the valuation technique during the year.

Certain investment properties with a carrying value of

HK$1,780,000,000 (2015: HK$1,780,000,000) have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND 15. 1% - BMENRSEE
EQUIPMENT

Properties,
Furniture, Plant and
fixtures equipment
Leasehold plant and Licenced and  Transportation under
Freehold lands Buildings  improvements machinery assets equipment equipment  construction
RE &R %E RYE
XAEELH Be HOUREE  HERER ER&E e EaRE  ERRRR
HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T#n TEn TER Tn T#n TEn TR Tn
(Note i)
(P&
CosT HA
At 1 January 2015 R=F-15-A-H 54,001 3,115,603 1,079,332 26,428,163 2,509,840 1,601,518 162,533 746,487 35,607,477
Exchange adjustments Eii 5% 079 83,108) GO0 (1,39,19%) (145534) 92,160) (7876) 72078 (1,806,830)
Addtions HE - 2460 35,988 546,569 15,072 60,811 7875 542,961 121,736
Acquistion of a subsidiary EMBAR(HE300)

Note 30(c) - a3 - 580 - 1 - - 277908

Disposals and write of HERHH - - (16,648) (839,:889) (30.249) (34,680) (10672 (25,934 (967,072)
Disposal of a subsialary (Note 31(0)) tHEHB A (H531(0) - - - - - - - (329) (39)
Surplus on revaluation (note )  EfEETEAE(HE) - - 309,429 - - - - - 309,429
Transfer to investment properties  BEZRANE - - (455,543) - - - - - (455,543)
Reclassifications ERpE - 45,162 8219 206,742 - 18,384 3% (298,543) -
At 31 December 2015 RZF-RF+ZA=1-R 53,722 3,352,434 995,176 24,966,971 2,340,129 1,563,884 151,896 892,564 34,266,776
Exchange adjustments B 5% 082) 83802) (5726 (1,361326) (148,184) 89.048) 7,710) 88701 (1,789,779)
Addtions HE - 86,972 71,978 238,494 33,389 35,014 11,133 369,381 836,361
Disposals and write of HERHH - 3351) (1018) (620,608 (38,565 (16,536) (16,083) (16,955) 713,116)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 31(a)) HEHBAT (H3E316) - - - - - 9 - - (2
Reclassifications EHAE - 80,026 4482 285,271 - 48,639 319 (368,697) -
At 31 December 2016 e t:a s 53,440 3427219 1,024,892 23,458,802 2,186,769 1,531,844 139,615 777,592 32,600,233
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT  #7 & R &
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-1F-f-H - 693,850 449,164 14,236,925 1,946,539 812,212 107,105 - 18,246,855
Exchange adjustments EiiB% - 10599 (3312 757.731) (117,357) [44.927) (6,133) - (940,059)
Provided for the year TEERE - 24901 93,149 1,848,918 109,865 128,748 10872 - 2216479
Eliminated on transfer to ERERENENTE

investment property - - (48,391) - - - - - (48,391)
Elminated on disposals and write off H&H st Tk i - - (15,466) (192,845) (19,651) (30,092) (9371) - (867,929)
At 31 December 2015 RM-E-RE+-A=1-H - 708,178 475,144 14,535,267 1,919,396 865,501 102473 - 18,605,959
Exchange adjustments EiB% - (11,229 (3812 (796,759) (125,097) 18233 (6207) - (091,337)
Provided for the year TEERE - 26,048 81,608 1,626,073 92,084 119,074 9,639 - 1,965,026
Eliminated on clisposals and write off &5 R4 - (330) (896) (508,852) (15.482) (16,494) (11,458) - (83512)
Disposal of a subsiolary (Note 31(a)) (HEMB LA (H3t31(a) - - - - - () - - 6)
Impaiment loss recognisedin -+~ RNERER 2 HERE

profit or loss (Note (i) (Fzm) - - - 39,000 - - - - 39,000
At 31 December 2016 RZE-EtZA=1-8 - 723,167 562,044 14,894,729 1,870,901 919,843 94,447 - 19,085,131
CARRYING VALUES s
At 31 December 2016 RZE-7EtZA=1-A 53440 2,704,112 472,848 8,564,073 315,868 612,001 45,168 777592 13,545,102
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RETZA=1-H 53,722 2,644,256 480,032 10,431,704 420,733 688,383 49423 892,564 15,660,817
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQU IPMENT (continued)

The above items of properties, plant and equipment other than those
under construction are depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking
into account of their residual values at the following rates per annum:

Freehold lands

Nil

Buildings* Over the remaining unexpired
terms of leases from twenty to
fifty years

Leasehold improvements 10-20%

Plant and machinery* 10-20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10-33"/:%

Transportation equipment™ 10-20%

* Including those grouped under licenced assets.

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s freehold lands of HK$53,440,000
(2015: HK$53,772,000) are situated outside Hong Kong.

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group changed the use of
certain of its leasehold properties and had leased them out to independent
third parties for rental income. Upon the transfer from properties, plant and
equipment to investment properties, these properties were revalued with a
gain on revaluation of approximately HK$309,429,000.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recognised an
impairment loss amounting to HK$39,000,000 because the estimated
future cash flows generated by these assets were less than their carrying
amounts during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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15.

M- BERRE®

BREEZME  BELREN - Ly
X BERRERBETRENSRERE
BIABRERER T F R R

&®

KAERELIH RE

B M A AT
RERFHIAR
20F B50FTE

MBS 10-20%

BB Ktk zs 10-20%

B~ B NERE 10-337:%
B 10-20%

* BREARBEREE AR -

R-_B—XRE+-_A=+—8 K&
[ £ 553,440,000 L (ZF — A F -
53,772,000 7T ) sk A EERE L M A &/
BB o

PIRE -

0 BE-_Z-AF+-A=+—HLHF
B AEEREETHAOMERS 1
HRFBIE=F - NESHASWKA -
ERME  BEREERERZIREY
X5 RREMEETER  BREKE
#7/5309,429,000/ 7T °

(i) HE-ZT—XR"F+-A=+—HLHF
- AEERER S A39,000,00078 7T
HREETE @ RRSEEEENGR
RREREINBEE_T—F+=A
=+ ALFEHSNREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQU I PM ENT (continued)

15. ¥ - BMERRE =

feE - ()

Notes: (continued)

(i) Details of licenced assets: (i) BREFEAEEFS -
Plant and Transportation

Buildings machinery equipment Total
gF RS R e EE EHRY A&t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET BT

COST A
At 1 January 2015 R-E—RF—A—H 370,407 2,129,590 9,843 2,509,840
Exchange adjustments Rk (21,625) (123,343) (566) (145,534)
Additions AE - 15,072 - 15,072
Disposals and write off & R gs - (39,249) - (39,249)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—hF

+—-A=+—H 348,782 1,982,070 9,277 2,340,129
Exchange adjustments PE 5,5 (22,160) (125,436) (588) (148,184)
Additions NE 890 32,499 - 33,389
Disposals and write off & ey - (38,565) - (38,565)
At 31 December 2016 RZZT—XF

+=-—A=+—8 327,512 1,850,568 8,689 2,186,769
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT  $7 8 K Wi
At 1 January 2015 R-_T—RAF—H—H 151,264 1,785,432 9,843 1,946,539
Exchange adjustments R (9,105) (107,686) (566) (117,357)
Provided for the year AE RS 6,647 103,218 - 109,865
Eliminated on disposals and write off €5 B 5T §54 M fifl #4 - (19,651) - (19,651)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—HF

+=-A=+—8 148,806 1,761,313 9,277 1,919,396
Exchange adjustments Gk (9,699) (114,810) (588) (125,097)
Provided for the year IR E R 5,929 86,155 - 92,084
Eliminated on disposals and write off €5 B 5+ £ K2 i # - (15,482) - (15,482)
At 31 December 2016 NZZT—XRF

+—-HA=+—H 145,036 1,717,176 8,689 1,870,901
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2016 R-IT—R%F

+=-—A=+—8 182,476 133,392 - 315,868
At 31 December 2015 RZZT—AF

+—-—A=+—H 199,976 220,757 - 420,733
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQU IPMENT (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

Details of licenced assets: (continued)

On 3 August 2011 and 30 August 2013, a subsidiary of Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited (‘KBCF” or the “Licensor”) (KBCF is a listed
subsidiary of the Company), entered into a licence agreement and a letter
of extension and amendments with Harvest Resource Management Limited
(the “Licencee”), an independent third party, to licence KBCF’s copper foil
manufacturing facilities located at Fogang and Lianzhou to the Licencee
for the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2015. On 28 August
2015, the Licensor entered into a letter of extension and amendments
with Licencee and extended the licence period for a further two years to
31 August 2017. The details of the licence arrangement which remained
unchanged, are as follows:

(@) to use the leasehold properties, comprising factory buildings in
Fogang and Lianzhou;

(b) to use, consume and dispose of the inventories which shall
include consumables and stocks in trade; and

(© to use the machinery, together with all other equipment and
facilities as from time to time located at the properties in Fogang
and Lianzhou.

The licenced properties, plant and equipment tabulated above and
the licenced inventories in note 17 were licenced for licence income of
HK$10,000,000 per month payable in advance on the first day of each and
every calendar month, as a measure by KBCF to generate income from
the manufacturing facilities, pending the resolution of the interested party
transactions issue, relating to the manufacturing and trading of copper foil,
with the non-controlling shareholder of KBCF (note 35(b)) and the approval
of the interested party transactions mandate by the shareholders and/or
when KBCF clinched new third parties customers for the sales of copper
foil. Accordingly, the licenced properties, plant and equipment have been
reclassified as licenced assets under properties, plant and equipment.
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15. ¥ - BMERRE =

B ()

(i)

EREEREERS - (B

RZE——FNA=ZBR=ZFT—=F
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BAR-ZT——FNA—HEZZT—Hh
FNA=Z+—BILERE - FREREA
15 FAKBCFAz 785 i) R 321 B9 RS Bl i
Fie RZT—RAFENAZTNE &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE
=
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FANHERKIE
Movements of prepaid lease payments are as follows: TERNAERE 2 FEINT
HK$'000
T4
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—AF—H 1,006,977
Exchange adjustments P& A% (45,715)
Additions NE 7,826
Disposals = (1,045)
Transfer to properties held for development (Note 23) i R R (M5E23) (6,226)
Charge for the year RELZ M (24,292)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—RF+-_A=+—8H 937,525
Exchange adjustments [ 3 (47,014
Additions NE 27,184
Charge for the year AEEZH (21,218)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—R"F+=-_A=+—H 896,477
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBESTTUOT -
Current assets BB E 21,809 25,086
Non-current assets IERBEE 874,668 912,439
896,477 937,525
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group changed the HE-_ZT—RAF+-A=+—HIF
use of a piece of land located in the PRC, with a net book value of - AEBEFER— AP EREFE
HK$6,226,000, because the management’s intention is changed from #$6,226,0008 TH T H) Ak - B2
owner occupation to redevelopment. EMEMEBFEEANAER -
The lease term over which the prepaid lease payments are amortised FENHAERIBZRN TI5F 250F TNEM
ranged from 35 years to 50 years. HAEASY o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

17. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS/
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This represents inventories licenced to the Licencee (see note 15) for
the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2017. Under the
licencing agreement, the licencee may use, consume and dispose
of the licenced inventories which include consumables and stocks
in trade. However, the Licencee is required to replace and return the
quantities of the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed
of during the licence period to the Group at the end of the licence

period.

The licenced inventory has been reclassified from other non-current
assets to other current assets because the license period will expire

on 31 August 2017.

The licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed during the
licence period are secured by cash and bills receivables of a related
party of the Licencee, with a total receivable value of not less than the
value of the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of as at

the end of the reporting period.

18. GOODWILL

17.

18.

WHER-_F——FNLA-BE-ZF
—tENAZT - HEREREAR
MIFE15) MM EE < RIBREE R
& EREARER  RRARBERE
EREE  ETERIERLESE
B o AT RIEEERIERE - B
BANRAREBEEE MRENRERE M
HHEER  ARLENREERT

BEHE -

BREFECREMIFERDEEREND
BEHMABEE  FREAHIN-F
—+FENA=+T—RBEH -

RIREEREER - A& 2 &E
ERTFEREREARBEEALINR
& REREERERT  BRAEETIR
BEFHEREAESER  RANHE
ZEEERFEZEE-

]

HK$'000

CARRYING VALUE REE

R—ZE—HF—H—H-
—E-AF+-A=+—HEK

NET+ZA=1+—8H

At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016

—=

THET

2,288,149

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill arising from

acquisition of subsidiaries are disclosed as follows:

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to groups of CGU of laminates, PCBs and chemicals
business segments. At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the carrying
amounts of goodwill allocated to the CGUs of laminates, PCBs and
chemicals business segments were approximately HK$390,781,000,

HK$1,717,519,000 and HK$179,849,000, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

18. GOODWILL(continued) 18. ﬁ'j%(%)

The recoverable amounts of the laminates’, PCBs’ and chemicals’
CGUs have been determined based on a value in use calculation.
Goodwill is expected to generate cash flows for the next 50 years.
Cash flow projections were extrapolated using zero growth rate based
on a five-year period financial budgets approved by the Directors.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations for the CGUs of
laminates, PCBs and chemicals business segments are as follows:

ERmER - ERIRIER R C TER 2R
SEAEMZ RO SRERE B EER
HAETE - BHREBNRKS0FE
EHRERE - A RERENERES
HAENTFRMBREERTEREMG
o

BRI - EVRIRISIR AL TR
DURSEE B (EAEES L
EEBRIT

Laminates PCBs Chemicals
ERER EN R &R EEAR tIER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-XF TR ZEBE-RE —T-1F ZE-RFE —T-0F
Discount rate ViEES 12% 12% 11% 10% 12% 13%
Growth rate (for year 110 5) BRE(125F) 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4%

The key assumptions are determined based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development and the growth rate used to extrapolate cash flow
projections in the first five-year period do not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the relevant industries and no growth rate is
used beyond the five-year period.

Since the recoverable amounts of the CGUs were higher than its
carrying amounts, no impairment loss was recognised.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of goodwill to exceed their aggregate recoverable amount.

TEBRDEZEMBERRREERE
LminERHERAEGEERFMA
AARERENEREMERE - A TER
HEATEFORMERE - MBS
Wi B RX -

ARREeELELZ AT NEeER R E
BRE(E - M MR ERE -
ERERE  ZEBROBEAAEE

HEPHH TS EHE 2 RREERDR
BEEk
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A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. RBE QT 2R

2016 2015

—E—RF —T—hHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T
Cost of investments in associates AR EIE E T E AT

unlisted in the PRC ZIEE KA 2,014,926 2,014,926

Share of post-acquisition profits and FEAE B 1R R &

other comprehensive (expense) income, Hip2m(Fx) ks

net of dividends received (FBREWARE) (55,052) 71,113

1,959,874 2,086,039

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had interests in the RZE-—RNER-E—TF+=A

<

following associates: =+—R0  REBEHEATEE QTR

BX

Place of Proportion of
establishment Equity interest held voting rights held
Name of associate and operation by the Group by the Group Principal activities
RIK AEERE
PN EXin REBFIEMRE RERELLAI TEXH
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZZ-RE T-1F ZB-RF
CNOOC Kingboard Chemical Limited* PRC 40% 40% 40% 40%  Manufacture and distribution
FEEREE L IERAA) i of methanol
BER DT
BB BER ORI ER AR PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Property developments and
H business management
MEBREEHER
# These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Sino-Foreign # ERRTUARINGEEEERRTE
Equity Joint Ventures. BT
e During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group further injected the ¢ BE-F—0%+=-A E\—'— —H
AE &

LFE A&EEBK

capital of approximately HK$1,071,419,000. 1.071,419,000 7T »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REFE QT 2B )

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group disposed its
interests in an associate, [P EREREBRAF] , with cash
consideration of approximately RMB28,846,000 (equivalent to
HK$35,911,000), and resulted in a loss on disposal of an associate of
HK$8,977,000.

The investments in CNOOC Kingboard Chemical Limited and Rij/&
3R CFII) BEA 7] are solely for share of results and no other
strategic purpose is involved. The associates are accounted for using

HE-_Z—AFE+-_A=+—HItHF
B AEBEREER—BEARILA
CHBREREASRATNER Re
RKEH A AR H28,846,0007C (FHHFH
35,911,000 7T ) + WE BT T & —
Kt &N A€ 188,977,000/ 7T °

Roea 2Bt TER DR RATEH
KERCRIDARABNREER/DE
KEMEL - WEPREMEKRE A -

the equity method in these consolidated financial statements. REZELEETERE « B R R RAE

BEFDEIIER

The summarised financial information below represents amounts

TOFBERA RIS R RIREBY

shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance B E R RENB BRI % -
with HKFRSs.
2016 2015
=R —_=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
The Group’s share of profits (loss) for the year AR BIAFEE R HEF (F518) 9,152 (15,269)
The Group’s share of other comprehensive AR BANF (G E At
expenses for the year 2HEMAEZ (135,317) (125,553)
The Group’s share of total comprehensive AREBARFEEEERE
expenses for the year 7 4838 (126,165) (140,822)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s KEBERZEFHERRZ
interests in these associates AR AE 1,959,874 2,086,039
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. A[HHERE

2016 2015
ZE-XE “T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx THT
Listed equity investments, at fair value: IR ARE  BATE:
- equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REE FTT 7 RARES 4,201,919 1,609,540
— equity securities listed in Singapore —V%ﬁbﬂﬁitﬁmﬂﬁ 5 993 1,434
~ equity securities listed in Taiwan REE Lz RAE 4,325 -
4,207,237 1,610,974
Listed bond securities at fair value: IhESFES  RATE:
— listed on the Stock Exchange and issued BB LMEITARITUR
by listed issuers in Hong Kong with a fixed WP Em - ABFEN 8,625
coupon interests ranging from 8.625% to E11.25E(ZZ—RF : 8625
11.25% (2015: 8.625% t0 13.875%) £13875E) 2 ETES I[EA
per annum and maturity dates from ZT—t5-ATNRAEZZ=T
19 January 2017 to 5 February 2020 F-ARA(ZE—1%F:
(2015: 19 January 2017 to 21 May 2020) —T—+tE-A+NBE
ZECRERACT-R)IE 296,795 389,655
— listed on SGX and issued by listed issuers in Hong Kong ~ — & E 8T AZTIR
with a fixed coupon interests HRET LT - ABEENTFAT5E
ranging from 4.75% to 9% ZE(ZE-1F :6.75F
(2015: 6.75% t0 8.75%) ZB75E)ZEFRE - U
per annum and maturity dates from “E-NEF-A+BE-Z==F
10 January 2019 to 28 September 2023 NAZTNAR(ZE-1&:
(2015: 10 January 2019 “E-NF-A+BZ
to 29 January 2023) “E-=F-A=t+NA)3H 1,529,615 394,316
- listed on DAX and issued by a listed issuer in Hong - BB EMBITABTURERM
Kong with a fixed coupon interest of 6.375% ‘m ABES6375E - Wi
per annum and maturity date on 17 January 2024 “E-mE-A+tAK
and 30 March 2025 “ECRFZAZ+HEH 386,327 -
— listed on SIX and issued by a listed issuer in — T REEEMBETARTEIRARL
Switzerland and United States of America with R LT ARFET 125
afixed coupon interest of 7.125% per annum WEZIHA
and no maturity date 109,168 -
2,321,905 783,971
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FEEIRARE - RACK
— private equity investment in Hong Kong (Note) ~EBBZAERAREE (i) 8,124 8,124
Total Bt 6,537,266 2,403,069
At the end of reporting period, all listed available-for-sale investments RIREHIREREH - RA A EHE -
are stated at fair value. Fair values of the listed bond securities are T ETIRAFEEYE - BB JER
determined by reference to the valuation provided by the pricing 5 WS Lt hESFEEZATEETS
vendors based on their own valuation techniques because of lack of K2ETFEZEHARSEZEGERIITRE
active market. The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less HEEEBTE - ARIELTERAEER
impairment as their fair values cannot be measured reliably. NFEETER] SETE - BURR AR R

B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments amounting to HK$27,764,000 (2015:
HK$314,293,000) was recognised in profit or loss as a result of
significant and prolonged decline in the fair values of certain of the
Group’s listed equity investments below their cost.

Note:

The amount represents the 19.67% (2015: 19.67%) interest in a private
entity incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is engaged in the
property development business in Hong Kong. The Group together with
other investment funds as investors currently holds a number of properties
in a building situated in Hong Kong which are held for redevelopment (the
“Redevelopment Project”). The Group’s participation in the Redevelopment
Project is 4.7% (2015: 4.7%) and the amount committed by the Group
amounts to US$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$163,800,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the investee returned part of the
capital (2016: nil) amounting to approximately US$19,150,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$149,368,000), net of the capital injection made during
the year of US$380,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,962,000). The
refund was directly deducted from the carrying value of the investment
cost. There is no change in the shareholding.

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the investment is measured
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be measured reliably.

Included in available-for-sale investments are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

20. fHHEEKRE

HE-_ZET—XRXF+-_A=+—H1t
FE AHOERENFREEIE
727,764,000 % T (=& — A F -
314,293,000) ' ERIBZAER » Tk
RAEENE T EMRARENATE
BARFER D BEPRERA ©

Mizt: ZeEEHRRBELZESEMMK
SV REEEZ19.67%(ZE—RF ¢
10.67% ) fZHE - ZALLBBNEBNS
MEERER - AEEREMIEERES
ERIREE  BRNEA —RUREE
ZREFLEMEEN  ZRERBAE
BR([EREFE]) - AEERLER
B 2EERABATH(ZE—RF
4.7%) + 7N EEYES 5 /21,000,000
FT(HEE R 49168,800,000/57T) °

&1_7 AFEF+-A=+—HLItF

CHWIRERFRREHDEE(ZT
—/‘—\E 4 ) %9 419,150,000 % JT B9
& & (55 4149,368,0008 7T ) -
L F1 B 4E W #9380,000% 7T (A R4
2,962,000/ 7T )X & < ERCEERIZ
BRARREER IR - HRMRIT &

RZE-RE+ZA=+—HR=Z
—RF+-A=1t—H BRAFEZ
BIEGHEEREX  SUEEERRARE
AT EERTE - BIRE R AR
RERHE

AHHEREBRETIIAEEE AR
ZREREIASNE B EHEZ ZER

us$
HKS

ET
BT

2016 2015

e .
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHTL
2,255,143 792,095
4,276,805 1,689,540
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RENBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

21. DEFERRED TAXATION 21. EERIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised TRAAREPHAERATREREAD
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting RZEZRLEHEER(BEE)IURE
periods: R e

Fair value
Accelerated Write-down change of Undistributed
tax of investment Revaluation of profits of
depreciation Taxlosses inventories properties properties  an associate Total

U -ERELT
mERBRE  REER  BEME  AVERD  WREH ZROERA /it
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
TER TER TER TiER TER TER TER

At 1 January 2015 R_F-1%F-F—-H 34,506 (12,522) (15,134) 745,696 88,064 - 841,210
Exchange adjustments 5 A% 2,070) - - 43,535) - - (45,605)

(Credit) charge o consolidated (Gt A)IREREE
statement of profitor loss for -~ FAERE

the year (Note 9) (Bi3%9) (1,054) - (552) - (3,057) 17,220 12,557
Acquisition of a subsidlary WE-FHEBAT
(Note 30(b) (GERW) 2,454 - - - - - 2,454
Utiised during the year TEREHH - - - - - (8518) (8519)
At 31 December 2015 RIZ-1%
+-h=t-H 33,836 (12,522) (15,686) 702,161 85,607 8,702 802,098
Exchange adjustments ERAE 2,14p) - - (44,531) - (177 (46,854)

(Credit) charge to consolidated (3t A)30% BA4E
statement of profitorloss for A BER
the year (Note 9 g 2.502) - 11482 - (3,057) (4,526) 12397

At 31 December 2016 iy
+-R=1-H 29,188 (12,522) (4,204) 657,630 82,550 3,999 756,641
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

21 . DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

For the purposes of the presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

ERERIE &)

ETRERREERBBERESA M
ARKZRAEMIELEE - AT A5
MR AR R IRE IR AT -

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—hHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 759,988 805,518
Deferred tax assets RIER IR & B (3,347) (3,420)
756,641 802,098

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, a withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets arising from tax losses amounting to approximately
HK$1,322,194,000 (2015: HK$1,354,126,000) due to the
unpredictability of the future profit streams. All tax losses in PRC
will be gradually expired within five years to 2022 (2015: 2021). The
remaining tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

FREERMAETERE  B-FTT/N\F
—A—BE - $rRRPEaHERRR
H P ERE 2 i A T B R < B B EUKE
B RRARZPEMBARIE —TEN
F-A—HERRZ ZeHa RG22 R
RERE - REBY AR ZRERIBRAR
BMBHRIELEE  RERASERE
ZH O R R - AR
EZRS AT RE TSR A AR o

R-ZZE—RE+-_A=+—8  #HR
EATERT R RE R - WA LB &
MRELXEHBEBZECHEEE
471,322,194,0008 L ( Z T — A F :
1,354,126,000% 70 ) ° & 3+ B & 1H
BEEANRAFRNEE - ZE-__F(==%
—RF: ZE-—F)FIBREEm -
SR T TR IEE 1 ] R HA A S o
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RENBHRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE
22. INVENTORIES 22. 7E&
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials R 948,628 1,290,954
Work in progress EEE 511,716 467,443
Finished goods UK 318,721 528,721
1,779,065 2,287,118
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was a significant HE—_ZEZ—XREt+-_HBA=+—8I=F
increase in the net realisable value of certain finished goods E-REAmBER - &5FaK DA
due to market shortage. As a result, a reversal of write-down of BINEE AR EF o Atk - B E MU
HK$37,997,000 (2015: nil) has been recognised and included in cost 37,997,000/ T (—ZE—F1FE : T)C &
of sales in the current year. ERNMETARFEEHHER K -

23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT  23. F3E W%

Movements of properties held for development are as follows: HREESFIOT

HK$’°000

FET

At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—A—H 19,148,646
Exchange adjustments P& A% (1,006,116)
Additions NE 4,220,324
Transfer from prepaid lease payments (Note 16) #ER g ERERE (ME16) 6,226
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 31(b)) HE—RIB QR (FIE31(0) (92,218)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 14) ER T EYE (ME14) (109,729)
Transfer to cost of sales RS HER AR (2,938,763)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF+_A=+—H 19,228,370
Exchange adjustments PE X TR (922,067)
Additions NE 3,478,031
Transfer to investment properties (Note 14) EREEME(E14) (2,622,329
Transfer to cost of sales EREHERA (3,351,778)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+_A=+—H 15,810,227
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, properties with
carrying amount of approximately HK$3,351,778,000 (2015:
HK$2,983,763,000) were completed and sold to third parties. The
remaining balance as at 31 December 2016 was related to properties
that were still under development.

Properties held for development with carrying amount of
approximately HK$14,282,912,000 (2015: HK$14,776,939,000) are
expected to be realised after one year from the end of the reporting
period.

One of the Group’s properties project with a carrying amount of
HK$2,993,794,000 (2015: HK$2,871,667,000) has been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

In the opinion of the Directors, the properties held for development
were classified as current assets as the properties were held for
sale purpose after the completion of construction under the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

23.

SFREYE

HE-_Z— X F+A=+—HIF
[ - BRE{E#93,351,778,0008 L (=&
— R4 1 2,983,763,000/8 7)) Z W E &
RITETE=RH - RZE—RF+=
A=+—H#THESRREZTMER

BREE 4 A514,282,912,0008 L (=&
—HF : 14,776,939,000/8 1) FEE
Y FERR A R s AR A R BT — 1R
IR o

AEEBERESPD -—EEHEES
2,993794,000 T2 MEER (- F
— R 2,871,667,000/870) * LAKER
HRITHE o

EERAEERNESBARDEE

THRERAEENETSEERE  £48
ZEMENAN RN TRERTRLE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

24, HthMBHEE

BEZREMEBRERERRE
NRERERER

(@) Trade and other receivables and prepayments (a)
and entrusted loans

150

2016 2015
= ki —ThF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Trade receivables B 5 AR 5,237,066 5,705,197
Advance to suppliers TEfHE FE R IR 447,831 810,399
Entrusted loans (Note i) R ER (KD 942,536 1,268,714
Prepayment and deposits ENRERES 662,346 803,334
Value added tax (“VAT”) recoverables AR B E R ([H#(EF ) 184,569 265,093
LAT on pre-sale properties (Note ii) THEWE 2 L ILER

(B i) 145,260 72,847
Other receivables H A FEUAR K 210,111 116,622
7,829,719 9,042,206

Less: Non-current portion of entrusted W BERERIERB NS
loans (Note i) (B%ED (882,944) (1,193,072)
6,946,775 7,849,134

Notes: BIE -

The entrusted loans of HK$942,536,000 (2015: HK$1,268,714,000)
are due from certain purchasers of properties developed by the
Group in the PRC through four (2015: four) commercial banks in
the PRC (the “Lending Agents”). The entrusted loans carry interest
at variable rates ranging from 3.920% to 5.390% (2015: 4.920%
to 6.900%) per annum payable on monthly basis and the principal
will be payable on or before 2034 (2015: 2034). The purchasers
of the Group’s properties has pledged to the Lending Agents the
respective properties purchased. These properties are located in
Kunshan, PRC.

As at 31 December 2016, entrusted loans amounting to
HK$882,944,000 (2015: HK$1,193,072,000) are in respect of
repayments due after 12 months from the end of the reporting
period and are classified as non-current assets.

The amount represents the provisional LAT prepaid to PRC
tax authority based on the latest completion status. The final
assessment will be carried out upon sales of properties at the
completion of development projects.
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FEBPEUR(ZE—RHF :
MR)AERT(THERE
ADEREFAEEBMER
Y H) B 52942,536,00078 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)
The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days, depending
on the products sold, to its trade customers. The following is
an aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date
at the end of the reporting period which approximates the
respective revenue recognition dates:

HMMEEE

(GY)

5 REMERRR &ﬁ

NRERERER (&
REERTE %%ﬁZFE%
H&RR/A1208 - WIAHEED
EmNE - RIREHRERER
(B A TR B MRS )T%@
KRR R ER B R B EIH T
LU

2016 2015

—~E —ZT—hF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHERT FBT

0-90 days 0&90H 4,069,593 4,219,623
91-120 days 91&120H 733,053 800,629
121-150 days 121&2150H 260,167 414,983
151-180 days 151&180H 81,751 176,839
Over 180 days 180H A £ 92,502 93,223
5,237,066 5,705,197

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit grading system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the Directors have delegated
the management to be responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals for any customers. Limits
and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed every year.
About 74% (2015: 76%) of the trade receivables, that are
neither past due nor impaired, have the best credit scoring
attributable under the credit grading system used by the
Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$818,517,000 (2015:
HK$850,372,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as the
Group considers that these debtors are financially stable and
the management has taken action to recover the outstanding
balances. The Directors are confident that these amounts are
still recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. The average age of these receivables is 129
days (2015: 132 days).

EEMEAFME,H - AEER
BIERFANESTEEERP
ZIERER EFECEREERE
BEREREFPETERRENR
EEHE - BPZRELFDE
FEH - H74%(ZF—0%F :
76%) 2 8 5 YR E B IS
BE - WEAEEMRAZER
FRBE 2 RBIERTD

AEEZESHREBEFGBER
FEHREKER  @EmER
818,517, oooi%ﬁ(:%—ﬁi ;
850,372,000/8 7T ) * Mk & H
Bal AEBTERZE
FIEEHREBERE - REA
AEERA  ZEEHATRIE
2 BEBECEIUKERES
HEHRMITE) - EEAEE  ZEX
DA ANE - AEBEFRZE
BB ESEEMEFR - %
FREWRR 2 TR B129H
(ZZE—HF :13280) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)
Aging analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired at the reporting date is as follows:

24, HiEEE

(GY)

ESRAEMEVIRRRE
NRERZRER )
MiRER - aREERE, B
FEMRR 2 BRECHHTANT -

2016 2015
—B-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET

Overdue: AER -
0-30 days 0&30H 240,502 242,667
31-60 days 31£260H 326,584 344,376
61-90 days 61£290H 169,593 170,106
Over 90 days 90H M 81,838 93,223
818,517 850,372

The Group has fully provided for all receivables that are
overdue over 240 days because historical experience is
such that these receivables are generally not recoverable.
Allowance on trade receivables which have been overdue
for less than 240 days are made based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts by reference to past default experience
and objective evidence of impairment as determined by
management.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the end of
the reporting period. The Directors considered that the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

24, HBMHKEE

(@) Trade and other receivables and prepayments @ EZRHEMEWEREIZRKTE
and entrusted loans (continued) FRERERER®)
The following is @ movement in the allowance for doubtful RIFARERE 2 FEIT
debts:
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—hHEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T
Balance at beginning of the year FH LR 689,923 772,293
Written off as uncollectible RNl s S (6,396) (126,422)
Impairment losses recognised HEUER TR
on receivables REEE 86,682 44,052
Balance at end of the year FREER 770,209 689,923

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired debtors with an aggregate balance of
HK$770,209,000 (2015: HK$689,923,000) which have been
placed either under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

REREFBRERCRIEZE
R R - M A5 82 2770,209,000
BT (ZE—HF : 689,923,000
BIL)  ZRERBRBERIEE
SN T 2 F0R - AL
% BRI ER A TR AR o

B 5 B A At WOR R 245 TFIIA
o5 2 R AR B M A
SHEZ 30 -

Us$ ET
HK$ BT
Euro &t

2016

e
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
632,783 1,078,909
860,004 737,304
45,052 41,877
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

154

(b)

(c)

Bills receivables
Bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2015:
90 days) at the end of the reporting period.

Included in bills receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the group entities to which they relate:

US$ T

24, HBMHKEE

(b)

BHRE
REERWEIERES ARSI
RIEREHOBE(ZT—HEF
90R)ZA °

JEWRBBIE T HILASEE 18
B EBAINEETE R
g

2016
S

2015
—E-RE
HK$’'000
FHBT

HK$’000
FHT

290,956 290,467

Bank balances and cash and fixed deposits

Bank balances and cash, except for the below mentioned
pledged bank deposits, comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. At 31 December 2016, the bank balances
and deposits carry interest at the prevailing market interest
rate which range from 0.01% to 3.0% (2015: 0.01% to 3.8%)
per annum. Fixed deposits carried fixed-rate interest ranging
from 2.05% to 3.8% per annum for both years.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had bank balances and
cash that were either not freely convertible or subject to
exchange controls in the PRC, amounting to approximately
HK$4,095,907,000 (2015: HK$3,187,942,000).

Included in the bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

Uss$ =
HK$ BT
Euro BT

(c)

BRTEREBEERENE
=

BTl B EIRRTTE N - $R1T
ERERSBEREEFFZE
& RRIHBA=ZEANTZ
RMHRITER - RZTE—RF
+—A=+—8 - fILHET
FIRBITHISERENTF0.01E
Z30E(-Z—A4%F : NF0.01
[EZ3.8E )8 - MEMNT T
RZEEFENT2.05EZE3.8
@ °

R-E—XE+-_A=1+—8 "
REETA BHAEBRKAZF
HNE B HIFTHRIR 2 SR1T 4588 3R
4 #1/54,095,907,000/8 (==
—F4F : 3,187,942,000/87T) °

RITRESH LIRS B TIIAKE
EREER 2 ThAE B AN S
BZHE

2016 2015
—E—RE

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FATT
926,368 422,231
1,503,308 1,076,604
23,995 7,176
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+
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 25. B RHMENERR
BILLS PAYABLES B RiE
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET T
Trade payables 2 Z RN 2,582,459 2,406,369
Accrued expenses TEIREH 727,666 621,703
Payables for acquisition of properties, BEWE  BEMEEN
plant and equipment R FE 455,961 794,413
Receipt in advance FEU R IE 744,315 428,063
Other tax payables HihENFRIE 831,054 200,231
VAT payables FERHIEERS 334,548 221,546
Other payables (Note) H b FEABRFR (B EE) 1,133,621 1,255,292
6,809,624 5,927,617
Bills payables ERERE 170,224 409,762
6,979,848 6,337,379
Note:  Included in other payables as at 31 December 2016 was the advance fex: R-ZE—-—XRNE+-_A=+—HBHH
from an associate of approximately HK$1,062,564,000 (2015: MENZEBRERABES ATHN
HK$1,172,532,000) which is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on 1,062,564,0008 T EFR(ZE—H
demand. F ©1,172,5632,000/870) * ZEERA

a8 SRR RAMEE I -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

25.

156

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of the trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

25.

R EMESRAR
PR EE )

RERRAERRLE - ERERBHN
BHRNERRZRE DT

il
2\

2015

—E—KEF —E-RE

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET T

0-90 days 0%90H 1,995,590 1,888,329
91-180 days 91£180H 375,710 358,478
Over 180 days 180H A E 211,159 159,562
2,582,459 2,406,369

Bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2015: 90 days)
at the end of the reporting period.

Included in trade and other payables and bills payables are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

Uss$ =TT
HK$ BIT
Euro BT

NEBEMNZERRARSHRERE
HOOH(ZZ—FR%F : 0H)ZA °

B LEMENERRENERBET
FIASRE B HRTh e B AINE
AHEZ S -

2016 2015
— —F-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THT
641,970 608,041
300,909 348,043
1,676 34
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

26. BANK BORROWINGS

26. SRITEE

2016 2015
—E—XRE —T—AEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHT
Bank loans BITEMR 16,368,569 20,263,562
Trust receipt loans EERIEER 495,583 447,109
16,864,152 20,710,671
Secured BIER 1,737,873 1,717,200
Unsecured (R 15,126,279 18,993,471
16,864,152 20,710,671
Carrying amounts repayable*: AEE ZIREE"
Within one year R—FRA 7,287,441 5,464,179
More than one year but not more than two years — LA H{B BB 4,735,790 4,583,468
More than two years but not more than ME BT BR=F
three years 1,747,260 4,685,544
More than three years but not more than =FUEETBBRSF
five years 2,711,414 5,658,427
More than five years BB AF 382,247 419,053
16,864,152 20,710,671
The carrying amounts of bank loans that BB RS IER
contain a repayment on demand clause Gl ERBEE)EAESR
(shown under current liabilities) but repayable: > $R1TEREE(HE :
Within one year R—FRA 7,287,441 5,464,179
More than one year but not more than two years — LA H{B BB 77,900 256,500
More than two years but not more than MEA BT BR=F
three years 34,000 34,000
More than three years but not more than =FUEETBBRSF
five years 68,000 68,000
More than five years BB AF 382,247 418,700
Amounts due within one year shown under NARSDEEZEN—FNRN
current liabilities B8 7,849,588 6,241,379
Add: Amounts shown under non-current e IEREAaE s 08
liabilities 9,014,564 14,469,292
16,864,152 20,710,671
The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the * T SBRERIGEANRERERHERT
loan agreements. oo
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

26. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

158

Included in the above bank borrowings are the fixed-rate borrowings
of HK$12,520,000 (2015: HK$13,369,000) at 31 December 2016
which are repayable within five years from the end of the reporting
period.

The rest of the bank borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest ranging from HIBOR + 0.8% to HIBOR + 2.42% (2015:
HIBOR + 1.1% to HIBOR + 2.42%) per annum.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, certain bank loans and trust receipt
loans of the Group are covered by corporate guarantees given by
Kingboard Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are as
follows:

26.

RITRE

RZZE—XRF+_A=+—H LR
ITIEE B EANIRE SRARE Bitst
RERERE 2 FEBEE12,520,0005 7T
(ZZ—F4F : 13,369,000/ 7T ) °

BTIRITEERTZEEE  FEENT
RITEZEFRBMN0SEERITRIENR S
o4 (—T—14F  RITEERS
MM AEERITRZEST BAN2.42E )T -

R-ZE—RNER-_ZT—HE+_-A
=+—A0 AEBEETROTERRET
WEEFEASEE -—R2EHEHMNEA
AIEEREERATREARER -

AEBERTEEZERMNX(AERE
FTHIR ) SBELT -

Effective interest rates
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEER

Variable-rate borrowings REEE

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate:

US$ ET
HK$ BT

6% 6%

6.00Z 6.00/2

1.55% t0 3.17% 1.33% t0 2.63%
1.55E£3.17E 1.33EX2.63E

RITEERETIINEEERZBHY
REERINERIHEZ 25 -

2016 2015
—T—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
1,768,109 3,188,289
14,587,940 17,509,013
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: G010/ LAY L iM%

At 1 January 2015 and RZZ—AF—A—HRK

27. I’A&

Authorised
HE
Number of

Amount
Eix-c}
HK$'000
THET

shares

BRAEE

Issued and fully paid

ERTRAR
Number of
shares

RGBE

Amount
A ]
HK$'000
FATL

31 December 2015 “T-RF+ZA=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000  1,025,600,236 102,560
Exercise of share options (Note 28) 1718 4L B A (Fi:E28) - - 12,800,000 1,280
At 31 December 2016 —T—R"F+ZA=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000  1,038,400,236 103,840
28. SHARE OPTIONS 08. BLERE
(@@ Employees’ share option scheme of the () ALATEEEBLERES

Company
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23
March 2009.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to the eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”) for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

28. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

160

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the

Company (continued)

Under the Scheme which is valid for a period of ten years with
a remaining life of approximately 24 months as at the date of
this report, the Directors may, at its discretion, grant options
to subscribe for shares in the Company to Eligible Participants
who contribute to the long term growth and profitability of
the Company. Eligible Participants include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interests (“Invested Entity”), including any executive director of
the Company, any of such subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(i) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any shareholder of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (vi) any person or entity who from time
to time determined by the Board as having contributed or
may contribute to the development and growth of the Group
based on his or its performance and/or years of service, or is
regarded as valuable resources of the Group based on his/
its working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors. The subscription price for the Company’s
shares shall be a price at least equal to the highest of the
nominal value of the Company’s shares, the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of an offer of the grant of the options and the closing
price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the date of an offer of the grant of the options. The Board,
when extending an offer of the grant of options to a grantee,
may impose conditions as it thinks fit, which may include
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised or other conditions as the Board may at its
absolute discretion determine. The options must be taken up
within 28 business days from the date of grant upon payment
of HK$1 and are exercisable over a period to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period
may commence from the date of acceptance of the offer of
the grant of the options but shall end in any event not later
than ten years from the date of adoption of the Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the

Company (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group (excluding
options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Group) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme. The total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme is 84,473,904 shares,
which represents approximately 8.1% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The limit
on the number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of the Company’s shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each grantee (including both exercised and outstanding
options) under the Scheme or other schemes of the Group in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant must not exceed
1% of the Company’s shares in issue at the date of grant
unless approved by the Company’s shareholders in general
meeting.

In respect of the share options outstanding at the end of the
reporting period, the weighted average exercise price per
share is HK$25.66 (2015: HK$22.71).

As at 31 December 2016, if all the exercisable share options
under the Scheme were converted, 34,752,000 (2015:
37,552,000) shares will be issued, representing approximately
3.35% (2015: 3.66%) of the issued share capital of the
Company.

28. BELERE .

(GY)

ARREEELEBRES
E-[€))

KRR BT RIRZATE R A
AEBEEMTEIRENELHE
B HE (R B B AR IR % T &) R AT 1A
N ER B E 5T B K i KA
RE AR ) TR AT BT R D
AE - TEEBBA R RERNZ
FHEIE BEEITRM10% - 1R
Bz B HBITHRHBE A
84,473,904 f1n - (AR BN
AR BB BT/ A BELY
8.1% - AREZTEI R AER
A EAE BT A R T M ARTT
8 RBFTE 2B ERRETT
EmA 81T 2 AR R RDEE BR
3 MEHBAR BT BT
B&1730% ° IRELEIE I B HR LR
A+ =18 A #5R - ARIEZAT &
RSB A E T B TS &
BAZEBEBRE(RECITE
KM ARITE 2 B IR ) 1T
BT RN FRIT 2 AR AR
DB - TERBBARRRFES
HHIC BTN 1% - BrIEER
ARIRERIREASHE - BIME

Al -

RIS AR R E B MR
BEERENMETHITEER
FhRose6ET(ZE—RF ¢
22.717%7T) °

R-_ZE—ARE+—A=+—8"
fis BT B AR IR 5Z 5T Bl AT FAT{E A
BT SR - Al
7734,752,000 (= Z— R F :
37,552,000 % ) Bz 1n + Bl AR
AIEBITIRAMLZ.35%(=F
—hF :3.66%) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —Z—/XFF#H 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE
28. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 28. @%Eﬁﬂﬁ%(%)
(@@ Employees’ share option scheme of the (@ AATEEELERES
Company (continued) Elg
A summary of the movements of the number of share options R EEITE T 2 B R
under the Scheme for the year is as follows: SEIELR AT ¢
Balance at Granted Balance at Exercised Balance at Exercise
1 January during 31 December during 31 December price
Date of grant 2015 the year 2015 the year 2016 pershare  Exercisable period
R=%-1% R-Z-1f% =
-A-A RER +=A=t-H RER
RAH fikes #i fikes e 5 BRITEE S
(Note il
(i)
Under the Scheme
Zitd
Granted to Directors on:
KTg%:
21 March 2011 18,768,000 - 18,768,000 - 18,768,000 HK$33.92 21 March 2011 to
22 March 2019 (Note )
“E——%ZA-1-H RBPET  ZF—FZAZT-REZ
“Z-NE=A=f=R
k)
19 March 2015 - 27,000,000 27,000,000 (11,700,000) 15,300,000 HK$12.424 19 March 2015 to
22 March 2019 (Note il
“Z-1%5ZATAHA 1244%1  ZE-RE=AThBE
“E-NF=R=1ZA
(P i)
Granted to employees on:
RTES:
21 March 2011 8,784,000 - 8,784,000 - 8,784,000 HK$33.92 21 March 2011 to
22 March 2019 (Note i)
“Z—F=fA-1-H RBPET —EF—F-A-T-HEZ
“E-NF=R=1ZA
i)
19 March 2015 - 3,000,000 3,000,000 (1,100,000) 1,900,000 HK$12.424 19 March 2015 to
22 March 2019 (Note i
ZE-R%=RtnA AuET  ZE-REZAtAAZE
“Z-NE=A=1=R
i)
27,552,000 30,000,000 57,552,000 (12,800,000) 44,752,000
Exercisable at
RIATBER T
1 January 2015
“Z-nE-f-H 27,552,000

31 December 2015
“E-R5+-A=1-H 37,552,000
31 December 2016
- Ft-A=t-H 34,752,000
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

U

(i

The share options under the Scheme were granted on 21 March
2011 at an adjusted exercise price of HK$33.92 per share. 25%
of the total share options vested immediately on the date of grant.
The remaining 75% were split evenly into three lots and vested on
21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The total estimated fair value at
the date of grant of the share options was HK$279,054,000.

The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of the share
options on 19 March 2015 was HK$86,809,000. 33.33% of
the total share options granted vested immediately on the date
of grant, 19 March 2015. 33.33% of the total number of share
options were vested on 19 March 2016 and the remaining
33.34% were vested on 19 March 2017. The closing price of
the Company’s share immediately before the date of grant was
HK$12.34.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, options of 12,800,000
shares in the Company at HK$12.424 per share were exercised.
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s share
granted on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days
immediately before the exercise date was HK$23.87. The amount
of approximately HK$37,039,000 was reclassified from share
options reserve to share premium.

28. BEBRE
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B

GEX

(0
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(i)
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oo AT /5 33.92
BT e BB EBE
26% i B AN R -
BT75%FHUHR=ME " H
AR —F——F  Z2F—=
FR-F-MF=ZA_t+—
AERE o BN B
REMEFAFERER
279,054,000 7T °

BLABRER-_ZT—RAF=
A+ BREL B BREMGEE
A F A 4 %8 586,809,000 7
Lo BRIEELERELESE
" #933.33% B AR R IE H A
H(—Z—AFE=ZA+A1B)
2B - 3333% N -FT— X~
F=ZAt+thEBEB #Tx
3334% N =—_E—+F = A
THhBEHRE  ZEEFLAH
Al - ARBRGEBKRTER
12.34%8 7T ©

Hz-_Z—-X&+=A4
=+—ALEE  BRAQA
# 12,800,000 f% & fi% 12.424
BB EREEITE -
A EREE R BT BB TTE B
HAREER S B RHNOBKMD
B A0 S 15 U T (B 528.877
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

164

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

The 2008 Elec & Eltek International Company Limited
(“EEIC”) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (the “2008 EEIC
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of EEIC at the
extraordinary general meeting of EEIC held on 21 April 2008
and was adopted and took effect from 9 May 2008 upon
approval by the shareholders of the Company. The purpose
of the 2008 EEIC Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to the eligible participants of the 2008 EEIC Scheme for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of EEIC and its subsidiaries.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme which shall be administered by
the committee of directors of EEIC as authorised by EEIC’s
directors, is open to full-time employees and directors of any
company within EEIC and its subsidiaries, the parent group
and of an associated company of EEIC, subject to certain
conditions being satisfied.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme entitles the option holders to exercise
their options and subscribe for new ordinary shares in EEIC
either at an “Exercise Price”, which equals to the average
of the last dealt prices for an EEIC share for a period of five
consecutive market days immediately preceding the relevant
date of grant, or at a discount to the Exercise Price as defined
earlier, whereby the discount shall not exceed 20% of the
Exercise Price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

28. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

(continued)

Options granted at the Exercise Price or at a discount to the
Exercise Price may be exercisable after the first or second
anniversary respectively of the date of grant and expiring on
the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

The duration of the 2008 EEIC Scheme is ten years with a
remaining life of approximately 13 months as at the date of
this report. The total number of shares in EEIC that may be
issued shall not exceed 17,963,506 shares (which represents
10% of the total number of EEIC shares in issue as at the
adoption date or 10% of the total numbers of shares in
issue of EEIC as at the respective dates of EEIC annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2016). Subject to
certain conditions being satisfied, the 2008 EEIC Scheme’s
limit may be increased to 15% of the total issued shares of
EEIC excluding treasury shares from time to time. The total
number of shares available for issue under the EEIC Scheme
is 17,963,506 shares, which represents approximately 10%
of the total issued share capital of EEIC as at the date of
this report. The total number of EEIC shares issued and to
be issued upon the exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
number of EEIC shares in issue from time to time.

Share options may be accepted within 30 days after the
relevant date of grant accompanied by payment of S$1.00
(or its equivalent) as consideration by the participants,
but the grant of share options do not confer rights on the
option holders to any dividend entitlement or to vote at any
shareholders’ meeting.

There were no share options granted under the 2008 EEIC
Scheme since its adoption.
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

166

()

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

The share option scheme of KLHL (the “KLHL Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of KLHL and the
shareholders of the Company on 18 May 2007 and 25 June
2007 respectively. The KLHL Scheme has taken effect after
obtaining the approval from the listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange on 6 July 2007. The purpose of the KLHL Scheme
is to provide incentive or rewards to the eligible participants
of the KLHL Scheme for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of the KLHL Group (as defined
below).

The KLHL Scheme is valid for a period of ten years with
remaining life of approximately 2 months as at the date of
this report. The directors of KLHL may, at its discretion, grant
options to subscribe for shares in KLHL to eligible participants
who contribute to the long-term growth and profitability of
KLHL and include (i) any employee or proposed employee
(whether full-time or part-time and including any executive
director), consultants or advisers of or to KLHL, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“KLHL’s Invested Entity”) in which
KLHL and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“KLHL Group”) hold an equity interest; (i) any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) of
KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any KLHL’s Invested Entity;
(iii) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
KLHL Group or any KLHL'’s Invested Entity; (iv) any customer
of the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity; (v) any
person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the KLHL Group or any KLHL's
Invested Entity; and (vi) any shareholder of any member of the
KLHL Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity or any holder of
any securities issued by any member of the KLHL Group or
any KLHL'’s Invested Entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

28. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

(continued)

The subscription price of KLHL’s share in respect of any
option granted under the KLHL Scheme must be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of KLHL as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant of the option, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares of KLHL as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and (jii) the nominal value of the shares of KLHL.

The option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer for the grant of the option upon
the payment of a consideration of HK$1. An option may be
exercised at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the directors of KLHL to each grantee, and in the
absence of such determination, from the date upon which the
offer for the grant of the option is accepted but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
The directors of KLHL may, at their absolute discretion, fix
any minimum period for which an option must be held, any
performance targets that must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The total number of shares of KLHL which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the KLHL
Scheme and any other share option scheme of KLHL
(excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL) must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of KLHL in issue as at the date
of approval of the KLHL Scheme. The total number of shares
available for issue under the KLHL Scheme is 300,000,000
shares, which represents approximately 9.8% of the total
issued share capital of KLHL as at the date of this report.
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28. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

168

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

(continued)

The maximum number of shares of KLHL which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL must not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of KLHL from time to time.

The total number of shares of KLHL issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both exercised
and outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the share capital of KLHL then
in issue unless approved by the shareholders of KLHL and the
Company in general meetings.

As at 31 December 2016, if all the exercisable share options
under the KLHL Scheme were converted, 81,000,000 (2015:
81,000,000) shares will be issued, representing approximately
2.7% (2015: 2.7%) of the issued share capital of KLHL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

28. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 28. @%Eﬁﬂﬁ%(%)
() Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL c) EBEBEEEREEELEBR
(continued) T8I (®)
A summary of movements of the number of share options FR - BERERGEIET 28
under the KLHL Scheme for the year is as follows: SLERESBEEEEENT

Balance at
1 January 2015,
31 December
2015 and Exercise
31 December price
Date of grant 2016 per share Exercisable period

R=-TB—HF
—HA—8-
—E-HE+=AH
=+—HBK
—E-XE+=A
=t+—HBMEE

Granted to directors of KLHL

RTEEBERES
21 March 2011 54,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to 17 May 2017
—E——F=A=+—H (Note i)

6.547%87T —T——F=ZA=-+—H=ZE
—ZE—+tFRA+EB )

Granted to employees

HTIES
21 March 2011 27,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to 17 May 2017
—E——&F=HA=-+—H (Note i)

65477 —E——F=ZA=-+—H=ZE
—Z—+FAA/+EB ()

81,000,000
Exercisable at
KA BEfA] F97(F
1 January 2015, 31 December 81,000,000
2015 and 31 December 2016
—E-RF—A—QH-
—E-RFTZA=T—HR
—E—-XFt+=-A=+—H
Notes: BT
0] 25% of the total share options vested immediately at the date of [0) 1B 5B R B 2 25% 0
grant. The fair value of the share options was HK$93,105,000 at B BEHNERE - LB
the date of grant. The remaining 75% were split evenly into three RIERZEBHOAFTER
lots and vested on 21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. 93,105,000 % 7T ° £ T 75%
FHHAEZE DRIR=-E
——F  ZE—=FKk=%
—E=A-+—BRB -
(ii) After the reporting period on 11 January 2017, an aggregate of (ii) WMEMRE R —tF—
60,000,000 options were exercised. A+ — B #460,000,000 13

BRBRBEETE -
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29. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 29. FEEERIRERER

Share
Share of options
net assets of reserve of
subsidiaries a subsidiary
— A
EEHEAR ZB%
EERE BRERE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT THL
At 1 January 2015 R-E—RF—F—H 6,208,777 93,105 6,296,882
Share of net changes arising from available-for-  JE(G A4 H R A E H B ENEE
sale investments (Note) (Ba3E) (2,666) - (2,666)
Share of exchange differences arising from EERTENRETESE
translation of foreign operations ZERER (1,475) - (1,475)
Share of exchange differences arising from EERTEERERMEE
translation to presentation currency ZERESR (338,167 - (338,167)
Share of profit for the year e AEERF 302,772 - 302,772
Acquisitions of additional interests in subsidiaries U8 1B A RI5EIMER (158,631) - (158,631)
Disposal of partial interests in a subsidiary HERB AR ML HER 8,603 - 8,603
Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries B AT ZFEERRR L AR 42,400 - 42,400
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders 3% 1 PPl B2 7l 2 3EHEA%
of subsidiaries RRZBRE (136,698) - (136,698)
Revaluation of properties transferred to BRERAYENDE
investment properties 2 Efh 81,539 - 81,539
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1+—H 6,001,454 93,105 6,094,559
Share of net changes arising from available- JEIE R EREELN
for-sale investments (Note) gE)FE (M) (4,312) - (4,312)
Share of exchange differences arising from EERTEIMEEMEL
translation of foreign operations ZERESR (1,655) - (1,655)
Share of exchange differences arising from RS2 REEmES
translation to presentation currency ZERET (305,802) - (305,802)
Share of profit for the year TEERER SRR 1,135,186 - 1,135,186
Disposal of partial interests in a subsidiary HEMBRARMNDNER 47,002 - 47,002
Capital contribution from non-controlling HB AR Z FERRR
shareholders of subsidiaries gt 26,400 - 26,400
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders of 37 {5 TPl BA 7l 2 JFHER%
subsidiaries IR 2 RS (625,710) - (625,710)
At 31 December 2016 R-E—"F+-A=1+—H 6,272,563 93,105 6,365,668
Note:  Share of net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist Mzt EEAIHEEREEENESFER
of loss on fair value changes amounting to HK$2,750,000 (2015: gain on ERAFEZEEE2,750,000%8 T (=
fair value change amounting to of HK$9,640,000) and gain on disposal T—RHF - AFEZBUKE9,640,000
amounting to HK$1,562,000 (2015: loss on disposal amounting to BIT) K& U 2E1,562,0005 T (=
HK$15,989,000). During the year ended 31 December 2015, impairment T — R F : HEEE 15,989,000
loss on available-for-sale investments amounting to HK$3,683,000 (2016: L) BEFT-—RAFT-_A=+—
nil) was recognised and reclassified from the investment revaluation reserve. AIEFE @ A EREZRERE

3,683,000/ 7L (=& — /NG « )R
REEFHPEEREEHRHEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE
30. ACQUISITIONS ASSETS THROUGH 30. WEEHIBARIAWIBEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

The below acquisitions was determined by the Directors to be EFHTIWBETABBKENEA

acquisitions of assets and liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries AMKBEEREE  MIEXBAH

rather than a business combination as the assets acquired and TR PTRIE B E R TAR 2 AET
liabilities assumed did not constitute a business as defined under TEREBMBERELERNEIFR(LE

HKFRS 3 (revised) “Business Combinations”. D EBE O TEEMELS -

@) In December 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity interests (@ RZB-XRE+-A A&HE
in BOP (MX) S.A.R.L. (“BOP”), a company incorporated in R—BBIE=FURESRE
Luxembourg, from an independent third party at a cash #9 265,386,000 % £ ( 48 & R
consideration of approximately GBP265,386,000 (equivalent 2,683,638,000% 7T ) Y B BOP
to HK$2,583,638,000). BOP is principally engaged in holding (MX) S.A.R.L.([BOP ) (—F
commercial properties in United Kingdom for rental purpose. RERBEMAIZAAE) S

100% M4 - BOPHIE B XA
REEFEmEMEELHEA

2016
—ERF
HK$’'000
FH&T
Consideration transferred: BERAE
Cash paid BfRE 2,583,638
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at MU BB E W B E K&
the date of acquisition: EHERAE :
Investment properties EYZE 2,638,294
Other receivables Hfth eI BR R 252
Bank balances and cash RITASBREIRE® 1,323
Other payables E A fETERR (66,231)
Shareholder’s loan REER (565,631)
Bank borrowings HRITIE (1,350,334)
667,673
Repayment of shareholder’s loan to by the vendor EHEERRER 565,631
Repayment of bank borrowings to by the vendor BHEERITER 1,350,334
2,583,638
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of FLUWEEMIB A ARIMELS ZIRE
the acquisition of a subsidiary: MRS EFMEIER R LF5E
Cash consideration paid 2RSSR E (2,5883,638)
Bank balances and cash acquired B RITESBRERS 1,323
(2,582,315)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —Z—/<XFFH 171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE
30. ACQUISITIONS ASSETS THROUGH 30. WEEHIBARIAWIBEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continueq) ()

(o) In July 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interests (o) RZZE—RF+EH K&
together with shareholder’s loan in Ao Sheng Limited, Baiyu H—REBARUNESARE
Property (Overseas) Holding Limited and Bumper Champ #] 352,366,000 /& T W B Ao
Limited, the companies are principally engaged in holding Sheng Limited + Baiyu Property
commercial properties in Hong Kong for rental purpose, from (Overseas) Holding Limited }z
a related company at a cash consideration of approximately Bumper Champ Limited#J100%
HK$352,366,000. REERRRER  ZER AN

FEEBRNBEBFEEEDE
EHA® -
2015
—T—hE
HK$’'000
FH&T
Consideration transferred: BERAE
Cash paid BfRE 352,366
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at MU BB E W B E K&
the date of acquisition: EHERAE :
Investment properties EYZE 355,843
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 876
Other payables E AT BRI (1,899)
Deferred tax liability R IEAE (2,454)
Shareholder’s loan REER (147,766)
204,600
Assignment of shareholder’s loan to the Group AEEFAEBHBRRER 147,766
352,366
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of FLUEEMBARIMERE RS
the acquisition of a subsidiary: RIReEHEIER
Cash consideration paid BfReNRE (352,366)
Bank balances and cash acquired B RITESR RS 876
(351,490)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiE —Z— "G+ _A=+—HILFE
30. ACQUISITIONS ASSETS THROUGH 30. WEEHIBARIAWIBEE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continueq) ()
(© In July 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interests (© RZZE—RFEAH  AEBENUER
together with shareholder loan in Million Victory International & RIE#)272,854,0007% T i i
Investment Limited, the company is principally engaged SHEBRIEEBR A RIM100%
in holding a property in PRC, at a cash consideration of PRFEBERIR R E K © sZ AR E
approximately HK$272,854,000. DEBLENFRBEFEME -
2015
—T—RF
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration transferred: BERAE
Cash paid BfRE 272,854
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at MU BB E W B E K&
the date of acquisition: EHERAE :
Properties, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE 277,908
Other receivables H fth eI BR 5K 3,420
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 1,118
Other payables E A fETERR (9,592)
Shareholder’s loan REER (15,574)
257,280
Assignment of shareholder’s loan to the Group DEETAREBEHRRER 15,574
272,854
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of FLUEEMB ARMERE RS
the acquisition of a subsidiary: kIReEHEIER
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (272,854)
Bank balances and cash acquired BUEBRITEBR RS 1,118
(271,736)
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31.

174

PR aR M

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

31. HEKRBAQF

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group (@) HE—_ZT—X"F+=-A=+—H
disposed of its entire equity interest in EEEIEE X IFEE - KEBUBSRED
J)BPRA T, a subsidiary principally engaged in holding a AR#2,004,430,0007T (FEE R
piece of land in PRC, to an independent third party for a cash 2,386,230,00078 70 ) & — R
consideration of approximately RMB2,004,430,000 (equivalent BEAa@EEEBERECEINE
to HK$2,386,230,000). The net assets at the date of disposal BAR(ETBEKANTEHES
are as follow: —lRti) 2 2 HRETELE

=7 - RILERE - BEFEDN
T
2016
ZTE—RF
HK$’'000
FAT
Consideration received: BHRAE -
Cash received 2RSS 2,386,230
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which BAEKEHIENEER
control was lost: BEMT
Properties, plant and equipment Y -~ B KR 4
Other receivables HAtb FEUER R 29,338
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LR 16,929
Other payables HAbFERERR (16,731)
Net assets disposal of EHEEEFE 29,540

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:

HE—TME ARz Y

Cash consideration received PUERE S RE 2,386,230

Transaction costs R KA (235,452)

Net assets disposal of BEHEEEFE (29,540)
Gain on disposal HEMERE 2,121,238
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: PEEEZRSRAFE

Cash consideration received PR S RE 2,386,230

Transaction costs RHMKA (235,452)

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEReMREEEER (16,929)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of  FLHEERBARMEAZIRSE

the disposal of a subsidiary RS FEIEERAFHE 2,133,849
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31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (ontinueq) 31. HEWB AR @

(o) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group (o) BE_Z—FRAF+-_A=+—
disposed of its entire equity interest in Glorious Luck Limited HIEFE AEBLEER
and its sole subsidiary (“Glorious Luck”), principally engaged in Glorious Luck Limited#) 2 #B#E
property development in PRC, to an independent third party =M HME—FIE A ([Glorious
for a cash consideration of approximately RMB100,000,000 Luck (X ZWEFRBEMEDE
(equivalent to HK$126,594,000). The net assets at the date of R)F—2BUE=H HaK
disposal were as follows: & & #) A R ™ 100,000,000 7T

(F£72126,594,00078 70 ) © 7
HEAMEEFAENT ¢
2015
—T—hF
HK$’'000
T4
Consideration received: BHRAE -
Cash received 2RSS 126,594
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control BREESIENEEN
was lost: BEMT
Properties, plant and equipment Y - BB KRR 329
Properties held for development HERME 92,218
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H M FER AR R 639
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRER 1
Trade and other payables B 5 M HMPERERFR (193)
Shareholder’s loan RERER (87,338)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 5,666
Assignment of shareholder’s loan AIREER 87,338
93,004
Gain on disposal of Glorious Luck: & Glorious LuckZ iz -
Consideration received BURIE 126,594
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (93,004)
Gain on disposal & s e 33,590
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEFZHSRAFE
Cash consideration received BUERERE 126,594
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHERSMRESEER (11)
126,583
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32.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

32. EXEREE

REEEREERURRBBETES
HRASEEARRFRESEH - F5
EEBEMSELE - AEEZBER
B BB 1 A R AR

AEBZEAGBBERTER - BE
RAESFERBFERARRAFAAR
EREE(BEDETRE - FHIRE
B - EERARRBERARE -

EXELERHELSE - FREH—
AEAERZER - EERRAKERK
BB - BT BERD
BITHEREROREER  AFHE
BERGEE -

33.¢mTH
SR T EER

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments (a)

2016 2015
—E—XEF —ET—RF
HK$’000

HK$’000
FH FHT

Financial assets MKEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and EZXNEWER(BERE R
cash equivalents) RELFMEEE)

— trade and other receivables —B 5 RHEMEUERR 6,389,713 7,090,533
— bills receivables —EWEIE 3,182,724 2,017,736
— fixed deposits held at banks with —RERAE=EANEN
original maturity over three months RITE BATF R = 210,079
— bank balances and cash —RITHEBR LIRS 6,472,614 4,853,792
16,045,051 14,172,140
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 6,537,266 2,403,069
Financial liabilities B aE
Amortised cost B IHRL AR
— trade and other payables —B 5 RkH MK 4,172,041 4,456,074
— bills payables —FENEE 170,224 409,762
- bank borrowings — RITEE 16,864,152 20,710,671
21,206,417 25,576,507
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 16.8% (2015: 24.3%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities making the
sale, whilst almost 9.8% (2015: 13.0%) of purchases are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. The
management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign currency risk
should the need arise.

33. €@t T B )

(b)

B EREE B ERBUIR

REE 2z &/ T A BRI
HPHRE ZFERMTAMREZ
RpeEmERR (8RR
MEERRBRAEBRRR) -5
ERBLnEE SRR o TX#H
51| B0 fe] FEAE % S RS AR B 2 B
K- EREERNEEZSAE
B DAREAR K B AN A RO EREUE
B2 -

G ER

ErE s

AR THIB A B AN 1T
HEREE  SAREEBFAEN
BER - AEEL16.8%(=F
—FHF : 24.3%) B EEEIL I
SEEBIIEEBIE ML
9.8%(=—ZT—FAF : 13.0%)H
B SELAERASE B E B M D6
EEESIE o

REBUAINEFENEEEER
BERRE BERE ZREER
MERAM R EE - ERERERE
SMNERRR - RN ETEREE
EmINERR ©
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against foreign
currencies of United States dollars (‘US$”), Euro, and HKS$.
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2015: 5%) increase and decrease in functional currency of
each group entity against the relevant foreign currencies. 5%
(2015: 5%) represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only the outstanding monetary
items denominated in foreign currency and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2015:
5%) changes in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes trade and other receivables, bills receivables,
available-for-sale investments, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, bills payables as well as bank borrowings.
A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit for the year which functional currency of each group
entity strengthens 5% (2015: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currency. For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of functional
currency of each group entity against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the post-tax profit for the year.

33. €@t T B )

(b)

BEEAREEBEERBE
()

miEER ()
AEEEEEmHET(ET])
BT M TTEVINE R BRI - T
R AREH S EEEENY
REE M HARRISNE TR % (= F
—RF 5% )MGURVE © 5% (=
T—0%F : 6%) HEREHINE
EXRTAEE B AEEFHHF
il - ERREDITEBIE M AT
NS B ERIRE - RS
HIFER B ZIMNEERE%(—F
—RF 5% ) BB LIMBE
FRENNMEBRES REME
WRRH - BERE - AT &R
B RiTESBRERES  EHRE
RN - BN RIERRTITE
& FEESEEERNYKE
W ARRINETHES%(—F—1
F 5% - AFERBIZEN
BRTE - EREEEEMNIEE
B RRNEB®E%(—F—h
F  5%)F - ATREBI AN IR
BEMNARFERNZE -

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FH&T

Uss$ eV (72,166) 46,944
HK$ BT 351,162 558,762
Euro BT (2,868) (1,898)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 26 for details of these
borrowings), fixed rate fixed deposits (see note 24(c) for
details of these deposits) and listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest (see note 20 for details of these listed bond
securities). The management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider repayment of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s bank balances, entrusted loans and variable-rate
borrowings have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) (2015: HIBOR) arising from the
Group’s bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest bearing bank
balances, entrusted loans and bank borrowings at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2015: 50 basis points) increase or 10 basis points (2015: 10
basis points) decrease is used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

33. €@t T B )

(b)

BEEAREEBEERBE
()

miEER ()

FIZ
REBAEHEBRITIER (X
SREFBRME26) - BIES
XEMER(ZEERFREM
Ft24(c)) kM # ElE BAmey £
EHESF(ZEFLMEFESFH
1B RMFE20) FTE S 2 A FERH
TR o BEEREN AR
M HIREAMEER - #5E
BIEEERRITEE -

BRRITH SN ERKE - NEE
ZIRITHERR  EREREEE
ERREREMNEER -

REBAZ YA B2 FIERLE
ZFE - RAMERDE SRR
BIE—H - AREHRSIREN
TR EERRAEENIRITEE
XA BERRITRAERE(EFER
TREKEN(ZE—hF &
BIRTTRIZERE ) KBNTE
7

AT ERE N TR IB RS RS
RE B RIRITHES ZTIEEK
RRITEENNZRBREE - &
HZENNE - BRNEE R
RBREARIHZEMTARE
FEMARENE - s0EHF(—F
—h%F : 5OfER T ) MNK101E
BF(ZZF—D0F 10@E#T)
BHAORERBHMNERAEELE
)RS -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

180

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rate had been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis
points) higher and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would decrease by approximately HK$40,176,000
(2015: decrease by approximately HK$56,423,000)
as a result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its interest bearing bank balances, entrusted loans
and variable-rate borrowings.

o the debit side investment valuation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
increase by approximately HK$56,256,000 (2015:
HK$13,130,000) as a result of the change in the fair
value of available-for-sale listed bond securities with
fixed coupon interest.

If interest rate had been 10 basis points (2015: 10 basis
points) lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s:

° post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would increase by approximately HK$8,035,000
(2015: increase by approximately HK$11,285,000)
as a result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its interest bearing bank balances, entrusted loans
respectively and variable-rate borrowings.

o the debit side investment valuation reserve for the
year ended 31 December 2016 would decrease by
approximately HK$11,613,000 (2015: HK$2,402,000)
as a result of the change in the fair value of available-
for-sale listed bond securities with fixed coupon
interest.

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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33. €@t T B )

(b)

BEEAREEBEERBE
()

s R ()

B S ()

I EASOES T (—F—5
7 SOfABT) - TAA R
£ A%HE

. M N £ E AR A
RITHEH  ZTHREXR
K2 BMEEZHER
% BE_E—NF
+-—A=+—HItHF
E 2 B & R R
# 40,176,000 78 7T ( —
T —HF GBI Y
56,423,000/ 7T °

. BE—_Z2—X~"%+=A
—t+—BULHFEEHE
BEEHFEHEBIE MY
56,256,000 Bt (=&
—F4F ¢ 13,130,000 #
7T) - BHENTEE S
FHAHEE FTES

MAMEERIOELF(—ZZE—F
FA0EEF) mABEHME
=R REM

. AR EE AT W ER
THES ZTRERRZ
BEEZMERRR  #
E2-_ZT—-—XF+=HA
—t+t—BLEFEZBH
1% 3% R 18 Hn498,035,000
BIL(—ZT—R4F 8B
#911,285,000/7T) ©

. H2-_Z—X~"&%+=A
=t+—BLEFEEBHE
BEHRBREBR DD
11,613,000 7L (= &
— T 1 2,402,000
7o) - BAEMAEEE R
SR HEE ETES
BHEATEZS -

EEZR R ARFRERTREBR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles and the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2015: 10%) higher:

o the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2016 would increase by approximately HK$300,000
(2015: increase by approximately HK$5,926,000) as a
result of the change in fair value of these available-for-
sale investments.

° the debit side investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
decrease by approximately HK$38,164,000 (2015:
HK$33,095,000) as a result of the change in fair value
of these available-for-sale investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2015: 10%) lower:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would decrease by approximately HK$38,159,000
(2015: HK$39,021,000) as a result of the change in
fair value of these available-for-sale investments.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

182

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have not been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2015: 10%) higher:

° the debit side investment revaluation reserve would
decrease by approximately HK$382,564,000 (2015:
HK$122,076,000) as a result of the change in fair
value of these available-for-sale investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have not been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2015: 10%) lower:

o no effect for post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: no effect for post-tax profit) as
a result of the change in fair value of these available-
for-sale investments.

° the debit side investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
increase by approximately HK$382,564,000 (2015:
HK$122,076,000) as a result of the change in fair
value of these available-for-sale investments.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has concentration of
equity price risk on its available-for-sale investments as 51%
(2015: 51%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in three (2015: three) equity securities listed in
Hong Kong. The Group’s available-for-sale investments are
exposed to equity price risk due to the fluctuation of price on
the respective stock market.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
31 December 2016 and 2015 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors have
delegated the management responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt and entrusted loans at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the
entrusted loan are pledged by the properties held by the
borrowers. In this regard, the Directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with various
banks with good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
on trade and other receivables and entrusted loans with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers. However, the Group is exposed to concentration
on geographic segment in PRC. At 31 December 2016,
approximately 95% (2015: 91%) and 100% (2015: 100%) of
the Group’s trade and other receivables and entrusted loans
respectively are arising from counterparties whose principal
place of operation is the PRC.

At 31 December 2016, the Group is exposed to concentration
of credit risk on its available-for-sale debt investments as 26%
(2015: 25%) of the total available-for-sale investments are
concentrated in four (2015: four) listed bond securities issued
by four (2015: three) listed issuers in Hong Kong. The Group’s
available-for-sale debt investments are exposed to credit risk
due to the default of repayment by the bond issuers. However,
the Directors consider the credit risk on these investments
is limited as the listed bonds are secured by certain assets
of the issuers and the issuers are listed companies in Hong
Kong.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

184

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants
during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. At 31 December 2016, the Group has available
unutilised bank borrowings facilities of approximately
HK$10,213,525,000 (2015: HK$7,549,475,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 258t TEEER AR

33. €@t T B )

(b)

HHEEAREEZEERREE
()
AEFEREERDESRER &
R MRS FEBAHKRF
REASNEIEER/ITTEMKX
F o REXASENERS - TR
BRERERINTE - NF
N EREEERITEENER
B MRS ERRE -

AEBEKBRITEEEAR
—RNF+ZA=+—8 &%
EARBAMRITEEEENS
10,213,525,000870( —&2—*H
£ 1 7,549,475,000/87T) °

TRABASER T IOTERM TS
BENEOIIEIER - REAS
BANMBAGBRE 2 AHA3E
PFIRRERENHIER - A5
MmE - MR ERERERZ R
TER  TwiRfTEE A sLEE
TTEARRER - —EFFARRE
HIARSEEE - HtIETEM S
BEREHEZERHBEESD
A -

RIBBREMNEMAZHERE -
WASRATE RS RIR
REHRAERE B2 MR hiRE
= .



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinueq) 33. £ T H
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) HMERMBEEEERBEX
policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESRR(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables B E 2 RFIFE &

Over Over Over
Weighted 3 months 1year AL
average  On demand but not but not but not Total
effective orlessthan  morethan  morethan  more than undiscounted Carrying

interestrate 3 months 1 year PATE 5years  cash flows amount
WERY  BERE  ZEAML -EME REML  FHiRES

ERRE  ZfAm BTHB-F BTEERE (TERIE  REHE e

% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

Tén TEn Thn TEn T TEn

At 31 December 2016 RZB—"ET-F=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3fT4BHBAE
Trade and other payables BSREMERER - 417204 - - - 41204 417204
Bils payables ERZE - 170,224 - - - 170,204 170,224
Bank borrowings ichl1-1
- fixed rate -FE 6.0 12,709 - - - 12,709 12,520
- Variable rate -5 24 450,077 3843061 4931879 4748572 18,064,589 16,851,632
BAUG05I 3843061 A0GIGT0  ATMBET2 2240563 21206417
At 31 December 2015 R-B-RFT-F=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities T4 HBAE
Trade and other payables B A RARERE - 4456074 - - - 446074 4456074
Bils payables ES - 409,762 - - - 409,762 409,762
Bank borrowings RRE
- fixed rate -FE 6.0 13,569 - - - 13,569 13,369
- variable rate -8 20 26168% 4312920 4323002 10981666 22234482 20,697,302

7496300 4312920 4323002 10981665 27113887 25,576,507
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

186

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2016,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these
bank borrowings amounted to HK$518,247,000 (2015:
HK$777,200,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be fully repaid after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
ranging from two to sixteen (2015: two to seventeen)
years as set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$634,042,000 (2015: HK$881,423,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 33. €T R

(c)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) EWMIEQAFEE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are BESEHEERAFEFERZ
measured at fair value on a recurring basis rEENKEEZATE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair AREFEHXDAEEENSRER
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table KIRATFETE - TREMERH
gives information about how the fair values of these financial ETZEVBEEATEZHE
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) (LERATH Z EEREM K A
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy HR) A RN T EFER A
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels B2 BREEE AT EAESD
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair B ATFESELEN(E—ZF=
value measurements is observable. )2 ER} o
Valuation
Fair value techniques Significant
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs  Sensitivity
HERER
BBEE Rt=B=t-HzAYE ATESH ITHAEE EXTUREGALE SRE
2016
TE-RE
HK$'000
Thn
) Listed equity securities classified Quoted bid pricesin -~ N/A N/A
as available-for-sale financial assets active market,

in the consolidated statement of
financial posttion

0 WNEaBBERRRD HERTH 4,201,281 1610974 1 EEMFEA TR TR
LERBEE, FAES HiE-
(i) Listed bond securities classified as Reference tothe far -~ Thelack of marketability ~ The higher the lack
available-for-sale financial assets value quoted in the discount of marketability
inthe consolidated statement of over-the-counter discount, the lower
financial posttion market with the the fair value.
adjustments for the
[ack of marketabilty.
lj REATERRRTIBATL 2,321,905 783791 3 PRENTREELL  mETHREL RZmERALES
LEEBEES IHERES T - TatHZH5 AT{ERIME -
B T O -
There were no transfer between level 1 and 3 during the years HE_Z-—RFRZZ—1F
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. TZA=+— E|JJ:¢F HES

—EE=BZENER -
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FEMBmRMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinueq) 33. €T H )
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) ST EANEETE ()
(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of E-HHBREE2ATFETEZ
financial assets AR
Listed bond
securities
EmESRES
HK$’'000
FHET
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—HA—H 1,721,382
Additions NE 798,416
Disposals k= (1,821,575)
Fair value gain recognised in other comprehensive REM 2 EER
income N AN 85,748
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—H 783,971
Additions NE 2,832,838
Disposals HE (1,314,709
Fair value gain recognised in other comprehensive REMEEMBRERZ
income N EWNE 19,805
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+_A=+—H 2,321,905
Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of AR RS PRERE B AR
HK$19,805,000 (2015: a gain of HK$85,748,000) relating to AH EHEZE.219,805,000
listed bond securities held at the end of the reporting period BT (ZF—AF - R
and is reported as changes of investment revaluation reserve 85,748,000/ 7T ) Eat AR Z
for the year ended 31 December 2016. e WEFRBE=F X
F+ZA=t+—HIEFEZEE
BB EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

34. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS  34. B4 Hi&E

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not MEFTOERARG AT HRE
provided in the consolidated financial e BB 2 EARTH -
statements in respect of:
- acquisition of properties, plant and —EEME - RELRE
equipment 116,110 94,275
— capital injection in an unlisted investment —JEEMIREZTERE 3,346 3,346
119,456 97,621
Other expenditure contracted for but not FEETHVERERE B SR
provided in the consolidated financial TE BB 2 B2 i
statements in respect of:
- acquisition and other expenditures relating —EAFERMEIWE
to properties held for development KEAM T H 2,124,227 2,987,531
2,243,683 3,085,152
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

190

(@)

The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
HK$6,376,798,000 (2015: HK$3,376,048,000) as at 31
December 2016 to facilitate mortgage bank loans applications
of purchasers of the properties that were developed by the
Group.

The guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans
procured by the purchasers of properties that were developed
by the Group. Such guarantees will be released by banks
upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers and
completion of registration of the relevant mortgage properties.
In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition, hence no value has been recognised at the
inception of the guarantee contracts and at the end of the
reporting period as at 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company (the “Respondents”) were
named as a defendant in the Supreme Court of Bermuda in
respect of an allegation of the affairs of KBCF had been and
or were being conducted in a manner which was oppressive
or unfairly prejudicial to the non-controlling shareholders
of KBCF. The petitioner was seeking an order to the
Respondents to repurchase all of the KBCF’s shares held by
petitioner at the price to be fixed by a valuer or Supreme Court
of Bermuda. The trial of the petition took place in September
2015. The Supreme Court of Bermuda handed down its
judgement in 2015. The Supreme Court of Bermuda found
that the allegation, that the terms of the previous interested
person purchase transactions constituted preferential transfer
pricing which was prejudicial to minority shareholders, were
not proved and the allegation, that the terms of the license
agreement were wholly uncommercial and the licencee
was a sham, were also not proved. However, the Supreme
Court of Bermuda also ruled that KBCF’s management
should promptly initiate bona fide open negotiations in which
commercially reasonable proposals were openly tabled with a
view to persuading the non-controlling shareholders of KBCF
to approve the interested person transactions mandate on
even marginally more favourable terms. Subsequently, the
Company filed a notice of appeal relating to the unfavourable
ruling of the judgement. The appeal hearing was taken place
on 6 and 7 March 2017 and the judgement was handed
down on 24 March 2017 which is in favour of KBCF and the
Company. Accordingly, no provision for liability has been
made in connection with this claim by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiE —Z— "G+ _A=+—HILFE
36. OPERATING LEASES 36. R&EMRY
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
The Group as lessee: AEEEREEA :
Lease payments charged to the consolidated ~ERBA&GZEBZHFZNR 2
statement of profit or loss during the year HEFIA
— for premises — 25,903 24,673
— for plant and machinery — B Kikes 1,421 1,351
27,324 26,024

Under the leases entered into by the Group, all lease payments are
fixed and predetermined.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

REBEAEET L 2L FREHEEFR
ZEHEIREERAREE

RREPREAERE B - REBRERA
B2 LN B RN 2SR
AR T OB AT

Premises Plant and machinery
ES BB RS

2016 2015 2016 2015

ZEB-RF ZE-—AF ZEB-XRF EZ—F1F

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT FHET FHT

Within one year R—FR 10,920 9,608 947 280
After one year but not later A —414&

than five years BRREFR 14,909 16,802 - -

After five years RREF% 12,089 16,509 - -

37,918 42,919 947 280

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

The Group as lessor/licensor: AEBELSHBEABEA

Rental income credited to the consolidated RERFTAGREBEERZ
statement of profit or loss during the year HSWA

Licence income credited to the consolidated ~ MEREALEIBREEY
statement of profit or loss during the year BRRE(E AW A

FH FHT

625,902 562,090

120,000 120,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE
36. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties are rented to outside parties for
periods up to fifteen years (2015: seven years) at fixed predetermined
amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants and Licencee for the following future minimum payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of leasing of
investment properties (see note 14) and licence assets (see note 15)
which fall due as follow:

. REHEY W

AEBZREMENLRERETZTH
HEBEFINARALT  HEBERAISF
(ZE—FRF £5F)-

RREPHEERE R - RBEHERED
H(EME14) RRgEREE(RME
16) Z NI HE R &ML - AEE R
BEREEEANRTA TIIRKRERER
B RATHIREIA :

2016 2015

—E—hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Within one year R—FRA 447,579 474,413
After one year but not later than five years R—FRERAFA 1,600,855 620,497
After five years REF%E 2,507,831 382,044
4,556,265 1,476,954

The Group licences its licenced assets to a committed Licencee
under the licence agreement as follows:

° Within the first twelve months of the licence, either the Group
or the Licencee may terminate the licence agreement at its
sole discretion, by serving on the other party not less than
one month prior notice in writing and paying the other party
HK$1,000,000 or such other amount as may be mutually
agreed in writing between both parties.

o After the first twelve months of the licence, the Group may
terminate the licence agreement at its sole discretion, by
serving on the Licencee not less than one month prior notice
in writing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37. EEEH
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following assets RBEHRBERERD  REBTYEE
pledged to banks to secure the banking facilities of the Group: DEATFIRT  (EAREFRITREDN
A

2016 2015

—E—REF —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FBT

Investment properties EME 1,780,000 1,780,000

Properties held for development FERYE 2,993,794 2,871,667

4,773,794 4,651,667

38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 38. ERIRERIFE

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which AEE RN —IBEREEF RS
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance 1EOIFET 2 BB RET S (T B SR KA
(the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ) KRR A ESEIN ZE
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in TEFZ AR 2B EIEAE R E
December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets of the schemes are ([aERETE]) - ZFFTEI 2 EERE
held separately from those of the Group and are invested in the funds SECEESFAFE - WIRERBET
under the control of trustees. Employees who were members of the AES 2 EE o RSB IESEEZ AT
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme are E2MBERNTEIZREE - RRKA
members of both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme, whereas B EERRGT B MR ESFTBIZKE -
all new employees joining the Group on or after December 2000 FIBRZEEZEF+ AU ZEINAR
are required to join the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the EBECHEENVNESINBESITE - 1R
employer and its employees and each required to make contributions BREeE  EXREEESEZA
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a ZEE AW A% R EIER R
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2015: HK$30,000). & AHEBYWA LR A30,0008 (=

—F 4 30,0008 7T) °

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state- R BB AT 2R E A EBTEE
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. The ZBIREBRNETEIKE - ZEHMEA
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll AEFFEXHcE—a o R ARIK
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only BAETE - U BEEF - NEEH
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is RINENGT BT 22— B ERAI N
to make the required contributions. BHHA
Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and the state- MBERATE - BESTER
sponsored pension schemes of approximately HK$171,090,000 REDERRFEEZFZ2HARDN B
(2015: HK$150,280,000) had been charged to profit or loss. As 171,090,000 B . ( = & — R F
at 31 December 2016, contributions of HK$11,411,000 (2015: 150,280,000/ 7T ) + I BBz P HIBR ©
HK$11,439,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not been RZZB—ARFE+A=+—8 R#sE
paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent to the end AR B E 2 £ 5%11,411,0008 T (==
of reporting period. — AR F 11,439,000 7T ) I &1+ F %
FHHE c REFIERREHBERED
KA .
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

194

The Group entered into the following significant transactions with
related parties during the year.

39.

BEEALRS

AEBEEBATEFRNETIEAR
ST

RHAEBABRTE NN
BRHMBARHER M
QESENSEIES:wN-Z - Sl
BERAM B A RREE M

Sales of goods to subsidiaries of a shareholder
with significant influence on the Group
Purchase of goods from subsidiaries of
a shareholder with significant influence
on the Group
Sales of goods to a non-controlling shareholder [a— Rl B AR 2
of a subsidiary FEFERR AR R SHE S
Purchase of goods from an associate A A RREE R
Purchase of properties from a subsidiary of RS AEBEEATE NN
a shareholder with significant influence A EATEEYE
on the Group

2016
— ki
HK$’000
TR
562,759 681,947
663,060 683,336
57,522 67,750
327,568 275,237
- 625,220

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments at
31 December 2016 was an amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of HK$10,927,000 (2015: HK$16,245,000)
which was in trade nature. The Group allowed credit periods of up
to 120 days (2015: 120 days), depending on the product sold to its
related parties.

Include in trade and other payable at 31 December 2016 was an
amount due to an associate of HK$26,105,000 (2015: advance
payment to an associate of HK$10,117,000).

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

RZZE—XRF+_A=+—H BH5K
HmEWERRBNRECEBNE
SE 7 R — M B A R 2 AR
RIE10,927,0008 T(ZE—HF ¢
16,245,000 70 ) » A5 & W H @A
TEREZEEHRRAI20B8(ZZE—H
F :1208) - RTAIEEZERME ©

RZE—RE+_A=+—A8E
SREMEMFERERABE S QD
A #926,105,0008 L (=T — A F :
10,117,000 7T ) FY A 3K o

IBEBASHS
G EEREMEITEEARS S
T

2016

—E—XRE

HK$’000

FHET
Short-term benefits HHIER 204,529 186,588
Post-employment benefits RIKEEF 1,586 1,600
Share-based payments LARR R FE A 3K 18,600 56,488
224,715 244,676

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. ZATEEMB A A
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 1H
(@  General information of subsidiaries (@ MEARN—RESR

RAREEMBARNR-ZE—X
FRh-F-AFF-_A=1t—H
ZEBIMT

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued and fully

paid share capital/  Effective equity interest

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Jamplan (BVI) Limited

operation

AR/
BRREENY

British Virgin Islands*
RERNES

Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates Co. Limited ~ PRC!

RE(RE)RERARAE]

i

Kingboard (Fogang) Paper Laminates Co. Ltd. PRC!

2E(BR)BRSRERAR

e

Kingboard (Hebei) Cokechem Co. Limited PRC!

RE(TLECARAT

e

Kingboard (Hebei) Chemical Co. Limited PRC!

BE(TLICIARAR

Kingboard Natural Gas Chemical
(Chong Qing) Limited
RERMALI(ER)RRAR

i

PRC!
i

Kunshan Guo Rui Development Co. Ltd. PRC!

BIERERERAR

e

Heng Yang Kingboard Chemical Co., Ltd. PRC!

BRI IARAR

i

registered capital
BETRARRE/
ERER

US$1,000
1,000%7

1S$29,466,000
29,466,000 T

US$17,936,546
17,936,546 T

RMB96,000,000
AE96,000,00070

RMB357,000,000
357,000,007

US$18,500,000
18,500,000%7

1US§90,000,000
90,000,000 70

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000 7

held by the Group
rEERE
ZERRE
2016 2015

e

%

100* 100*
74.19 74.52
74.19 74.52

100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding

BRAER

Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

HERDHRAENR

Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

HERDHRAENR

Manufacture and distribution
of coke

Manufacture and distribution
of chemicals
BERAEIER

Manufacture and distribution
of methanol

RERDHFE

Property developments
FHEER

Manufacture and distribution
of caustic soda

HERDHIRH
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq)

196

(a)

General information of subsidiaries (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HEAREE

Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Fibre Glass Co. Limited

REENBBEAERAR

Kingboard Copper Foll Holdings Limited @

Kingboard Investments Limited
EEREARAR

KLHL®
BERERZRARAR"

Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) Co., Ltd.

TFRERERARAR

Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical Co., Ltd.
BECIH)LTARAR

Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) Co., Ltd
BEEER(RIERAT

Elec & Eltek International Holdings Limited
KNz EEREERRAR

EEICe
KNz EEARAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation

B/
BRRERY

PRC'
R

Bermuda*®
BRE

Hong Kong *
o

Cayman Islands

RS
PRC'
R

PRC!
R

PRC!
GEY

Bermuda/Hong Kong *
BRE/ B

Singapore

s
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40.

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
BROTRBRRE/
EMER

US$13,700,000
13,700,000 7T

US$72,250,000
72,250,000 7

HK$8,000
8,000%7T

HK$300,000,000
300,000,000/ 7

HK$242,800,000
242,800,000/ 7

US$32,000,000
32,000,000% T

US$32,010,000
32,010,005

HK$122,467,240
122,467,240/ 7T

US$113,880,000
113,880,000% T

RRNBEEMBREF

5o

(@ MEBIXRAN—RER @

Effective equity interest

held by the Group
rRERE
LERRE
2016

S

%

7419 7452
48.93 49.15

100 100
7419 7452
7419 7452
7419 7452
7419 7452

100 100
73.65 73.65

Principal activities

IEER

Manufacture and distribution
of glass fabric

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

RERD HRATR

Manufacture and distribution
of chemicals
RERAHEIER

Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

RERD HRBTR

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. XATEEMB AT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq) & )
(@  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MEARN—RER®

Place of

Name of subsidiary

HEAREE

incorporation/
registration and
operation

B/
BRRERY

Issued and fully

paid share capital/
registered capital
BROTRBRRE/

EfER

Effective equity interest

held by the

Group

ARERHA
ZBRRE

2016
ZE2-AE
%

Principal activities

IEER

Kaiping Elec & Eftek Company Limited PRC? 1S$49,520,000 69.97 69.97  Manufacture and distribution
BTRNZEE FERAA HEp 49,520,000 T of PCBs
BHER D HENRISHAR
Kaiping Elec & Eftek No. 3 Company Limited ~ PRC2 1S$87,800,000 69.97 69.97  Manufacture and distribution
REENZEEFE=BRAA R 87,800,000% T of PCBs
BHER D HENRISHAR
Kaiping Elec & Eftek No. 5 Company Limited ~ PRC2 US$30,075,100 69.97 69.97  Manufacture and distribution
AT FERARAT i 30,075,100% 7T of PCBs
BHER D HENRISHAR
Elec & Eltek (Guangzhou) Electronic Company  PRC2 1S$95,596,000 7218 7218 Manufacture and distribution
Limited R 95,596,005 of PCBs
fkFzE(BMETERLE BHER D HENRISHAR
Guangzhou Elec & Eltek Microvia Technology ~ PRC2 US$24,800,000 72.18 72.18  Manufacture and distribution
Limited R 24,800,005 of PCBs
BN BN RERAR BHER D HEIRISHAR
Huizhou Chung Shun Chemical Company PRC! 1S$40,290,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Limited ! 40,290,000 7T of phenol/acetone
EMBEIIERAT BERDEAD /R
Shi'You Chemical (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd PRC? US$144,237,000 100 100 Refining and distribution of
ERILI(BM)ERAR e 144,237,000 chemicals
HERS B IER
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq)

(a)

198

General information of subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Name of subsidiary operation

e,/
BRRERMH

HEAREE

40.

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
BROTRBRRE/
EMER

Kingboard Electronic Raw Material (Jiang Yin)  PRC? 1S$30,000,000
Co., Ltd R 30,000,000% T

RERFHH(TR)FRAT

Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) Petrochemical PRC! RMB250,000,000
Company Limited R AR%250,000,0007

RE(REED)AILARLA

The Company directly holds the equity interest in Jamplan (BVI)

Limited. The Company’s equity interest in all other subsidiaries is

held indirectly through Jamplan (BVI) Limited.

# These are investment holding companies which have no specific
principal place of operations.

B These companies are listed on The Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

A These companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprises.

2 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results

or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.
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RRNBEEMBREF

5o

(@ MEBIXRAN—RER @

Effective equity interest

held by the Group
rRERE
LERRE
2016

Principal activities

IEER

S

)
74.19 Manufacture and distribution
of laminates

RERD HRETR

74.19 74,52 Manufacture and distribution

of chemicals
RERAHEIIER

* ANAREEFBJamplan (BVI) Limited
ZRRAE - AREIRFTEEMIEARZ
M B Jamplan (BVI) Limited &5
BE

# IS REEREAR  TERSELER
i .

° [N S I Ly
£

RSMBRATE
o IHERFRBEBMARSMAERABE
R

! SRR AINEBECET A ETE
B3 o

2 SRR TIARIEGERE
HEMKIL

EPAAE

ERFIIREZERRIBFEAKEE
BREEZARFMBRR - EERA
FILEMMBAR ZHBEERRITE

BB AR FAEREEITEMES
K o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. XATREFEH B R TF

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq) & )

(@ General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ KEARN—RER S
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other RREPEERER - NARE
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The principal BHAEBTEANMEMMBA
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: T ZEMB AT Z I BEKTE

EMT
Number of subsidiaries
M REE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2016 2015
EEXE T —m_ —= s
Manufacture and sale of laminates PRC 26 26
B3 R SHE B IR E AR A
Macau 2 2
P
Thailand 1 1
R
29 29
Manufacture and sale of PCBs Hong Kong 2 2
U3 T2 S5 6 EN I 4R BR AR BE
PRC 12 12
G
Macau 3 3
JBFY
Thailand 1 1
R
18 18
Manufacture and sale of chemicals PRC 20 20
BlENHE(CIER e
Properties Hong Kong 11 11
PRC 51 48
H
United Kingdom 4 3
ES
66 62
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq)

40. AAREEMB R RF

5o

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group partially b) #HE—Z—RE+-A=+-—
disposed its interests in a subsidiary without losing the control HIEFE  REENURESKE
over this subsidiary for the consideration of HK$56,624,000 56,624,000 T (ZF—HF
(2015: HK$7,305,000). The difference of 9,622,000 (2015: 7,305,000 7T ) tHE HR — =K
HK$1,298,000) between the increase in the non-controlling WEARMIDESMmAKLE
interests and the consideration received has been recognised HZMBRAR 2 EHiE - 35
in the goodwill reserve. BESENIERERREZEZ

9,622,000 TR (=T —H
F : 1,208,000/ 70) B A 2R
HER -
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group HE_Z—FRHF+_-_A=+—
acquired additional interests in certain subsidiaries for a HIEFE @ AEBEWES TH
consideration of HK$90,936,000. As a result, the difference BRARMENIER  REA
of HK$67,695,000 between the consideration paid of 90,936,000/ 7T © FEEFHRE
HK$90,936,000 and the amount of non-controlling interests 90,936,000/ 7T 82 B g FE 15 A%
acquired of HK$158,631,000 was directly recognised in %5 158,631,000/8 7T 2 B Ay =
goodwill reserve. £667,695,00078 L E R B
R o

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that () HEEERFEZERBRRER

have material non-controlling interests ZIEZTEREHMBLRAF
15

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

TREHIALE A BRI
BB ZIFREBEMBAR

Proportion of ownership
Place of incorporation interests and voting rights
and principal place of held by non-controlling Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business interests non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests
MR FEREREGERERR ARIFER it FER
WEARES TEERLE BRRREELS Sk villl ) ET 5
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“B-XE ZF-RF ZE-5F ZT-1F CB-XF ‘
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR i TARL TAT
KLHL*# Cayman Islands 25.81% 25.48% 1,121,978 30425 3718976 3,355,056
RERER HERE
EEIC* Singapore 26.35% 26.35% 23,405 (9,942) 752,184 741,959
EEIC AR
KBCF* Bermuda 51.07% 50.85% 181 477 457,197 474,068
KBCF* BRE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests 1,437,311 1,623,476
BAHERER  BU M EAERR
6,365,668 6,094,559
# excluding non-controlling interests of KLHL, EEIC and KBCF's # T BEREEENR - EEICK

KBCFHIF B 2 RIAYFE %A% 7

5o

subsidiaries.
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

40.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq)

(c)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)

KLHL and subsidiaries

RRNBEEMBREF

5o

() EEERFEREZRZHE
2EREHBLRFRE @)
BERERRHEAT

2016 2015

—T—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Current assets MEBEE 17,613,809 14,947,344

Non-current assets JERENAE 8,050,396 8,083,653

Current liabilities mENBE 9,029,579 5,068,422

Non-current liabilities SEREAE 1,287,494 3,809,414

Equity attributable to owners of KLHL BEEEREE AELERE 14,407,373 13,167,408
Non-controlling interests of KLHL’s BERERNKB AR

subsidiaries FEFEAR A 939,759 985,753

Revenue e 15,531,721 12,769,720

Expenses, other gains and losses FsZ - Hih e RE1E 11,179,813 11,498,720

Profit for the year INEE B F 4,351,908 1,271,000
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FEMBHwRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. KRB FEEMB AT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq) 15 )
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that c) BEEARFEREZZIHF
have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2EREHBATFE @)
KLHL and subsidiaries (continued) BEEERRNEBAT(E)

2016 2015
—E—XF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
Profit attributable to owners of the Company N2 &35 5 A FE(G % F 3,224,583 942,978
Profit attributable to the non-controlling HBTEERIEERS
interests of KLHL RN 1,121,978 322,425
Profit attributable to the non-controlling EEEERNNEB AR
interests of KLHL’s subsidiaries FEVR RS M 25 B Vi ) 5,347 5,597
Profit for the year REE 5 T 4,351,908 1,271,000
Other comprehensive expenses attributable to ZXA B3 H A B
owners of the Company Hth2EMAZ (639,934) (694,759
Other comprehensive expenses attributable to i#ET&ERIEIEAERS
the non-controlling interests of KLHL EEEMEERS (222,662) (237,553)
Other comprehensive expenses attributable 3 E & ER HIM B A 7
to the non-controliing interests of KLHL’s FEE A SR A
subsidiaries Hitp2EMAX (40,981) (45,007)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year ANFEEEMEEMRS (903,577) (977,319)
Total comprehensive income attributable VIN/NEIES YWt
to owners of the Company EHEW LT 2,584,649 248,219
Total comprehensive income attributable BEE R R =
to the non-controlling interests of KLHL EhEEN S 899,316 84,872
Total comprehensive expense attributable BEEERNME AT
to the non-controlling interests of KLHL's IEE R e R
subsidiaries 2ERALWNELEE (35,634) (39,410)
Total comprehensive income for the year REEEEWHEE 3,448,331 293,681
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests S FREEER BB A
of a KLHL’s subsidiary e R 2 R B 1,000 -
Net cash inflow from operating activities LETEBIR SR AFE 5,855,913 643,508
Net cash inflow from investing activities FEFEHRSMAFE 511,128 646,203
Net cash outflow from financing activities BVEEENIR R FEE (4,478,193) (787,247)
Net cash inflow WERNFRE 1,888,848 502,464
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

40.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq)

(c)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)

RRNBEEMBREF

5o

() EEERFEREZRZHE
2EREHBLRFRE @)

EEIC and subsidiaries EEICK i B A &
2016 2015
—T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Current assets MEBEE 1,553,042 1,492,109
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,921,755 3,119,688
Current liabilities mENBE 1,481,906 1,436,191
Non-current liabilities SEREAE 54,842 278,756
Equity attributable to owners of EEIC EEICH; A AFE{h i 2,854,449 2,815,644
Non-controlling interests of EEIC’s EEICHFI /B A7)
subsidiaries FEFEAR A 83,600 81,206
Revenue XS] 3,729,469 3,533,267
Expenses, other gains and losses FsZ - Hih e RE1E 3,634,161 3,564,530
Profit (loss) for the year REEZ AN (EE) 95,308 (31,263)
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of KARFEEA
the Company FEAEEFI(E18) 65,413 (27,787)
Profit (loss) attributable to the EEICIEIE R =
non-controlling interests of EEIC FE(E R (E518) 23,405 (9,942)
Profit attributable to the non-controlling EEICHIFT B~ A
interests of EEIC’s subsidiaries FEIEARAE 2 B 5 A 6,490 6,466
Profit for the year NEEEA 95,308 (31,263)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHwRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ - Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFE
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. KRB FEEMB AT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq) 15 )
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (c) HEEERFEREZZHE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2EREHBATFE @)
EEIC and subsidiaries (continued) EEICK B R (&)

2016 2015
—E—REF —ZT—hHF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FE SRCTE

Other comprehensive (expenses) income  AQ&IFEHE AFE(L

attributable to owners of the Company HEzm(Fx) ks (4,624) 223,218
Other comprehensive (expenses) income  EEICIEIE ARtz fE(G

attributable to the non-controlling Hin 2w (k)W

interests of EEIC (1,655) 79,867

Other comprehensive (expenses) income  ANFEEE 2w (B )z
for the year (6,279) 303,085

Total comprehensive income attributable AN A3 B A FE(S

to owners of the Company SHEHNGEBE 60,789 195,431
Total comprehensive income attributable  EEIC3E{Z A% HE %5 FEAS
to the non-controlling interests of EEIC TE AT 21,750 69,925

Total comprehensive income attributable  EEICHIH B A 7
to the non-controlling interests of EEIC’s  3EIEARKERS FE(G

subsidiaries SEWELRTE 6,490 6,466
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ZN4E/E 2 HEIW S 4258 89,029 271,822
Dividends paid to non-controlling 4 FEEICH B A

interests of EEIC’s subsidiaries ety Foid o) 4,095 4,095
Net cash inflow from operating activities ETEEIE SR AR 394,415 263,211
Net cash outflow from investing activites & EEIR S FEE (126,219) (197,246)
Net cash outflow from financing activites ~— FE& /EZENIR &R IF58 (204,961) (151,523)
Net cash inflow (outflow) RERAORL)FEE 63,235 (85,558)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

40.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)

KBCF and subsidiaries

RRNBEEMBREF

5o

c) BEEARFEEREZZIHE
2EREMBLARFEEE)
KBCFX i B A A

2016 2015
—E—XF —T—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Current assets TRENVEE 2,337,366 1,602,975
Non-current assets ERBEE 441,624 1,268,952
Current liabilities mENBEE 124,374 100,988
Equity attributable to owners of the KBCF  KBCF#54 A FE(EHE s 2,629,180 2,737,996
Non-controlling interests of KBCF’s KBCF&IFT /& A 7]
subsidiary R 25,436 32,943
Revenue e 635,296 624,344
Expenses, other gains and losses FisE - Efthlias KR EstE 630,363 617,938
Profit for the year REE R 4,933 6,406
Profit attributable to owners of the Company <A &3 8 A JE(5 % F 519 1,397
Profit attributable to the non-controlling A R IEIE A A S
interests of the KLHL e T 181 477
Profit attributable to the non-controlling KBCFIEE R ez
interests of KBCF FEMRR T 361 967
Profit attributable to the non-controlling KBCFRIM B AR
interest of KBCF’s subsidiary FEPERRAE S (5 A 3,872 3,565
Profit for the year ARE T 4,933 6,406
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continueq)

(c)

206

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

have material non-controlling interests (continued)
KBCF and subsidiaries (continued)

40.

KATETEMB AR
5o
c) BEEARFEEREZZIHE

2EREMBLARFEEE)
KBCFE KB AT (&)

2016 2015
—EB—XE —ET—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET FAET
Other comprehensive expenses attributable Z< 2 5358 A (L
to owners of the Company Hitn 2w (53,759) (69,698)
Other comprehensive expenses attributable 2 5E1E Bk JEFE AR AE 75
to the non-controlling interests of the EEEMEERS
KLHL (18,705) (20,412)
Other comprehensive expenses attributable KBCFIEIZ A& 1 %5
to the non-controlling interests of KBCF EiREMEmEmMAX (37,413) (41,361)
Other comprehensive expenses attributable KBCF&IHI B A 7
to the non-controlling interests of FEPERR i R
KBCF’s subsidiary EREMEERX (2,019) (1,981)
Other comprehensive expense for the year ZAEEH M2 EEX (111,896) (123,452)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable ANAFEHE A
to owners of the Company EhEmAZ AR (53,240) (68,301)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable 2 HEE R
to the non-controlling interests of FEPERR i R
the KLHL EiEeEMAZ 88 (18,524) (19,935)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable KBCFZEIZE A& i 75
to the non-controlling interests of KBCF FElE2EMAZ2E (37,052) (40,394)
Total comprehensive income attributable  ~ KBCF&IME A &)
to the non-controlling interests of FEFERR M A
KBCF’s subsidiary JE(E 2 E s 458 1,853 1,584
Total comprehensive expenses for the year 2N & % [ 5 St 44%8 (106,963) (117,046)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 3% {sf FKBCF&IM B A 72
of a KBCF’s subsidiary IR ER 2 IRE (9,360) -
Net cash inflow from operating activities EEERB S TRAFRE 185,182 154,513
Net cash outflow from investing activites 188 2 &7 L F5E (32,886) (344)
Net cash outflow from financing activites B & EENIR S h LFEE (9,360) (6,425)
Net cash inflow WEmAFEE 142,936 147,744

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 258t TEEER AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT— A "F+_A=+—HILtFE

41.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group announced that they
intended to make a voluntary unconditional cash offer (the “Offer”)
for all the issued and paid-up ordinary shares in the capital of KBCF,
other than those which were owned by the Group, or by parties
acting in concert or deemed to be acting in concert with the Group in
relation to the Offer, with a view to delist KBCF from the Main Board
of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Offer will be
made at S$0.40 in cash for each Offer Share. Details of which were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated on 3 March 2017,
6 March 2017, 20 March 2017 and 22 March 2017.

M.

BREHERSEE

WEHMRE - ASEEMHE EMKBCF
BRAPFBEETRAR 2 LB - &
SERAHEAE  REHAMSASED
—BITBA TR RSAEEN BT
E)ATHABERSIN - 1ELD B RV B
BREZEHTELN]) - BEEEKBCFEF
M BFHRZGFAER DB ERERE - 2
NIEGRRBERMDO.40FT I LIRS 1E
H o BEFBERAARIRAZES —+
F=ZA=H ZF—+F=ARH =
T—+tF=A=ZFTHEK=ZT—+tF=A
—+=H-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  42. Z&KQ T ZEI &R R &5
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY E e

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Non-current assets EREBNEE
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB & 1,752 2,664
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIE 726,786 862,255
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 727,244 417,642
1,455,782 1,282,561

Current assets MENEE
Other receivables HAb AR 170,443 199,485
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE LSBT BB A R FIE 24,095,502 22,655,718
Bank balances IRITHERR 22,721 161,064
24,288,666 23,016,267
Current liabilities MEAE

Other payables E A EBRR 1,059,215 8,218
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHYE A RIFRIA 10,949,259 8,086,389

Bank borrowings — amount due within RITIEE
one year ——FRE|H 2 58 3,341,519 2,361,054
15,349,993 10,455,661
Net current assets BB EFE 8,938,673 12,560,606
Total asset less current liabilities BEABRREBAE 10,394,455 13,843,167

Non-current liabilities SEmEBAE
Bank borrowings — amount due after one year IRITIEE ——F4EIH 2508 4,795,845 8,635,360
5,598,610 5,207,807

Capital and reserves A& R
Share capital k&N 103,840 102,560
Reserves s 5,494,770 5,105,247
5,598,610 5,207,807
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BlEZ —Z— "G+ -A=+—HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  42. Z&KQ T ZEI &R R &5

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY S
(continued)
Note: BT
Capital Share Investment
Share redemption options revaluation AEENED]
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ERBRE
RDRE ftfE B REEF e
HK$'000 i HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT 77 IT BT HIT IT
Balance at 1 January 2015 WZE-hE—A—HZ&H 4,457,742 1,911 228,824 (77,032) 389,538 5,000,983
Profit for the year REEHF - - - - 479,486 479,486
Net changes arising from available-for- AJ it H &% B E 4 7 S E)FE
sale investments (note a) (FfsEa) - - - 74,814 - 74,814
Total comprehensive income for AEE2ERGERE
the year - - - 74,814 479,486 554,300
Recognition of equity-settled RAEREBENRMDF 3R
share-based payments - - 62,764 - - 62,764
Final dividend for the year ended BE-_ZT-NFE+-_A=1+—H
31 December 2014 LIFFEZRERE - - - - (307,680)  (307,680)
Interim dividend for the year ended Hz-_Z—R5+-A=+—H
31 December 2015 IHFEZHRERE - - - - (205,120)  (205,120)
- - 62,764 - (512,800) (450,036)
Balance at 31 December 2015 WZZE—RAF+-A=t+—H2ZH#sH 4,457,742 1,911 291,588 (2,218) 356,224 5,105,247
Profit for the year NEF T - - - - 855,695 855,695
Net changes arising from available-for- A] it H &1 & E 4 7 S 8% E
sale investments (note a) (Bif3Ea) - - - (29,469) - (29,469)
Total comprehensive (expenses) AEEE2E (%) Waes
income for the year - - - (29,469) 855,695 826,226

Issue of new shares from exercise of 171585 BERLHE T 21T 1D

share options 194,786 - (37,039) - - 157,747
Recognition of equity-settled share- RS EENRM IR
based payments - - 20,910 - - 20,910
Final dividend for the year ended HE_Z-AF+-A=1+—H
31 December 2015 IFFEZRERE - - - - (307,680)  (307,680)
Interim dividend for the year ended ~ #E—F—"F+_A=1+—H
31 December 2016 IR P HRS - - - - (307,680)  (307,680)
194,786 - (16,129) - (615360) (436,703
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-T—REF-A=+—H2&#%H 4652528 1,911 275,459 (31,687) 596,559 5,494,770
Note a: Net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist of gain on Mfizka: AIHHEEREELEN S FIEBLIE
fair value changes amounting to HK$120,421,000 (2015: loss on fair value 120,421,000 T (ZZE—HF : A
changes amounting to HK$2,906,000), gain on disposal amounting to ¥ (& % E538 2,906,000 7T ) A F{E
HK$165,271,000 (2015: HK$99,602,000) and impairment loss amounting Sl s ~ 165,271,000 T (=&
to HK$15,381,000 (2015: HK$177,322,000). — A4 : 99,602,000 7T ) & AT UL

7 % 15,381,000 L (ZZ — A& -
177,322,000/ 70 ) Bl (E &8 ©
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INFORMATION ON THE GROUP’S PROPERTIES

The following tables set out the Group’s material properties held for

investment:

Location

b B

Delta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shek Mun,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BRI D BAP R RESREEAE

One Aldgate London EC3,
United Kingdom

88 to 93 Fenchurch Street,
5 and 7 Carlisle Avenue and
Part of Saracens Head Yard,
London, EC3M 48T, United Kingdom

Moor Place, 1 Fore Street Avenue,
London EC2Y 5EJ

Shanghai Modern Square,
369 Xian Xia Road, Changning District,
Shanghai, the PRC*

hE HETmRERIIERK3695%
FERRES

Zhan Wang Digital Plaza,
8 Shipai West Road, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC*
Fh B B N TR RS PR R 85
REHEES

Guangzhou Dongzhao Building,
Dongfeng Road, Donghao Highway
(near Yuexiu Bridge), Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC*

B AR RN T R R B S R R
BRKSIBSEMRRKRE

Zhanfeng Commercial Tower,
Zhujiang New Plaza Plot II-3,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC*

R ER G RN RN E
PROLHII-34h B R 18 5 2 K=

Kingboard Plaza Phase |,
224 Xin Jing Road, Changning District,
Shanghai, the PRC*

B BT RERINTHE22457
FERERES 8

Existing use
ERAZ

Office
BTE

Office
g8

Office
BT

Office
BTE

Office
27

Shop, Office
- BTIE

Shop, Office
R - BTIE

Shop, Office
Hi - BFE

Shop, Office
EERE

GFA (m?)
Tenure HREMBE
bizk:t (EH3K)
Medium term lease 33,000
Fh HA 7 B
Freehold 5,000
KAERE
Freehold 8,000
KA EERE
Freehold 21,500
KA EERE
Medium term lease 17,000
R HAFE B
Medium term lease 58,000
R HAFE B
Medium term lease 91,000
R HAFE B
Medium term lease 72,000
R HATE B
Medium term lease 297,000
R HA7E B
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AEBEZERREMEIINTE

Group’s interest

AEESEER
2016 2015
—EB-—RE —ZET—TF
(%) (%)
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%



INFORMATION ON THE GROUP’S PROPERTIES

SEYMEER

The following tables set out the Group’s material properties under

development:

Location

o2

Huagiao Kingboard Plaza Phase |,
Plot B5, B6, B20&B21,
Huagjiao International Commercial
Town Core Area, Kunshan,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC*

HETE A B ILm IR Bl s
1% [EB5,86,8208B21111 5%
]

Huaian Kingboard Garden Phase |,
Xiangyu Road East side,
Qinghe District, Huaian,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC*

HEIHDER TSI RATAE
RPEZ@ERIEE— 4

Huagjiao Kingboard Garden Phase IV,
Guixi Road, Huagjiao District,
Kunshan, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC*

BT #E BT ERRRNE KR

EERIEEN S

Kingboard Garden Phase lll
Development District,
Jingwang Road, Kunshan
Development District,
Kunshan, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC*

REIHE RITREERTRIOK
HEEREHREE =5

South side of Zhonghua Yuan Road,
west side of Huangshan Road,
Kunshan Development District,
Kunshan, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC*

PETHERUMAERTERERER -

EIBAA AR

Approximate
percentage of
completion

as at the date of
this report
EEAHERN
IETERBA AR

(%)

66%

90%

65%

90%

12%

Year of
expected
completion
At
EIFE

2017

2017

2017

2018

2019

Gross floor
area (m?)

BEREEE
(FHK)

293,000

198,000

393,000

305,000

1,121,000

* denotes English translation of Chinese addresses in the PRC for identification

purposes only

AEEET2HERRMEIINTE

Group’s interest

AEEEERES
Expected use 2016 2015
EiRE ZB-RE  —T-nf

(%) (%)

Shops, Offices & Hotel 100% 100%
aE - WREREE
Shops & Residential 100% 100%
AHkET
Residential 100% 100%
=
Shops & Residential 100% 100%
HHRET
Shops, Offices & Hotel 75% 75%
B BAZRER
* PR EE 2 SO PR RE R AR A
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M=

RESULTS

£

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—HA=1t—HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016

—T—=F —ZT—NOF —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000

BT FH&T AT FET TET

Revenue B 37,290,319 35,689,457 35,905,766 32,788,186 35,830,320
Profit before taxation R A 2,926,993 3,899,973 3,513,621 2,522,559 7,237,226
Income tax expense FrS TR (420,028) (608,350) (692,615) (569,464) (1,075,209)
Profit for the year KEE A 2,506,965 3,291,623 2,821,006 1,953,095 6,162,017

Attributable to: FE(H1DEE -

Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIES YN 2,097,031 2,961,409 2,536,800 1,650,323 5,026,831
Non-controlling interests FE AR AR B A RS 409,934 330,214 284,206 302,772 1,135,186
2,506,965 3,291,623 2,821,006 1,953,095 6,162,017

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERAE

At 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2013 2014 2015 2016
—T—=F =ZZ—NF ZZT—HF ZTB—XREF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FHBT FAT FAET FHT
Total assets BEEBE 60,934,532 74,860,241 75,632,742 72,920,997 76,420,553
Total liabilities afEeE (24,785,386) (34,000,282) (33,659,552) (31,580,270) (32,467,881)
36,149,146 40,859,959 41,973,190 41,340,727 43,952,672

Equity attributable to ViN/NCIE= =N
owners of the Company  FB{E#E% 30,645,635 34,158,243 35,676,308 35,246,168 37,587,004
Non-controlling interests IR R 5,503,511 6,701,716 6,296,882 6,094,559 6,365,668
36,149,146 40,859,959 41,973,190 41,340,727 43,952,672
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K 2 HUIEEBEBAERLFA
KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

23/F, Delta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T., Hong K
BERMALHAMTRBH=NEERE=-+=12

Tel BEE : (852) 2605 6493 Fax {8E : (852) 2691 5245
E-mail £ : enquiry@kingboard.com Web site #831t : http:/
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